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AGENDA

IAN DAVIDSON, CHIEF EXECUTIVE, TOWN HALL, STATION ROAD, CLACTON-ON-SEA, ESSEX, CO15 1SE. TELEPHONE (01255) 686868

AGENDA
1

Apologies for Absence and Substitutions
The Committee is asked to note any apologies for absence and substitutions received
from Members.

2

Minutes of the Last Meeting (Pages 1 - 12)
To confirm as a correct record, the minutes of the last meeting of the Committee, held
on Thursday 1 October 2020.

3

Declarations of Interest
Councillors are invited to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests or Personal
Interest, and the nature of it, in relation to any item on the agenda.

4

Questions on Notice pursuant to Council Procedure Rule 38
Subject to providing two working days’ notice, a Member of the Committee may ask the
Chairman of the Committee a question on any matter in relation to which the Council has
powers or duties which affect the Tendring District and which falls within the terms of
reference of the Committee.

5

Report of the Assistant Director (Finance & IT) - A.1 - External Auditor's Audit
Completion Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 (Pages 13 - 204)
To present:





The Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 for approval;
The External Auditor’s Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2020,
which includes the management representation letter, for consideration and
approval, to enable a final opinion on the accounts and value for money
arrangements to be formally issued by the External Auditor; and
The Statement of Accounts 2019/20 for consideration and approval for publication
by the end of November 2020.

Date of the Next Scheduled Meeting
The next scheduled meeting of the Audit Committee is to be held at 10.30 a.m. on
Thursday, 28 January 2021.
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Agenda Item 2
Audit Committee

1 October 2020

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE,
HELD ON THURSDAY, 1ST OCTOBER, 2020 AT 3.35 PM
THE MEETING WAS HELD IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF
STATUTORY INSTRUMENT 2020/392.
Present:
In Attendance:

1.

Councillors Coley (Chairman), Alexander (Vice-Chairman), Fairley,
Placey and Winfield
Richard Barrett (Assistant Director (Finance and IT) & Section 151
Officer), Craig Clawson (Internal Audit Manager), Ian Ford
(Committee Services Manager), Matt Cattermole (Communications
Assistant) and Hattie Dawson-Dragisic (Apprentice (Democratic
Services & Elections))

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors King (with Councillor
Winfield substituting) and Miles (with no substitute).

2.

MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING
The Minutes of the last meeting of the Committee held on 30 January 2020 were
approved as a correct record.

3.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest made on this occasion.

4.

QUESTIONS ON NOTICE PURSUANT TO COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 38
There were no Questions on Notice on this occasion.

5.

REPORT OF THE INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGER - A.1 - REPORT ON INTERNAL
AUDIT
The Committee had before it a report submitted by the Council’s Internal Audit Manager
(A.1) which provided a periodic update on the Internal Audit function for the period
March to June 2020 as well as the Internal Audit Manager’s Annual Report for 2019/20.
That report was split into three sections as follows:(1) Internal Audit Plan Progress 2019/20;
(2) Annual Report of Internal Audit Manager; and
(3) Internal Audit Plan Progress 2020/21.
(1)

Internal Audit Plan Progress 2019/20

The Committee was informed that the 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan had been completed
with the exception of three audits which had been deferred to the 2020/21 Internal Audit
Plan. It had been agreed previously to defer both the North Essex Garden Communities
and the Financial Resilience Audits to the 2020/21 Audit Plan and the Health and Safety
service review had had to be stopped during fieldwork due to the impact of COVID-19
on that service.
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All further audits completed during March 2020 to June 2020 had received satisfactory
assurance opinions with no significant issues being identified.
Members were reminded that an update was usually provided to the Committee on the
continuous and consultative work undertaken by the Internal Audit Team in order to
ensure that the Committee was aware of service area supportive work that was not
measured in the same way as a standard Internal Audit. Unfortunately, due to the
impact of COVID-19 the Internal Audit Team had been unable to provide the same level
of support to the transformation programme and the digital transformation programme
due to other emergency planning priorities across the District.
However, an update could be provided on the Northbourne Depot Security Review. The
Corporate Director responsible for the Northbourne Depot had provided the following
update:





the locks on the compound area had been changed with access limited to specific
Officers;
the CCTV System had been fully upgraded;
an electronic gate had been installed on the front entrance to the Depot which
required fob access and was locked in the evenings and at weekends;
the job scheduling system was currently being implemented.

The Committee was advised that Internal Audit were supporting the service on the
implementation of the job scheduling system. This was a staged process which would
potentially benefit other service areas such as Horticultural Services and Facilities
Management in the long term if it was implemented effectively.
Quality Assurance
Members were aware that the Internal Audit function issued satisfaction surveys for
each audit completed. In the period under review 100% of the responses received had
indicated that the auditee had been satisfied with the audit work undertaken.
Resourcing
It was reported that the Internal Audit section was currently working with an
establishment of 3 ‘Full Time Equivalents with access to a third party provider of internal
audit services for specialist audit days as and when required. Due to COVID-19 all
recruitment had been put on hold and Officers had therefore had not been in a position
to continue with the recruitment process of a new Apprentice to the section. However,
the recruitment process had recently re-started and it was expected that an Apprentice
would be appointed shortly.
From March 2020 until July 2020 no Internal Audits had been undertaken as every
service area across the Council had had to adapt to the changes required by their
service due to the global pandemic. In order to support the Council and the
emergencies it faced, the Internal Audit Team had offered up resources to tackle the
emerging challenges. The Internal Audit Manager had been a part of the Silver
Command Team within the Council’s Emergency Planning function as the information
and communication lead. In addition, two Auditors had assisted the support hubs by
taking phone calls and ensuring that the most vulnerable persons in the community
received food parcels. At the same time the Team had continued to ensure that audits
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where information was readily available either online or on the network had continued to
progress in order to ensure that the Team did not fall too far behind on the audit plan.
Outcomes of Internal Audit Work
The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) required the Internal Audit Manager
to report to the Committee on significant risk exposures and control issues. Since the
last such report five audits had been completed and the final report issued. One audit
had received a ‘Substantial Assurance’ audit opinion and the other four had received an
‘Adequate Assurance’ audit opinion.
Management Response to Internal Audit Findings
Members were aware that there were processes in place to track the action taken
regarding findings raised in Internal Audit reports and to seek assurance that
appropriate corrective action had been taken. Where appropriate, follow up audits had
been arranged to revisit significant issues identified after an appropriate time. There
were five high severity issues overdue (by less than three months) which all related to
either Planning Enforcement or Housing Allocations.
Update on previous significant issues reported
Housing Allocations
The Committee recalled that this service had previously stated that they were awaiting
the approval for a new Housing Allocations System to be implemented as the previous
Northgate module was no longer fit for purpose. An update had been provided by that
service which stated that a new system was currently at a testing phase with a ‘soft’
implementation date in November 2020. Internal Audit would review the implementation
process as part of the Housing Allocations ‘Follow-Up’ Audit.
Planning Enforcement
An update had been provided by the Assistant Director (Planning). Some work had
begun to implement the changes required for Planning Enforcement; however, due to
the impact of COVID-19 they had not been able to fully implement all agreed actions
because the work was being led by the Council’s Corporate Enforcement Group which
had only met for the first time in August 2020 since lockdown in March 2020.
It was also reported that work on the Planning Enforcement Policy was still ongoing but
use of the Planning System was now expected for all complaints and HARM
assessments were also expected to be completed for every review. All of which would
be assessed fully as part of the Planning Enforcement ‘Follow-Up’ Audit.
(2)

Annual Report of the Internal Audit Manager

The Committee was aware that there was a requirement under PSIAS 2450 that the
Chief Audit Executive must provide an annual report to the Audit Committee, timed to
support the Annual Governance Statement. This must include:
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an annual internal audit opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the
organisation’s governance, risk and control framework (i.e. the control
environment);
a summary of the audit work from which the opinion was derived (including
reliance placed on work by other assurance bodies); and
a statement on conformance with the PSIAS and the results of the internal audit
Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme.

Members were made aware that the Council had adopted a ‘Three Lines of Defence’
assurance model which was taken from the following sources:
1.
2.
3.

Senior Management and Departmental Leadership;
Internal Governance; and
An Internal Audit function operating in accordance with the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015.

Internal Audit Approach
The Internal Audit function undertook a programme of audits each year in order to
provide the Council and its Audit Committee with an assurance on the adequacy of its
system of internal control, governance and risk management arrangements. The audit
programme had been developed to be risk based and comprised of different audit
techniques in order to make it leaner and more supportive of service delivery to meet
the Council’s needs.
Internal Audit had continued to work with services on a consultancy basis in order to
support the implementation of new processes, identify and analyse route cause if
necessary and ensure that all relevant employees had the appropriate training to
competently carry out their role. Transformation, Project Management, Procurement
and Risk Management were some of the areas where this type of work had been
undertaken.
In 2019/20 to date, only three audits from a total of 34 undertaken had received an
overall audit opinion of “Improvement Required” where high severity issues had been
identified. Those audits were Planning Enforcement, Housing Repairs and Maintenance
and Housing Allocations. Improvement actions had been put in place for all of the above
audits which were followed up in order to assess the progress of implementation. All
significant issues were reported to the Audit Committee with required improvement
actions throughout the year in order to provide a continuous update on the Council’s
control environment, governance arrangements, material issues identified and
improvement actions.
Annual Opinion 2019/20
The Committee was advised that the assurance opinion was based on:





Internal Audit work completed during the course of the year;
observations from consultancy/ advisory support;
results of any follow up exercises undertaken in respect of previous years’ internal
audit work;
a review of assurance from other providers including those from first and second
lines of defence, independent regulators and peer reviews;
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the extent of resources available to deliver the internal audit work; and
the quality and performance of the Internal Audit service and the extent of
compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

Limitations to the Annual Opinion
As the COVID-19 pandemic had forced a national lockdown in March 2020 and as a
result forced the Council into remote working and in some areas a complete halt on
service provision other than emergency work, it had become particularly challenging to
complete outstanding audits. However, with the exception of one core audit (Health and
Safety), fieldwork had been completed on all other audits within the audit plan. Health
and Safety priorities had naturally shifted in March 2020 which meant that their workload
had increased dramatically. Therefore a decision had been taken to suspend work on
that audit in order to support the Health and Safety Team during the lockdown period.
It was the opinion of the Internal Audit Manager that the overall direction of travel
regarding the internal control environment since 2018/19 had improved in core areas
such as the Council’s key systems. However, there were some service areas that
required further improvement and others where the expected controls and risk mitigation
had not been implemented as expected. Nevertheless, as the majority of audits in
2019/20 had continued to receive an adequate or substantial assurance opinion it was
reasonable to suggest that there had not been a considerable deterioration in internal
control and operational processes within the year.
Governance arrangements and internal controls had been evaluated in all audits within
the plan, albeit with varying levels of scope. Senior Management continued to review
strategic risks on a regular basis within Management Team and the Corporate Risk
Register was reviewed bi-annually with any feedback reported to Management Team for
its consideration.
As the majority of the year had been unaffected by the COVID-19 pandemic the annual
opinion would reflect normal operations. However, governance arrangements and key
systems would need to be reviewed for the period from March 2020 in order to provide
assurance that good governance and control remained strong in light of the procedural
changes across all service areas.
Members were reminded that the opinion of the Internal Audit Manager was drawn from
all of the information reported above, external reviews carried out throughout the year
from other assurance providers and through the ongoing work in supporting Senior
Management and Services in delivering the Council’s objectives and vision.
The Committee was further informed that the Internal Audit function was expected to
commission an independent assessment on compliance with the Public Sector Internal
Audit Standards that had been set by the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) and adopted
by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) every five years.
Internal Audit had received an independent report in 2017/18 which had confirmed
conformance with the standards. Although this assessment was undertaken, the Internal
Audit function must continue to complete an annual Quality Assurance and
Improvement Programme (QAIP) which was a self-assessment questionnaire against
the PSIAS. A QAIP had been completed and presented to the Audit Committee at is
meeting in January 2020.
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The Internal Audit Manager was satisfied that sufficient work had been completed in
2019/20 in order to draw a reasonable conclusion on the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Council’s activities. The internal control environment continued to remain stable with
no significant changes from 2018/19; an open dialogue with Senior Management on risk
remained in place and a generally sound system of internal control had been assessed
across the majority of the Council’s operational areas. Therefore, an overall unqualified
opinion of Adequate Assurance could be provided.
Internal Audit Plan Progress 2020/21
It was reported that a total of 17 audits from the 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan had been
either allocated; were in progress; or fieldwork had been completed. Four Audits had
been completed with no significant issues identified.
Members were informed that Internal Audit had been working closely with services to
maintain a control environment whilst moving to fully electronic service provision across
the Council. The Team had also been supporting some departments with the
implementation of new systems and supporting the Emergency Planning function
wherever possible.
From July 2020, Internal Audit had been able to progress further with audits allocated
within the Internal Audit Plan as services were now adapting to the ‘new normal’.
Due to the impacts of COVID-19 the Internal Audit Manager proposed that some
changes be made to the Internal Audit Plan in order to incorporate risk areas that had
emerged. Some areas that he wanted to add to the audit plan for consideration were as
follows;






Fraud and Corruption
Change Management
GDPR
Financial Strategy and Resilience
The impact on governance arrangements due to COVID-19

The Committee was aware that work on the above areas would, of course, add
additional pressure to the current resources available and it was therefore proposed to
use external Internal Audit provision to support the In-House Team in completing the
audits within the current plan and to free up resources to undertake work on the
additional audits required.
Furthermore, some work had begun on the Carbon Neutrality audit with initial
assessments indicating that it might be worth waiting until 2021/22 in order to allow work
to begin on the agreed action plan for the Council. This would then free up a further 10
resource days for the Internal Audit Team to use for the additional audit reviews
proposed.
Appendix B to the Internal Audit Manager’s report provided an update on the status of
each audit to date. There were no significant issues or particular areas of concern to
report at this time.
Having considered and discussed the contents of the Internal Audit Manager’s report
and its appendices it was:-
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RESOLVED that –
(a) the contents of the report be noted; and
(b) the additional proposed audits be included within the 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan.
6.

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (FINANCE AND IT) - A.2 - TABLE OF
OUTSTANDING ISSUES
The Committee had before it a report submitted by the Assistant Director (Finance & IT)
(A.2) which presented to the Committee the progress on outstanding actions identified
by the Committee.
The Committee was informed that there were three appendices to this report which
would contained:
1)

updates against general issues previously identified by the Committee;

2)

updates against the Annual Governance Statement from last year as at the end of
March 2020; and

3)

the latest position against the Annual Governance Statement Action Plan for
2020/21.

It was reported that, to date, there were no significant issues arising from the above,
with work remaining in progress or updates provided elsewhere on the agenda, where
appropriate.
In addition, updates on other issues such as the outcomes from a Government review of
the effectiveness of external audit conducted by Sir Tony Redmond and the revisions to
the Statement of Accounts (SoA) and Annual Governance Statement (AGS) reporting
timetable as a result of the impact of Covid-19 were set out in more detail in this report.
In respect of the latter point, it was proposed to hold an additional meeting of the
Committee in November in order to accommodate the revised deadline of 30 November
2020.
The Committee noted that the changes above would also have an impact on the Annual
Audit Letter (AAL) provided by the Council’s External Auditor. This could not be
prepared and issued until they had completed their work on the SOA and AGS.
Therefore the AAL would now be submitted to the January 2021 meeting of the
Committee.
Having considered the above and having discussed the contents of the report and its
appendices it was:
RESOLVED that –
(a) the progress made against the actions set out in Appendices A to C to item A.2 of
the report of the Assistant Director (Finance & IT) be noted;
(b) the revision to the deadline associated with the production and publication of the
Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement be noted; and
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(c) Officers be requested to make the necessary arrangements for an additional
meeting of the Committee to be held in November 2020 in order to ensure that the
deadline of 30 November 2020 relating to the above is met.
7.

REPORT OF ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (FINANCE & IT) - A.3 - CORPORATE RISK
REGISTER UPDATE
The Committee had before it a report submitted by the Council’s Assistant Director
(Finance & IT) (A.3) which presented for the Committee’s consideration the updated
Corporate Risk Register.
Members were reminded that the Corporate Risk Register was regularly updated, and
submitted to the Committee every six months, with the last such occasion being in
January 2020. Given the unprecedented impact of the COVID 19 crisis, the risk register
would need to be reviewed going forward against a potential ‘new normal’. Therefore
only minor changes to the corporate risk register had been made at this stage. However,
to ensure the most up-to-date position and assurance was reported to the Committee, a
more detailed interim update against key risks was set out in this report.
It was reported that the risk register had been updated within the context of the usual
and underlying risks that were included in the register. However, it was recognised that
the unprecedented events experienced this year in respect of the COVID 19 crisis would
have a major impact on the Council and likely cut across many of the risks currently
included within the register. Given the on-going and ‘live’ nature of the current COVID
crisis, it was difficult to fully revise the register at this point in time to reflect what is
deemed to be the ‘new normal’.
However, it was felt timely to highlight the following two points in order to provide
assurance around the Council’s governance related response and reaction to the
unprecedented position faced this year:
As set out in the Annual Governance Statement, that had been published (subject to
audit) with the Statement of Accounts 2019/20 at the end of July 2020, a number of
actions were set out including those directly relating to the COVID 19 crisis. Updates
against those actions were set out within the Table of Outstanding Issues report
considered earlier in the meeting. Although it was still relatively early in the wider
‘recovery / response’ phase, it was important to highlight that a review was planned to
be undertaken by Internal Audit that would cover the impact on governance falling into
the following broad categories:


Impact on business as usual in the delivery of services



New areas of activity as part of the national response to coronavirus and any
governance issues arising



The funding and logistical consequences of delivering the local government
response



Assessment of the longer term disruption and consequences arising from the
coronavirus pandemic

Page 8

Audit Committee

1 October 2020

Members were aware that, to date, the Council had been able to maintain, operate and
deliver the majority of its operations and services as usual but specific comments in
respect of key governance items were set out in the following table as an interim update
set against the current COVID 19 crisis:Risk As Included within the Register
Update / Comment
RISK 1b – Catastrophic IT network Resilience is built into our IT Investment
failure
Strategies including ‘mirrored’ data
storage at two national Microsoft Azure
platform data centres delivering 85% of
our hybrid Private/ Public Applications - all
resulting
in
significantly
increased
resilience and much speedier ‘disaster
recovery’ capability.
RISK 1c- Ineffective communication / Officers laptops have been upgraded
management of information
during the last 6 months to ensure a
smoother working from home process can
be maintained.
A significant amount has been undertaken
to facilitate remote meetings at both officer
and member level.
RISK 1d Ineffective Cyber Security Nationally cyber security attacks have
Physical and Application (software) increased by 700% during the COVID 19
Based Protection Management
crisis. The IT remain alert to these attacks
and continue to carry out work in this area
including increasing staff awareness on
these issues while working remotely.
RISK 3b - Failure to comply with The Council has remained alert to new
legislative requirements
legislative requirements such as the
changes associated with holding remote
meetings etc. The necessary decision
making
processes
and
practical
arrangements have been put in place
where necessary.
RISK 3d - Fraud and Corruption

During a major crisis such as COVID 19,
there is unfortunately an increase in
attempts to defraud organisations – this
can range from organised and widespread
‘attacks’ to businesses wrongly claiming
business rates grants. The Council has
remained alert to such issues and where
controls have had to be changed or
implemented to accommodate new
working practices (such as remote
working), these changes have been made
in consultation with Internal Audit and will
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year.
A significant amount of assurance work
has also been undertaken by the
Revenues and Benefits Team in
connection with the payment of various
business grants to ensure money is paid
out correctly to those eligible.

RISK 4a – Loss of Key Staff
The Council remains alert to the pressures
RISK 4b – Lack of Capacity to Deliver it currently faces, not only responding to
Core Services
COVID 19 issues which have been varied
and challenging to resource over the past
few months, but also to other emerging
activities both locally and nationally.
Council staff have risen to the challenge in
terms of being flexible, positive and willing
to support different areas of the Council.
However with continuing changes in the
Local Government sector, such as those
emerging from the Government, the level
of capacity to not only deliver against
these emerging issues but also the day to
day operations of the Council may become
more challenging over time.
RISK 5a - Financial Strategy

There has been a significant impact on
business rates and council tax (Risks 8a
and 8b) during the 6 month period to date,
along with losses of income from areas
such as parking and leisure. The
Government have provided financial
support to the Council to underwrite some
risks and an updated in-year position will
be reported to members later in October.
It is very difficult to predict the longer term
impact on the Council’s financial strategy
at the present time. However an
underlying strength in the financial
resilience of the Council is the flexibility
that the long term approach provides,
which will enable any adverse impact to be
managed over a longer period of time.

Risks:
At the beginning of the crisis earlier in the
year the Council invoked its emergency
3c - Health and Safety;
9a - Ineffective Emergency Planning; planning
and
business
continuity
processes. Usually this response would be
and
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9b - Ineffective Business Continuity over a very short period of time dealing
Planning
with a one-off major event such as coastal
flooding, so they have never been tested
in a long term scenario such as COVID 19.
However the plans that have been put in
place have enabled the Council to
maintain business as usual over a major
part
of
its
normal
operations.
Arrangements have also continued to
evolve over the course of the year in
delivering a successful response to the
longer term nature of the COVID 19 crisis.
There will inevitably be lessons learnt that
need to be reflected in any necessary
revisions to emergency planning and
business continuity arrangements which
will form part of future updates.
The following table summarised the amendments to the Risk Register since it had been
last considered by the Committee in January 2020:
Risk Register Item

Amendments / Comments

New Risks Identified

None

Risks Removed

None

Risk Scores Amended

None – however as mentioned elsewhere in the Officer
report, the corporate risk register would be reviewed in
the context of the COVID 19 crisis along with lessons
learnt which would undoubtedly require changes to be
reflected in the register going forward.

Risk under review

Risks Amended

Minor wording changes had been made for the following
risks:
1b - Catastrophic IT network failure
1c Ineffective communication/management of
information
1d – Ineffective cyber security physical and application
(software) based protection management
2d – Ineffective delivery of transforming Tendring project
6a – Loss of sensitive and/or personal data through
malicious actions loss theft and/or hacking
9a - Ineffective Emergency Planning
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The Committee was informed that a Local Government cyber security self-assessment
was undertaken by the Council in November each year with the latest one completed in
November 2019. The Council had achieved a robust Amber-Green score of 65-79%, but
with areas of improvement identified. That rating had placed Tendring District Council in
the top-quartile compared with our Essex Online Partnership (EOLP) peer group.
The Service would shortly be undertaking the 2020 self-assessment and it was planned
to report any associated recommendations and actions to the January 2021 meeting of
the Committee.
Having considered the information provided it was:
RESOLVED that the updates provided to the current Corporate Risk Register be noted.
The meeting was declared closed at 4.20 pm

Chairman
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
30 NOVEMBER 2020
REPORT OF ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (FINANCE & IT)
A.1

EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S AUDIT COMPLETION REPORT FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
(Report prepared by Richard Barrett)

PART 1 – KEY INFORMATION
PURPOSE OF THE REPORT
To present:
 The Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 for approval.
 The External Auditor’s Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2020,
which includes the management representation letter, for consideration and
approval, to enable a final opinion on the accounts and value for money
arrangements to be formally issued by the External Auditor.
 The Statement of Accounts 2019/20 for consideration and approval for publication
by 30 November 2020.
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
 At the time of finalising this report for printing, the External Auditor had substantially
completed the audit of the 2019/20 accounts with their associated Audit Completion
Report attached, which includes a management representation letter for approval by
the Committee.


The External Auditor anticipates issuing an unqualified audit opinion on the Council’s
financial statements and use of resources as set out on page 4 of their report. It is
important to highlight that they have yet to complete some elements of their work
which could still impact on this position. If changes to this position are required then
it will be reported directly at the meeting of the Committee.



There are no unadjusted audit differences as set out on page 22 of the External
Auditor’s Report.



Although a number of changes and improvements to the Statement of Accounts
have been made, the External Auditor has highlighted some adjustments that they
are required to bring to the Committee’s attention. These are set out on page 23 of
their report, with one of the main adjustments required being to reflect the impact of
COVID 19.



Page 20 of the External Auditor’s report also sets out some recommended additional
amendments to the accounts. These have been agreed and therefore a number of
immaterial notes and disclosures have been removed from the Statement of
Accounts.
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None of the adjustments made have had an impact on the General Fund or Housing
Revenue Account Balances for the year.



The Council’s audited Statement of Accounts for 2019/20, which reflect the
amendments identified to date, are attached. Subject to the approval of the Audit
Committee, the Statement of Accounts are required to be published by the end of
November 2020.



Three recommendations have been made by the External Auditor which are set out
on pages 31 and 32 of their report. These have been agreed and updates will be
reported as part of the Table of Outstanding Issue Reports that are presented to
each meeting of the Committee.



The outstanding actions to be completed by the External Auditor are set out on page
40 of the External Auditor’s report. Therefore it is possible that further amendments
to the accounts and / or management representation letter may be required. If this is
the case then any changes will either form part of an addendum report published in
advance of the meeting or reported directly at the meeting of the Committee.



Following the review process that forms part of the External Auditor’s work, the
Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 that was previously agreed by the Council’s
Management Team in July 2020, has been subject to some minor amendments. The
final version for publication is attached as Appendix A for consideration by the
Committee.

RECOMMENDATIONS
1. That in respect of the External Auditor’s Audit Completion Report for the year
ended 31 March 2020, the Audit Committee:
(a) Considers and notes the contents of the report including the adjustments to
the Statement of Accounts as set out on pages 20 and 23 of their report;
(b) subject to (a) above, approves the management representation letter set out
on Pages 48 to 50 of the External Auditor’s Audit Completion Report;
(c) subject to (b) above, authorises the Assistant Director Finance & IT and the
Audit Committee Chairman to sign the management representation letter for
forwarding to the External Auditor;
(d) subject to (b) and (c) above, approves for publication the audited Statement
of Accounts for 2019/20, amended for the adjusted items identified; and
2. That in respect of the Council’s Annual Governance Statement 2019/20, the Audit
Committee:
(a) Approves the revised Annual Governance Statement set out in Appendix A;
and
(b) authorises, subject to 2(a) above, the Chief Executive and Leader of the
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Council to sign the Annual Governance Statement set out in Appendix A.
PART 2 – IMPLICATIONS OF THE DECISION
DELIVERING PRIORITIES
Careful planning to ensure financial stability underpins the Council’s capacity and ability to
deliver against its objectives and priorities. Both the capital and revenue budgets of the
authority are prepared and monitored with the aim of supporting these key objectives. The
outturn position and associated Statement of Accounts reflects this process and supports
the successful financial planning process which includes communicating and consulting
with relevant stakeholders.
FINANCE, OTHER RESOURCES AND RISK
Finance and other resources
There are no direct financial implications with audit costs expected to be completed within
existing budgets. The actual fee is therefore anticipated to be broadly in-line with the
planned fee for the year with further details set out on page 35 of the Audit Completion
Report attached.
Risk
The preparation, reporting and publishing of the Statement of Accounts follows a relatively
tight timescale with various milestones along the way. Against this backcloth, the
production of the accounts is required to be completed to the necessary standards and
deadlines with the aim of preventing any significant issues arising from the audit process.
LEGAL
The Statement of Accounts 2019/20 are prepared within the framework set out in the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and associated regulations, the primary ones being the
latest Accounts and Audit Regulations.
Due to impact of the COVID 19 pandemic, The Government agreed a revised deadline for
the publication of the audited Statement of Accounts – the deadline was moved from the
end of July 2020 to the end of November 2020.
The closure of accounts process, the preparation of the Statement of Accounts and their
subsequent audit, along with the arrangements to secure value for money, reflect the
requirements and responsibilities of the Council.
OTHER IMPLICATIONS
Consideration has been given to the implications of the proposed decision in respect of the following
and any significant issues are set out below.
Crime and Disorder / Equality and Diversity / Health Inequalities / Area or Ward affected /
Consultation/Public Engagement.

There are no direct implications from this report. However in respect of equality and
diversity, the Council ensures that the Statement of Accounts and associated governance
reports are accessible to all by advertising their availability and publishing them
electronically on the Council’s website.

Page 15

PART 3 – SUPPORTING INFORMATION
BACKGROUND
The pre-audited Statement of Accounts for 2019/20 were approved for publication by the
Council’s S151 Officer (Assistant Director Finance & IT) at the end of August 2020.
The pre-audited Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 was approved for publication by
the Council’s Management Team at the end of July 2020.
Each year the Council’s External Auditors are required to prepare an annual report setting
out the outcomes from their review of the Statement of Accounts (including the Annual
Governance Statement) and the Council’s value for money arrangements. The Audit
Committee is required to consider the content of this annual report and approve for
publication the final audited Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement.
A draft management representation letter which sets out certain management
representations is included within pages 48 to 50 of the External Auditor’s Audit Completion
Report attached. The Audit Committee are also required to separately approve this letter
and authorise the Assistant Director Finance & IT and Audit Committee Chairman to sign it
before it is forwarded onto the External Auditor.
Once the above tasks are completed the External Auditor can conclude the audit by
finalising and formally issuing their audit opinion along with the certification of the accounts.
AUDIT COMPLETION REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
The auditors have issued their Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2020,
a copy of which is attached. Although the External Auditor’s work is nearing completion a
small number of activities remain outstanding as set out on page 40 of the External
Auditor’s Audit Completion Report. However the External Auditor currently plans on issuing
an unqualified audit opinion in respect of the Financial Statements and on the Council’s
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.
Following the external audit work completed to date, a number of improvements /
adjustments have been required with further details set out on pages 20 and 23 of the Audit
Completion Report. A number of these adjustments relate to the need to highlight the
potential impact of COVID19 on the Council’s financial position and resilience. It is
important to highlight that the Annual Governance Statement had already reflected on this
matter and as part of the associated actions, it will form an important element of the
Internal Audit Plan in 2020/21 and 2021/22.
None of the adjusted items have a direct impact on the overall 2019/20 financial position of
the Council.
In respect of other matters arising, the External Auditor has made three recommendations,
which are set out on pages 31 and 32 of their report. These have been agreed and updates
/ progress will be provided as part of the usual Table of Outstanding Issues Reports that
are presented to each meeting of the Committee.
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One of the three recommendations made relates to financial reserves and budgets carried
forward from prior years. Although a number of specific reserves have been highlighted
within the Auditor’s report, the underlying issue, as described by the auditor, is about
ensuring their on-going validity and that it can be demonstrated that they are held at a level
that optimises service delivery without unacceptable risk exposure. This is a timely
observation as similar discussion have already taken place within the Council over recent
weeks and work is now underway to explore and identify the additional external resources
required to take forward / deliver the associated activities and priorities in 2021 and
beyond.
To conclude the Statement of Accounts process for 2019/20, the Audit Committee is
required to consider the Audit Completion Report for the year ending 31 March 2020,
approve the management representation letter and approve the final Statement of
Accounts for 2019/20, which includes the adjustments mentioned earlier in this report.
Therefore subject to the agreement of the recommendations above and the completion of
the External Auditor’s outstanding work, the final Statement of Accounts for 2020/21 will be
published by the end of November deadline.
The External Auditor will be in attendance at the meeting to formally present their Audit
Completion Report to the Committee.
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2019/20
The Annual Governance Statement 2019/2020 has been subject to some minor
amendments. Appendix A therefore sets out the revised Annual Governance Statement
2019/20.
The Annual Governance Statement is presented to the Committee for consideration and
approval along with seeking the necessary agreement to the Chief Executive and the
Leader to sign it, which has been reflected in the recommendations above.
BACKGROUND PAPERS FOR THE DECISION
None
APPENDICES
Appendix A
Annual Governance Statement 2019/20
Attachment 1 External Auditor’s Audit Completion Report: Year ended 31 March 2020
(Including the Letter of Representation set out on pages 48 to 50)
Attachment 2 The Council’s Statement of Accounts 2019/20 for Publication (subject to
further changes that may be identified following the completion of the
outstanding areas of work by the External Auditor)
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A1 APPENDIX A
TENDRING DISTRICT COUNCIL
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2019-20
1. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY FOR A SOUND SYSTEM OF GOVERNANCE
Tendring District Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law and
proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded, properly accounted for, and used economically,
efficiently and effectively.
The Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy,
efficiency and effectiveness.
In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council acknowledges that it is responsible for:  putting in place proper arrangements for a sound system of governance and internal control;
 facilitating the effective exercise of its functions; and
 management of risk.
The Council has approved and adopted a Local Code of Corporate Governance, which is consistent with the
principles of the CIPFA / SOLACE Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework (2016 Edition). A
copy of the Council’s Code is available to be viewed or downloaded from the website (www.tendringdc.gov.uk) or
can be obtained by contacting the Head of Governance and Legal Services.
This statement explains how the Council has complied with the Code, and also meets the requirements of the
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, regulation 6(1), which requires all relevant councils to, each financial year: (a) conduct a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control
(b) prepare an Annual Governance Statement
This Annual Governance Statement covers the period from 1 April 2019 up until its publication with the Council’s
Statement of Accounts on 30/11/2020.
2. ROLES OF THOSE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE DEVELOPMENT AND MAINTENANCE OF THE GOVERNANCE
ENVIRONMENT
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The Authority
(Full Council)
Standards
Committee

Overview and
Scrutiny
Committees

The Executive
(The Cabinet)

Corporate
Governance

Statutory
Officers

Audit
Committee

Internal Audit
Management
Team

The Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive play key leadership roles in embedding good governance and
driving on-going improvements within the Council. Other key roles and responsibilities in respect of the
development and maintenance of the governance environment can be summarised as follows: The Authority (Full Council)
 Approve Constitution and Policy Framework
 Approve Council’s overall budget

The Executive (The Cabinet)
 Undertake the Council’s Executive functions
 Making decisions within the Budget and Policy
Framework

 Approve matters reserved by law or by the
Constitution to Full Council
Standards Committee
 Promote and maintain high standards of
conduct
 Develop culture of openness, transparency,
trust and confidence

Overview and Scrutiny Committees
 Review or scrutinise Executive decisions

 Embed a culture of strong ethical and
corporate governance
Audit Committee
 Approve the Council’s Statement of Accounts
 Independent assurance of adequacy of risk
management framework
 Consider Internal / External Audit work and
recommendations arising
Statutory Officers
 Head of Paid Service – discharge of council
functions
 Monitoring Officer – lawfulness and fairness of
decision making, including scope of powers

 Assist with policy formulation and review
 Scrutinise performance in relation to the
Council’s Corporate Plan, Priorities and
Projects and the Budget
 Report to Council / Cabinet on council
functions/ matters affecting the area or its
inhabitants
Management Team
 Develop and maintain the Council’s strategic
direction
 Ensure delivery of agreed targets within
service areas
 Review overall performance, both financial
and non-financial, and change management
Internal Audit
 Provide an independent and objective
assurance function
 Improve effectiveness of risk management,
control and governance processes
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 Chief Financial Officer (S151) – lawfulness of
Council’s financial affairs and financial
prudence of decision making
3. EFFECTIVENESS OF THE KEY ELEMENTS OF THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK
Purpose of the Governance Framework
The governance framework comprises:  the systems and processes, culture and values by which the authority is directed and controlled
 its activities through which it accounts to, engages with and leads its communities
It enables the authority to monitor:  the achievement of its strategic objectives
 to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate services and value for money
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk to a
reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can therefore
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.
The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to:  identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Council’s policies, aims and objectives
 evaluate the likelihood and potential impact of those risks being realised
 manage those risks efficiently, effectively and economically
The Governance Framework has been in place within the Council for the year ended 31 March 2020 and reviewed
up to the date of approval of the statement of accounts.
The Governance Framework
The key elements that comprise the Council’s governance arrangements include: 











1. The Council’s Constitution, Budget and Policy Framework
The Council’s Constitution, which sets out the Council’s decision making framework, enabling decisions to
be taken efficiently and effectively; provides a means of holding decision makers to public account; a
structure to deliver cost effective quality services to the community; and defines roles and responsibilities
A Corporate Plan which identifies the Council’s vision, its aims, opportunities and values
Budget and Policy Frameworks covering key policies and plans that must be approved or adopted by full
Council, including its Budget, Council Tax, Housing Investment Programme, Local Development Plans,
Licensing Policies, Procurement Strategy and Information Governance.
2. Other Strategies, Policies and Procedures
Clear Codes of Conduct which set behavioural expectations for all individuals representing the Council
Human Resources Policies and Procedures covering an extensive range of good employment practices
Whistleblowing and Complaints Procedures that provide individuals with opportunities to report issues
within the Council
Information and IT Policies and Procedures protecting data held by the Council
A wide range of strategies, policies and procedures providing governance frameworks over functions and
activities of the Council
3. Examples of Good Governance
The identification of Priorities and Projects and their translation into clear goals enabling the targeting of
work by departments
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Performance Management and Budget Monitoring Frameworks providing a review of key activities
against targets set, delivery of projects, and financial performance
The Publication of Agendas, Reports, Minutes and Decisions providing accurate and reliable information
to the public
A Corporate Risk Management Framework providing a structure for risk management within the Council,
and a Corporate Risk Register identifying the key risk that the Council is exposed to that is subject to
regular review
External Standards Compliance including compliance with accounting and auditing codes and standards,
and conformance of the Council’s financial management arrangements with the governance
requirements of the CIPFA Statement on “The Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government
(2016)”
Robust governance arrangements for working, engaging and consulting with the Council’s stakeholders,
partners and the public

The Code of Corporate Governance provides a framework of the governance arrangements in place in the
Council, and includes additional detail for each of the above headings. The Code is subject to regular review to
reflect changes to the Council’s Governance Framework, and any update to the CIPFA / SOLACE framework.
As part of the Annual Review of the Council’s Governance Framework, a number of activities and actions have
been identified and undertaken during 2019/20 strengthening the Council’s Governance Framework. The key
activities and actions are set out below against the Core Principles of Good Governance identified in the Council’s
Code of Corporate Governance.
A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
 On-going training opportunities provided to Officers including corporate enforcement workshops
attended by staff at all levels and other topical issues presented to the Senior Managers Forum. Examples
of presentations included Driver Safety at Work, Firmstep (maximising the benefits of the Council’s
investments), Corporate Plan and Priorities, Project Management, Contracts & Procurement, General
Audit outcomes and APSE Energy (as part of the Climate Change work).
 Approval by Full Council in August 2019 of a revised Licensing Enforcement Policy.
 The Human Resources & Council Tax Committee, in October 2019, agreed and adopted an updated
Safeguarding Policy and Procedures.
 The Monitoring Officer at the meeting of the Standards Committee in October 2019 drew the
Committee’s attention to national cases relating to a number of key topics relating to Member conduct.
 The Standards Committee, at its meetings held in July and October 2019, received updates and other
related information on the implementation of the Committee on Standards in Public Life’s
recommendations.
 The Standards Committee, in October 2019, reviewed the Council’s Member Code of Conduct Complaints
Procedure to ensure it was still ‘fit for purpose’.
 The Licensing and Registration Committee, in November 2019 following a public consultation, approved
Child Sexual Exploitation training as a mandatory condition on the Hackney Carriage/Private Hire driver
and operator licences for existing and new drivers and operators.
 Annual Report on Declarations of Interests and mandatory training requirements for Members submitted
to Standards Committee in February 2020, including Members’ Code of Conduct and dedicated planning
and licensing training for members of the respective committees.
 The Human Resources & Council Tax Committee, in February 2020, endorsed changes required to Council
HR policies and procedures for Statutory Parental Bereavement Leave in accordance with the Parental
Bereavement (Leave and Pay) Act 2018.
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A Guidance Note was issued by the Monitoring Officer on decision making powers to be relied upon in the
absence of formal meetings taking place (prior to the remote meeting regulations being in force).
Approval by the Chief Executive (under urgency provisions) following consultation with the Chairman and
Members of the Audit Committee in March 2020 of an updated Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy and
also the Risk Based Verification Policy.
The Partnerships Portfolio Holder, in April 2020, formally adopted, on behalf of the Council, the
International Holocaust Remembrance Alliance’s (IHRA) working definition of antisemitism to be included
within any future policy updates and working practices.
Approval by the Council in July 2020, following consideration of the recommendation of the Human
Resources and Council Tax Committee, of the Pay Policy Statement 2020/2021.
Detailed Health and Safety Risk Assessments have been undertaken for internal and external activities.
The Council’s governance arrangements have been promptly reviewed reflecting new legislation and
government guidance throughout its response during the pandemic.

B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement
 The Council continued to be engaged in a number of community projects in partnership with stakeholders
with a comprehensive update being endorsed by Cabinet during the year, to be delivered to support the
Council’s Priorities especially in the areas of education, health and well-being and community safety.
 Cabinet, approved, for public consultation purposes:
o a draft Housing Strategy 2019-2024 in July 2019; and
o the draft Corporate Plan for 2020-2024 September 2019.
 Cabinet, in September 2019, approved ‘Love Clacton’ as the brand for the Clacton Town Centre
rejuvenation project and endorsed the Vision and Action Plan and approach towards public engagement.
 The Planning Policy & Local Plan Committee, in July 2019, approved the Draft Essex Coast Recreational
Disturbance Avoidance and Mitigation Strategy Supplementary Planning Document for public
consultation purposes.
 In August 2019 Full Council approved the Additional Sustainability Appraisal, evidence and amendments
relating to Section 1 of the Local Plan to be submitted to the Local Plan Inspector, together with any
representations received during the subsequent public consultation period on the schedule of proposed
amendments to Section 1.
 Cabinet, in January 2020, approved the North Essex Economic Strategy which had been produced in
partnership with Braintree District, Colchester Borough, Essex County and Uttlesford District Councils.
 The Creative and Cultural Strategy adopted by Cabinet (decision published in April 2020) followed
consultation with all members.
 All Member briefings on topical subjects including Members’ Code of Conduct, Press & Media relations,
Local Plan & North Essex Garden Communities, Financial Forecast, Jaywick Sands TDC Housing
Development, Corporate Priorities, Clacton and Dovercourt Town Centre regeneration projects, Member
Development Scheme, Tendring4Growth, proposed Cultural and Heritage Strategies, Mayflower 400,
Mental Health & NHS 10 Year Plan, Sport England LDF and Climate Change.
 The Leader has held meetings with the Group Leaders throughout the coronavirus pandemic to discuss a
range of topics across political groups, adopting a ‘One Council’ approach.
 A business questionnaire has been issued to develop an action plan to support the local economy ‘Back to
Business’, following the Covid-19 restrictions on trading.
 As part of getting Tendring “Back to Business”, an all-inclusive approach including members and officers
has been adopted, to generate ideas to support the District’s economy and help as many of our
businesses to recover after the lockdown.
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C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits
Approval by Cabinet in July 2019 of its Priorities and Projects for 2019/20.
Approval by Full Council in January 2020 of a new Corporate Plan for the period 2020-2024.
Working with key partners via the local Health and Wellbeing Board to define and improve health
inequalities in Tendring.
Officers have continued to work on key decision making areas such as full project development and
monitoring arrangements along with proportionate due diligence requirements.
The Planning Policy & Local Plan Committee in July 2019, endorsed a new Strategic Housing Land
Availability Assessment as evidence to support the deliverability of housing proposals in the new Local
Plan and for the purposes of determining planning applications.
Cabinet, in July 2019, approved the Vision and Masterplan for the regeneration of Dovercourt Town
Centre and agreed projects for development.
In August 2019, the Council declared a Climate Emergency and has been working with specialised advisers
to prepare the associated Action Plan with the aim of the Council’s activities being ‘carbon neutral’ by
2030. A climate emergency budget of £150,000 was approved to support this work.
Cabinet, in December 2019, approved the re-allocation of budget to support energy efficiency measures
at Community Centres as part of the Council’s commitment to achieving carbon neutrality.
Cabinet, in January 2020, approved funds to support the ‘Tendring4Growth’ corporate plan theme for
sustainable economic growth in the District.
The Leader of the Council, in March 2020, established the Members’ Small Scheme (in the sum of £48,000
from a new Tendring Community Fund (TCF) as part of the response to the Covid-19 emergency by
facilitating grants to organisations nominated by individual Councillors up to £1,000 each.
The Council approved the Annual Capital and Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 at its meeting held
in July 2020 that set out key appraisal criteria for capital investment decisions.
Establishment of a Back to Business initiative supported by the allocation of specific funding of £862,000
to deliver associated activities including Projects and Priorities
D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes
A cross-party Working Party was established in August 2019 and has been overseeing and working
alongside Officers in the preparation of the Climate Emergency Action Plan for the Council.
Cabinet, in July and October 2019, approved asset improvement works to Clacton Leisure Centre
following consideration of a detailed business case.
The Planning Policy & Local Plan Committee, in October 2019, endorsed the ‘Livewell’ Development
Accreditation Scheme being aimed to promote developments considered to make a positive contribution
to health and well-being.
Cabinet, in October 2019, authorised governance arrangements for ‘Gifted Units’ under the terms of
Section 106 Planning Agreements to increase the Council’s housing stock.
Cabinet, in October 2019, following a public consultation, approved, disposal and acquisition of land to
and from Essex County Council to aid the extension of the Sixth Form facility at Clacton County High
School and the improvement of the public open space.
The Council invoked its formal emergency planning structure in March 2020 to directly respond to the
impact of COVID-19, remaining alert to government guidance and put in place internal structures in place
to support the various categories of vulnerable residents and local businesses.
The Council continues to deliver a long term financial sustainability plan during the year with the
underlying key aim of protecting services, as far as reasonably practical, during the on-going and
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challenging public sector financial environment. Early reporting of the direct financial impact of the
Covid-19 crisis was undertaken and will form part of the future quarterly financial performance reporting.
Approval by Council in July 2020, following consideration of recommendations submitted by a cross-party
Constitution Review Portfolio Holder Working Party via Cabinet for amendments to the Council’s
Constitution including its Articles, Procedure Rules and Scheme of Delegation.
Approval by Council in July 2020 of a revised Annual Capital and Treasury Strategy 2020/21 (including
Prudential and Treasury Indicators) and associated treasury management practices to support the
delivery of investment activity that remains in accordance with the relevant Codes of Practice and
guidance.
The Council has internal governance arrangements to support delivery of major projects, which includes
scheduling regular meetings attended by senior officers.
The Council relied upon the urgency provisions within the Constitution and a robust governance
framework was swiftly enacted to enable decisions to be taken early during the coronavirus pandemic.
Such provisions were reviewed following the introduction of emergency legislations.
E. Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capacity of its leadership and the individuals within it
The Officer structure of the Council has continued to be subject to revision to facilitate service delivery
within the resources available responding to evolving priorities and projects, including the establishment
of Assistant Directors based around the Council’s Corporate Plan and priorities.
The Council maintained its accreditation of gold standard of Investors in People as measured against the
new Generation 6 IIP standards.
The initiation of a digital transformation project to deliver improvements to business continuity and
resilience producing efficiencies in working practices.
Reporting to full Council if Members fail to attend meetings within 4 months (rather than 6 months
automatic disqualification) and decisions being taken within the 6 months to extend periods of nonattendance during the pandemic due to on-going illnesses.
The Standards Committee, in October 2019, endorsed the Councillor Development Statement 2019-23 to
ensure Councillors are best equipped to fulfil the range of responsibilities their role entails as a key
component to delivering good governance.
Topical learning and development activities for staff continue to be delivered and available for individual
topics and areas across the Council.
The Human Resources and Council Tax Committee endorsed activities being undertaken in relation to
Employee Engagement and Health & Well-being.
Home working arrangements were implemented for the majority of staff to take effect at the outset of
the pandemic and data was collated to enable redeployments across services, where working at home
was not possible.

F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial
management
 The continuation of a regular comprehensive financial performance report to Management Team and
Members setting out a snapshot of key financial information in one place. This report includes a risk
assessment of key lines of the financial forecast.
 A revised Corporate Risk Register was designed and implemented during the year to strengthen
accessibility to key information and the activities in place or planned to address risks identified.
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Senior Officers attended the Council’s Audit Committee to support them in their assurance work and in
responding to significant governance issues that emerged during the year.
The Internal Audit Team established an open dialogue with the Council’s Senior Management Team on
the organisations risks and risk appetite.
The Council’s dedicated Fraud and Compliance Team continued their comprehensive Housing Tenancy
Audit during the year with properties taken back into the Council’s possession for re-letting or further
action taken as necessary.
Internal audit were a key element ensuring the right internal control arrangements were in place as part
of the council covid-19 response, such as remote home working and decision making arrangements.

G. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability
 Internal audit continue to attend key project boards and working parties through the development of
schemes and initiatives rather than just at the end of the process.
 Regular reporting to management team of key health and safety issues during the year.
 A restructure of the Internal Audit team was undertaken reflecting on the current organisational structure
to provide the right capacity at the right level to fulfil its responsibilities as set out in its associated
Charter.
 All urgent decisions taken by the Leader during the Council’s response to COVID-19 have been published
decisions and formally reported to Cabinet for maximum openness and transparency.
4. Other Governance Issues:
Impact of Coronavirus 19
Coronavirus started to impact on governance during March 2020 and up to the date of publication,
therefore the AGS reflects the impact on governance arrangements during this period. A second
conclusion on the adequacy of governance arrangements during this period has been included to make
clear the impact.
The relevant officers (for example, the Council’s Section 151, Monitoring Officer and Head of Internal
Audit) were actively involved in the Council’s response to COVID-19, especially in relation to service
delivery and governance arrangements discussed as part of the Emergency Planning structure invoked in
early March.
Under the six principles referred to earlier, examples of the impact of COVID on governance have been
included. An action plan is referred to below to undertake a review of the Councils response and ongoing
impact which will form part of Internal Audits work programme for 20/21. The review will cover the
impact on governance falling into the following broad categories:

5.



Impact on business as usual in the delivery of services



New areas of activity as part of the national response to coronavirus and any governance issues
arising



The funding and logistical consequences of delivering the local government response.



Assessment of the longer term disruption and consequences arising from the coronavirus pandemic

OPINION ON THE LEVEL OF ASSURANCE THAT THE GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS CAN PROVIDE
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The framework in place provides a sound basis for delivering good governance within the Council.
The Council has a statutory responsibility for conducting, each financial year, a review of the effectiveness of its
system of internal control. The review of effectiveness is informed by: 



The work of Internal Audit as outlined in the associated annual report
Any issues reported or comment from the Council’s external auditors and other review agencies and
inspectorates
The work of senior managers within the Council who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the governance environment

In practice, review of effectiveness is an ongoing process throughout the year. Set against the backcloth of
ongoing reductions in Government funding of the Council and associated savings targets, action has continued
within the Council in 2019/20 to provide a sustainable and long term basis against which to deliver services.
These changes present governance challenges and risks that have been recognised as part of the process of
managing change.
The Council draws assurance on its governance arrangements from a number of sources, in particular: 

Internal Audit
As set out in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) there is a requirement under PSIAS 2450 that
the Chief Audit Executive must provide an annual report to the Audit Committee, timed to support the
Annual Governance Statement. This must include:





An annual internal audit opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s
governance, risk and control framework (i.e. the control environment);
A summary of the audit work from which the opinion is derived (including reliance placed on work by
other assurance bodies); and
A statement on conformance with the PSIAS and the results of the internal audit Quality Assurance and
Improvement Programme.

The Council adopts a ‘Three Lines of Defence’ assurance model which is taken from the following sources;
1. Senior Management and Departmental Leadership
Under the first line of defence, operational management has ownership, responsibility and accountability
for directly assessing, controlling and mitigating risks.
2. Internal Governance
The second line of defence consists of activities covered by several components of internal governance
(Statutory Officers, Corporate Oversight Functions, Quality Control, IT Security, Data Protection and other
control departments). This line of defence monitors and facilitates the implementation of effective risk
management practices by operational management and assists the risk owners in reporting adequate risk
related information up and down the organisation.
3. Internal Audit
The requirement for an internal audit function in local government is detailed within the Accounts and
Audit Regulations 2015, which states that a relevant body must:
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Undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control
and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance.

Internal Audit Approach
The Internal Audit function undertakes a programme of audits each year to provide the Council and its Audit
Committee with assurance on the adequacy of its system of internal control, governance and risk management
arrangements. The audit programme has been developed to risk based and comprise of different audit
techniques to make it leaner and more supportive of service delivery to meet the Council’s needs.
Internal Audit has continued to work with services on a consultancy basis to support the implementation of
new processes, identify and analyse route cause if necessary and ensure that all relevant employees have the
appropriate training to competently carry out their role. Transformation, Project Management, Procurement
and Risk Management are some of the areas where this type of work has been undertaken and continues to
collaborate resources.
In 2019/20 to date, only three audits from a total of 34 undertaken received an overall audit opinion of
“Improvement Required” where high severity issues were identified. The audits were Planning Enforcement,
Housing Repairs and Maintenance and Housing Allocations Follow Up. The associated improvements actions
remain on-going with regular feedback reported to the Audit Committee throughout the year that supports
the provision of a continuous update on the councils control environment, governance arrangements, material
issues identified and improvement actions.
Annual Opinion 2019/20
The assurance opinion is based on:








Internal Audit work completed during the course of the year;
observations from consultancy/ advisory support;
results of any follow up exercises undertaken in respect of previous years’ internal audit work;
a review of assurance from other providers including those from first and second lines of defence,
independent regulators and peer reviews;
the extent of resources available to deliver the internal audit work; and
the quality and performance of the Internal Audit service and the extent of compliance with the Public
Sector Internal Audit Standards

Limitations to the Annual Opinion
As the COVID-19 pandemic forced a national lockdown in March 2020 and as a result forced the Council in to
remote working and in some areas a complete halt on service provision other than emergency work, it did
become particularly challenging to complete outstanding audits. However, with exception to one consultative
review (Procurement) and one core audit (Health and Safety), fieldwork has been completed on all other audits
within the audit plan. Health and Safety priorities shifted in March 2020 which meant their workload increased
dramatically due to the pandemic. Therefore a decision was taken to suspend work on the audit to support the
Health and Safety Team during the lockdown period.
The Head of Internal Audit Annual Opinion
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The overall direction of travel regarding the internal control environment since 2018/19 has improved in core
areas such as the Council’s key systems, there are some service areas requiring further improvement and others
where expected controls and risk mitigation has not been implemented as expected; however, as the majority
of audits in 2019/20 continued to receive an adequate or substantial assurance opinion it is reasonable to
suggest that there has not been a considerable deterioration in internal control and operational processes
within the year.
Governance arrangements and internal controls have been evaluated in all audits within the plan, albeit with
varying levels of scope. Senior Management continue to review strategic risks on a regular basis within
Management Team and the Corporate Risk Register is reviewed bi-annually with any feedback reported to
Management Team for consideration.
The majority of the year has been unaffected by the COVID-19 pandemic and therefore the annual opinion will
reflect normal operations. However, governance arrangements and key systems will need to be reviewed from
March 2020 to provide assurance that good governance and control remain strong in light of the procedural
changes across all service areas.
The opinion of the Internal Audit Manager is drawn from all of the information reported above, external reviews
carried out throughout the year from other assurance providers and through the ongoing work in supporting
Senior Management and Services in delivering the Councils objectives and vision.
The Internal Audit function is expected to commission an independent assessment on compliance with the
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards that have been set by the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) and adopted
by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (Cipfa) every five years. Internal Audit received an
independent report in 2017/18 concluding conformance with the standards which was reported to the Audit
Committee. Although this assessment is undertaken, the Internal Audit function must continue to complete an
annual Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP) which is a self-assessment questionnaire against
the PSIAS. A (QAIP) was completed and presented to the Audit Committee for review in January 2020.

The Internal Audit Manager is satisfied that sufficient work was completed in 2019/20 to draw a reasonable
conclusion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s activities. The internal control environment
continues to remain stable with no significant changes from 2018/19, an open dialogue with Senior
Management on risk remains in place and a generally sound system of internal control has been assessed across
the majority of the Councils operational areas. Therefore, an overall unqualified opinion of Adequate Assurance
can be provided.


External Audit
The Council is subject to an annual programme of external audit work associated with the Council’s Statement
of Accounts and value for money arrangements.
Each year the auditor’s overall findings are brought together in an Audit Results Report and Annual Audit Letter
(available on the Council’s website). Action is taken on issues identified, with any material ongoing issues
incorporated within Significant Governance Issues below.



Other Review Agencies and Inspectorates
The Council is subject to inspection and review by a number of other agencies and inspectorates. The Council
aims to take action to address any issues that arise from such inspections and reviews, and to improve
governance arrangements where it is appropriate to do so.
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Senior Managers
In addition to the review work undertaken above to review and strengthen the Council’s Governance
Framework, the Council’s senior managers have participated in a review of the effectiveness of the system of
internal control providing assurance regarding the governance / control environment for their areas of
responsibility.
6. ISSUES RAISED IN THE PREVIOUS YEAR’S ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
In respect of the governance issues identified as part of last year’s Annual Governance Statement, the actions
undertaken to address and resolve those issues included: Governance Issue
Managing risks and
performance through robust
internal control and strong
public financial management
The Council continues to deliver
the ten year approach to
budgeting, aimed at maximising
savings opportunities whilst
delivering growth in underlying
income to deliver a balanced
budget over a ten year forecast.
Risks exist to the plan should
savings not achieved and
income generation schemes not
materialise while using nonrecurrent reserves to addressing
budget gaps is not sustainable
should austerity continue.

Required Action(s)
Continue to develop the long term
forecast with a focus on:
 Ensuring the robustness of
assumptions used in financial
planning/forecasting.
 Prioritising resources whilst
maintaining services wherever
possible.
 Undertaking targeted reviews
of significant areas for cost
pressures
 Continuing to identify
opportunities for savings, with
the development of a 4 year
plan for delivery.
Delivery of a balanced budget in
2020/21 in-line with the forecast.

Completed Action(s)
The budget for 2020/21 was agreed by
Full Council on 11 February 2020
which was based on the most up to
long term forecast.
The long term forecast remains
broadly on target with the delivery of
annual surpluses over the life of the
forecast still anticipated to be
achieved.
To isolate the on-going revenue
forecast from potential one-off costs
associated with the maintenance of
Council Assets, an initial fund of
£1.134m was agreed by Cabinet on 13
September to support costs that may
emerge over the remaining years of
the forecast. This will be
complimented by a corporate review
of the Council’s operational assets to
prioritise spending from this fund over
the next few years
A savings plan covering the period
from 2021/22 and beyond will be
developed during the year.

Determining the interventions
necessary to optimise the
achievement of the intended
outcomes
By strengthening the linkages
between the Corporate Plan
priorities and the Council’s
investment plans.

To identify and maintain an
ongoing corporate investment plan
(including the capital programme)
supporting delivery of the Council’s
priorities including the
development of relevant strategies
as necessary.
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As part of delivering against the
corporate plan and associated
priorities, an investment plan will be
developed as early as possible from
2020/21 which will be directly linked
to the Council’s budget and evolving
financial position and supported by
the reprioritisation of budgets /
existing funding and/or as part of the
long term forecast.
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Ensuring openness and
comprehensive stakeholder
engagement
Supporting the delivery of key
housing and development
projects and priorities through
open and transparent decision
making (including informal
briefings). Demonstrating
effective use of the council’s
resources throughout
continuation of the project
development. This will include
robust governance
arrangements including risk
management, funding, skills and
capacity.

Developing the entity’s
capacity, including the capacity
of its leadership and the
individuals within it
Ensuring compliance of the
Council’s governance
arrangements through project
board reviews and delivery of
transformation projects,
through the monitoring of key
policies.

Consultation on a draft Housing
Strategy and approval of a
business/action plan setting out
delivery, funding and performance
of key housing and development
building projects such as:
 Development of Jaywick
Sands;
 Garden Communities; and
 Other relevant sites across
the district.
Additional specific statutory
consultation on the Local Plan and
future development of the Garden
Communities project.

For the relevant project board or
lead officers to identify sufficient
resources to demonstrate and
monitor compliance with the
Council’s policies and procedures
(forming the Governance
framework) during delivery and
embedding the final arrangements.
To complete the roll out of the
revised business planning and
project management approach.
Launch the Cabinet report writing
through modern.gov using the new
template and processes.
Recruit to the Senior Governance
Officer post.
Develop an induction and training
programme for the newly elected
Councillors covering a range of
topics, including dedicated
chairmanship training and an
overview and scrutiny workshop.
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Following consultation, the Housing
Strategy has been recommended by
Cabinet to Full Council for adoption.
Options to deliver further housing in
Jaywick Sands remain in progress with
discussions underway with external
partners to develop the most
advantageous approach that balances
the right housing and tenure with
viability / affordability.
The Planning Inspector’s decision
relating to Section 1 of the Local Plan
has been received endorsing the
development of the Tendring
Colchester Garden Community. The
next stage of the project for placemaking and delivery, with associated
governance arrangements will be set
out in future reports with any
associated consultation undertaken as
necessary.
A Project Board has been established
with its regular meetings taking place
from August 2019. The Project Board
will continue to take a key role in
supporting the development of
projects / business cases, which will
include a review of key outcomes /
deliverables once the project has been
fully implemented.
A revised business planning and
project management approach has
been rolled out across the Council
with awareness / Q&A sessions
undertaken at departmental
manager’s meetings and senior
manager’s forums.
The roll out of the functionality of
Modern.Gov has been delayed due to
the authority’s response to Covid-19
and moving to virtual meetings,
recruitment to a vacancy will assist
with developing Modern.gov over a
phased approach in 2020/21.
The new Assistant Directors have
commenced a review of capacity
across the Council following the
management restructure.
13

Member development and training
opportunities have been delivered
including a session covering skills,
practice and approach to chairing
different meetings, and affordable
housing for the Planning Committee.
The overall member development
programme is now underpinned by a
new Member Development Statement
and is ongoing and in addition to the
All Member Briefing programme.
Training on chairmanship took place in
June (1:1 sessions) and September (a
group session) and overview and
scrutiny training was provided in June
2019 & 2020. Access to the LGA’s
online training portal for Councillors is
being rolled out and where LGA
courses support Executive/Scrutiny or
other training needs, attendance at
these is being facilitated. Training for
Councillors is aligned to best support
the delivery of the new Corporate
Plan.
Managing risks and
performance through robust
internal control and strong
public financial management

The work associated with this action
will commence in 2020/21 as it will
form a key role of the Senior
Governance Officer post as part of the
capacity referred to above.

Behaving with integrity,
demonstrating strong
commitment to ethical values,
and respecting the rule of law
Ensure the Local Code of
Corporate Governance and key
policies and procedures are up
to date.

Through a centralised review
develop an action and monitoring
plan to include policy review dates
and associated decision making.

In the interim the Business Support
team have developed a spreadsheet
which holds information on policies
and procedures published on the
Council’s intranet. This is being
utilised to contain information on
reviewing and updating policies.

7. SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES
To support the Council in addressing some of the key issues and improvements that have emerged from the
annual review of effectiveness, including any items identified as part of the work of the External Auditor, the
following actions have been identified : Governance Principle & Issue

Required Action(s)
Carried Forward and Updated from 19/20
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Implementing good practices in transparency,
reporting, and audit to deliver effective
accountability
Ensuring compliance of the Council’s
governance arrangements through project
board reviews.



Review of project outcomes being undertaken by
the Project Board to support future decision making
and delivery

Utilising the Council’s systems to implement
best practice for drafting, reporting and decision
making



Commence the roll out of the functionality of
Modern.gov over a phased approach in 2020/21.



Finalise the operational capacity review and
implement any recommended and approved
staffing restructures.

Developing the entity’s capacity, including the
capacity of its leadership and the individuals
within it.
Ensuring the Council has the appropriate
structures in place to support delivery of the
Corporate Plan following the Senior
Management restructure.

New and Updated for 20/21
Determining the interventions necessary to
optimise the achievement of the intended
outcomes

As part of the Back to Business and Recovery Plan:


Managing risks and performance through
robust internal control and strong public
financial management

Undertake a corporate review of the Council’s
operational assets to prioritise spending from an
associated reserve over the next few years;



By strengthening the linkages between the
Corporate Plan priorities and the Council’s
investment plans along with review of the
longer term impact of COVID-19

to develop an investment plan during 2020/21
which will be directly linked to the Council’s budget
and evolving financial position and supported by the
reprioritisation of budgets / existing funding and/or
as part of the long term forecast; and



conduct an audit review in relation to the
effectiveness of the Council's response to the
COVID-19 including a review of the lessons learnt
from the Council’s response and Longer term
consequences.

Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable
economic, social and environmental benefits
Determining the interventions necessary to
optimise the achievement of the intended
outcomes
To set out the Council’s vision following the
Council’s Climate Emergency declaration of the
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Council’s activities being ‘carbon neutral’ by
2030.



Prepare an Action Plan for approval by both the
Cabinet and Council to form part of the Council’s
Policy Framework



Review of the Council’s Equality and Diversity
strategy, policies and procedures



Developing the Council’s approach and adopting
principles for community engagement.

Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong
commitment to ethical values, and respecting
the rule of law
Ensure the Local Code of Corporate Governance
and key policies and procedures are up to date.
Ensuring openness and comprehensive
stakeholder engagement
Establishing a corporate framework to support
community engagement

Progress regarding these governance issues will be monitored throughout the forthcoming year by the Council’s
Audit Committee.
8. CONCLUSION
We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the effectiveness of the governance
framework by the Audit Committee, and that the arrangements continue to be regarded as fit for purpose in
accordance with the governance framework.
We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the significant governance issues identified in this
statement, and to further enhance our governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address
the needs for improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor their
implementation as part of our next annual review.
Ian Davidson
Chief Executive

Councillor Neil Stock OBE
Leader of the Council

Date:

Date:

The Chief Executive and the Leader of the Council have certified the formal Annual Governance Statement, which
is held by the Assistant Director Finance and IT and can be reviewed upon request.
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Report to the Audit Committee
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WELCOME

We have pleasure in presenting our Audit Completion Report to the Audit
Committee. This report is an integral part of our communication strategy
with you, a strategy which is designed to ensure effective two
way communication throughout the audit process with those charged
with governance.
It summarises the results of completing the planned audit approach for
the year ended 31 March 2020, specific audit findings and areas requiring
further discussion and/or the attention of the Audit Committee. At the
completion stage of the audit it is essential that we engage with the Audit
Committee on the results of our audit of the financial statements and use of
resources comprising: audit work on key risk areas, including significant
estimates and judgements made by management, critical accounting
policies, any significant deficiencies in internal controls, and the
presentation and disclosure in the financial statements.
We look forward to discussing these matters with you at the Audit
Committee meeting and to receiving your input.
In the meantime if you would like to discuss any aspects in advance of the
meeting we would be happy to do so.

Lisa Clampin – Engagement Lead
t: 01473 320716
m: 07791 397160
e: Lisa.Clampin@bdo.co.uk

Nuwan Indika - Manager
t: 01473 320807
m: 07966 243886
e: Nuwan.Indika@bdo.co.uk

Tawanda Mutenga - Senior
t: 01473 320711
e: Tawanda.Mutenga@bdo.co.uk

We would also like to take this opportunity to thank the management and
staff of the Council for the co-operation and assistance provided during the
audit.

Lisa Clampin, Partner
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Appointed Auditor
19 November 2020

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed primarily for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements and use of resources. This report has been prepared solely for the use of the Audit Committee and Those Charged with Governance. In preparing this report we do not
accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person. For more information on our respective responsibilities please see the appendices.
Tendring District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2020

3 | BDO LLP

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

OVERVIEW
Executive summary
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Financial statements
Audit differences
Other reporting matters
Use of resources

This summary provides an overview
of the audit matters that we believe
are important to the Audit
Committee in reviewing the results
of the audit of the financial
statements and use of resources of
the Council for the year ended 31
March 2020.
It is also intended to promote
effective communication and
discussion and to ensure that the
results of the audit appropriately
incorporate input from those
charged with governance.

Control environment
Audit report

Overview

Audit report

Our audit work is substantially
complete and subject to the
successful resolution of outstanding
matters, we anticipate issuing our
opinion on the financial statements
and use of resources for the year
ended 31 March 2020 in line with the
agreed timetable.

We anticipate issuing an unqualified
audit opinion on the financial
statements and use of resources.

Outstanding matters are listed on
page 40 in the appendices.
There were no significant changes to
the planned audit approach and no
additional significant audit risks
have been identified.
No restrictions were placed on
our work.

Independence and fees
Appendices contents

The updated financial statements
include disclosures about a material
valuation uncertainty in respect of
‘Other land and buildings’ within
Property, Plant and Equipment, and
‘Property’ assets within the Local
Government Pension Scheme Assets,
due to the impact of Coronavirus
(Covid-19). We anticipate including
an Emphasis of Matter paragraph in
our audit report, referring to this
material valuation uncertainty. This
does not represent a qualification of
the opinion, but sign-posts the
reader to certain disclosures in the
financial statements that we
consider are key to understanding
the financial statements.
We have no exceptions to report in
relation to the arrangements in
place to secure economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in the use of
resources.

Tendring District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2020
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THE NUMBERS
Executive summary

Contents

Final materiality

Material misstatements

Unadjusted audit differences

Introduction

Final materiality was determined
based on gross expenditure.

We did not identify any material
misstatements.

We did not identify any audit
differences that have not been
adjusted for.

Executive summary
Overview
The numbers
Other matters

There were no changes to final
materiality and triviality from that
reported in our Audit Planning
Report.
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Financial statements
Audit differences
Other reporting matters
Use of resources
Control environment
Audit report

CLEARLY TRIVIAL
£69,000

Independence and fees
Appendices contents

2020
MATERIALITY

£2,300,000
Unadjusted differences vs. materiality

0%

Tendring District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2020
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OTHER MATTERS
Executive summary

Contents

Financial reporting

Introduction

•

Executive summary
Overview
The numbers
Other matters

Page 40

•

No significant accounting policy changes have
been identified impacting the current year.

•

Going concern disclosures are deemed
sufficient.

•

The Narrative Report and other information
included in the Statement of Accounts with the
financial statements is consistent with the
financial statements and our knowledge
acquired in the course of the audit.

•

The Annual Governance Statement is not
inconsistent or misleading with other
information we are aware of.

•

The Council is below the audit threshold of
£500 million for a full assurance review of the
Whole of Government Accounts Data Collection
Tool (DCT).

Financial statements
Audit differences
Other reporting matters
Use of resources
Control environment
Audit report
Independence and fees
Appendices contents

We have not identified any non-compliance
with accounting policies or the applicable
accounting framework.

Other matters that require discussion or
confirmation
•

Confirmation on fraud, contingent liabilities and
subsequent events.

•

Letter of Representation.

Independence
We confirm that the firm and its partners and staff
involved in the audit remain independent of the
Council in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Council’s (FRC's) Ethical Standard.

Tendring District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2020
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORONAVIRUS
The effects on year-end reporting and auditing

Contents
Introduction
Executive summary
Financial statements
Coronavirus
Coronavirus 2
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Our methodology
Audit risks overview
Management override of controls
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Expenditure recognition
Valuation of non-current assets
Valuation of non-current assets
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities
Going Concern
Other matters
Matters requiring additional
consideration
Audit differences
Other reporting matters
Use of resources
Control environment

The emergence and spread of Coronavirus has had an effect on business and
markets around the world. Guidance is now available to assist in identifying
the potential corporate reporting and auditing issues and consequences of
the virus, and there have been a number of Local Government specific
issues, including relaxations to accounts preparation and audit timetables.

•

The assessment needs to consider the entity’s resilience through three
lenses - operational capability (closed locations, reduced workforce
through illness, breakdown in supply chain), demand for services (effect
on income and expenditure) and structural finance (liquidity and access
to committed facilities).

However, given the fast moving and ever changing nature of the situation,
aspects of this corporate guidance will change over time. The outbreak is an
in-year event and will impact the valuations, estimations and disclosures
reflected in the financial statements for periods ending on or after 31 March
2020.

•

If the directors consider that there are material uncertainties, this will
need to be referenced in the relevant disclosure and will result in a
material uncertainty reference in the audit report (albeit the audit
opinion is not qualified).

•

The going concern disclosures in the basis of preparation note in the
financial statements will also need to be enhanced.

Going concern
In respect of going concern, directors are required to consider events that
have occurred both before and after the balance sheet date when
determining whether there is a material uncertainty over the ability to
continue as a going concern. Consequently, forecast financial information,
sensitivity analysis (which may require additional and/or different potential
variances to be included) and compliance with bank and other covenants will
need to factor in the estimated effects of the Coronavirus pandemic.

Within local government, the Government’s commitment to ensure that local
authorities are adequately compensated for additional expenditure incurred
or income lost directly as a result of the Coronavirus pandemic, removes
some of the uncertainty faced by non-public sector entities. However, the
directors’ assessment of going concern, and associated disclosures in the
financial statements, are still expected to fully consider and record the
impact of Coronavirus.

A common approach that is developing, and which BDO is encouraging from
directors, in relation to each set of financial statements that is prepared for
audit is:

The auditor’s review of directors’ assessments must be greater than normal,
will require more evidence, and will continue to be performed through to
the point of signing the audit report.

•

The assessment of going concern directors are required to undertake
needs to explicitly consider the impact of Coronavirus to accommodate
the uncertainty prevailing and must cover the period of at least 12
months from the date of signing the financial statements. The assessment
may not be limited to this period if there are foreseen events or
conditions beyond this period which may influence the economic
decisions of users.

Audit report
Independence and fees
Appendices contents
Tendring District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2020
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CORONAVIRUS 2
The effects on year-end reporting and auditing

Contents
Introduction

Financial reporting implications

Narrative reporting implications

Grant funding

The Annual Governance Statement should clearly set out the risks arising
from Coronavirus. The Council has included sufficient disclosures within the
Annual Governance Statement concerning the risks arising from Coronavirus.

Coronavirus 3

Grant funding received before 31 March 2020 to fund expenditure related to
the Coronavirus pandemic will need to be assessed for conditions and
recognised in accordance with the requirements of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code).
The Council has received £89k grant to fund relevant expenses in 2019/20
and we have not performed any detailed audit procedures on this amount as
it was not material.

Our methodology

Valuations of financial and non-financial assets and liabilities:

Audit risks overview

Data used in valuations of financial and non-financial assets and liabilities
should be based on forecasts, projections and assumptions that were
reasonable and supportable at the balance sheet date. For 31 March 2020
year ends, given that the significant development and spread of Coronavirus
occurred within the financial year and that the World Health Organisation
announced a global health emergency on 31 January 2020, the estimated
impact of the Coronavirus pandemic will need to be factored into this data.
The Council’s external property valuer has reported the valuation on the
basis of material valuation uncertainty (further details on this are set out on
page 14-15). As set out on page 17, a similar material uncertainty disclosure
has been included for property assets within the gross pension assets.

Executive summary
Financial statements
Coronavirus
Coronavirus 2
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Management override of controls
Expenditure recognition
Valuation of non-current assets
Valuation of non-current assets
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities
Going Concern
Other matters
Matters requiring additional
consideration
Audit differences
Other reporting matters
Use of resources
Control environment

Subsequent events disclosure
Significant income and expenditure incurred as a result of the Coronavirus
pandemic after 31 March 2020 and up to the date of signing may need to be
disclosed as a non-adjusting post balance sheet event, if considered of such
importance as to affect the ability of users of the financial statements to
make proper evaluations. The Council has included a non-adjusting
subsequent event in respect of the potential impact of Covid-19 in the
updated accounts.
Leases:

Local authorities will need to monitor developments and ensure that they
are providing up-to-date and meaningful disclosures when preparing their
Statement of Accounts.
Other guidance
The National Audit Office (NAO) has published a Guide for audit committees
on financial reporting and management during the Cornavirus pandemic. This
guide aims to help audit committee members support and challenge the
organisations they work with in the following areas:
•

Annual reports

•

Financial reporting

•

The control environment

•

Regularity of expenditure.

In each section of the guide, the NAO has set out some questions to help
audit committee members understand and challenge activities. Each section
can be used on its own, although the NAO would recommend that audit
committee members consider the whole guide, as the questions in other
sections may be interrelated.
The guide may also be used as organisations and audit committees consider
reporting in the 2020/21 period when more specific and detailed reporting
on the outbreak will be required.
The guide is available through the following link:
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/guidance-for-audit-and-risk-committeeson-financial-reporting-and-management-during-covid-19/

IFRS 16 Leases will be effective from 1 April 2021 (a further one year
deferral).

Audit report
Independence and fees
Appendices contents
Tendring District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2020
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CORONAVIRUS 3
The effects on year-end reporting and auditing

Contents
Introduction
Executive summary
Financial statements

Implications for auditors

Coronavirus

Risk assessment:

Sufficient and appropriate audit evidence:

Coronavirus 2

•

•

Expenditure recognition

The impact of Coronavirus on going concern is a risk focus area for the
audit, and in some cases may be a significant risk. As part of our on-going
risk assessment procedures, we need to think about other specific areas
and balances where Coronavirus might cause an issue and if this presents
an additional risk. This includes the specific considerations in relation to
the risks of having services in an affected area and supply chain issues in
relation to items coming from these locations. In summary there may be
a heightened risk of misstatement for:

Valuation of non-current assets

–

The valuation and disclosure of financial and non-financial assets
including property, plant and equipment (PPE), investment
properties, intangibles, investments and accounts receivable

Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities

–

Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities

The valuation and disclosure of financial obligations and any lending
covenants

–

Going concern and/or working capital assessment and disclosure

–

Risk disclosures

–

Subsequent event disclosures

–

As noted above, entities need to consider their reporting of principal
risks and uncertainties and we then need to consider this detail as
part of our ‘review and consider’ of the Narrative Report and Annual
Governance Statement, in particular where we believe there are risks
missing from the detail.

Coronavirus 3
Our methodology
Audit risks overview
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Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities
Going Concern
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Personnel from audited entities may be unable to carry out their roles on
site and/or be available to meet physically with our audit teams.
Likewise, our people may be unable to work at audited entity sites or to
travel to our offices, thereby potentially affecting the performance,
review and supervision of the engagement team, including that of
component or other auditors. We need to:
–

Consider the impact on the audited entity

–

Consider alternative ways of working including the use of our
technology tools

–

Consider implications for the quality of audit evidence and reporting.

•

In undertaking audit work on the valuation of property, particularly
specialised property valued using the Depreciated Replacement Cost
method and Modern Equivalent Assets assumptions (including alternative
site models), auditors are able to draw upon relevant information and
indices collated, assessed and reported on by a firm of valuers, Gerald
Eve, as commissioned on behalf of local public auditors by the NAO.

•

Valuers are also encouraged by updated RICS guidance to include caveats
within valuation reports relating to potential material uncertainties in
their assessed valuations. In these cases, such caveats should be included
within the Council’s financial statements and may be referred to by the
auditor in their opinion/report.

As noted in the previous page the Council has disclosed sufficient
disclosures within the Annual Governance Statement and in the Narrative
Report concerning the impact of Coronavirus. Financial statements
reflect expected disclosures around the material valuation uncertainty in
respect of property valuation, and disclosure of subsequent events.

Independence and fees
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Audit risks overview
Management override of controls

We obtain our audit evidence primarily through substantive testing
As part of our risk assessment procedures we documented the systems and
controls in place insofar as they are relevant to the preparation of the
financial statements. Given the control activities we identified and the
nature of activities, we determined that substantive testing to directly verify
items in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) and
Balance Sheet would be the most effective approach for our audit. The only
exception to this is housing benefit expenditure for which part of the
assurance is obtained from the controls testing. This is consistent with the
approach we took in the prior year.

Expenditure recognition
Valuation of non-current assets
Valuation of non-current assets
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities
Going Concern
Other matters
Matters requiring additional
consideration
Audit differences
Other reporting matters
Use of resources
Control environment
Audit report
Independence and fees
Appendices contents
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AUDIT RISKS OVERVIEW
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As identified in our Audit Planning Report dated 16 March 2020, we assessed the following matters as being the most significant risks of material
misstatement in the financial statements. These include those risks which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources
in the audit and the direction of the efforts of the engagement team.
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Audit Risk

Risk Rating

Significant Management
Judgement Involved

Use of Experts
Required

Error
Identified

Control Findings
to be reported

Discussion points / Letter
of Representation

Management
override of controls

Significant

Yes

No

No

No

No

Expenditure
recognition

Significant

No

No

No

No

No

Valuation of noncurrent assets

Significant

Yes

Yes

Work in progress

No

Yes

Valuation of pension
assets and liabilities

Significant

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

Management override of controls
Expenditure recognition
Valuation of non-current assets
Valuation of non-current assets
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities
Going Concern
Other matters
Matters requiring additional
consideration
Audit differences
Other reporting matters
Use of resources
Control environment
Audit report
Independence and fees

Areas requiring your attention
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MANAGEMENT OVERRIDE OF CONTROLS
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Auditing standards
presume that
management is in a
unique position to
perpetrate fraud by
overriding controls.

Management override of controls

Risk description

Results and conclusions

ISA (UK) 240 - The auditor’s responsibilities relating to
fraud in an audit of financial statements requires us to
presume that the risk of management override of
controls is present and significant in all entities.

From the work completed we have not identified any
evidence of systematic bias or management override in
the processing of journals entries and other
adjustments.

Work performed

Material accounting estimates with a higher degree of
estimation uncertainty for the Council included
valuation of properties and pension assets and
liabilities. Our audit work on these accounting
estimates are set out in the following pages. The audit
work performed provided reasonable assurance that
the accounting estimates are reasonable and free from
management bias.

We carried out the following planned audit procedures:
•

We reviewed and verified journal entries made in
the year, agreeing the journals to supporting
documentation. We determined key risk
characteristics to filter the population of journals.
We used our IT team to assist with the journal
extraction;

•

Reviewed estimates and judgements applied by
management in the financial statements to assess
their appropriateness and the existence of any
systematic bias;

Expenditure recognition
Valuation of non-current assets
Valuation of non-current assets
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities

Significant risk

Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities

Normal risk

Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities

Significant management
judgement

Going Concern

Use of experts

Other matters

Unadjusted error

Matters requiring additional
consideration

Adjusted error

Audit differences
Other reporting matters
Use of resources
Control environment

Additional disclosure required

•

Obtained an understanding of the business rationale
for significant transactions that are outside the
normal course of business for the entity or that
otherwise appear to be unusual; and

•

Reviewed unadjusted audit differences for
indications of bias or deliberate misstatement.

We have not identified any unusual transactions or
transactions that are outside the normal course of
business for the Council.
We have not identified any management bias or
deliberate misstatements by reviewing the unadjusted
audit differences.

Significant control findings to
be reported
Letter of representation point

Audit report
Independence and fees
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EXPENDITURE RECOGNITION

Contents
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Risk description

Results and conclusions
Our testing on expenditure cut off did not identify any
missing or incorrectly treated expenditure.

Management override of controls

In the public sector the risk of fraud in revenue
recognition is modified by Practice Note 10 issued by
the Financial Reporting Council. This states that
auditors should also consider the risk that material
misstatements may occur through the manipulation of
expenditure recognition. For the Council, we consider
the risk of fraud to be in respect of the cut-off of
expenditure at year-end.

Expenditure recognition

Work performed

Financial statements
Coronavirus
Coronavirus 2
Coronavirus 3

For public sector bodies
the risk of fraud
related to expenditure
is relevant.

Our methodology
Audit risks overview
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We checked that expenditure is recognised in the
correct accounting period by substantively testing the
treatment of a sample of expenditure around year-end.

Valuation of non-current assets
Valuation of non-current assets
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities

Significant risk

Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities

Normal risk

Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities

Significant management
judgement

Going Concern

Use of experts

Other matters

Unadjusted error

Matters requiring additional
consideration

Adjusted error

Audit differences
Other reporting matters
Use of resources
Control environment

Additional disclosure required
Significant control findings to
be reported
Letter of representation point

Audit report
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VALUATION OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS
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The valuation of noncurrent assets is a
significant risk as it
involves a high degree
of estimation
uncertainty.

Our methodology
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Audit risks overview
Management override of controls
Expenditure recognition
Valuation of non-current assets
Valuation of non-current assets
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities

Significant risk
Normal risk
Significant management
judgement
Use of experts

Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities

Unadjusted error

Going Concern

Adjusted error

Other matters

Additional disclosure required

Matters requiring additional
consideration

Significant control findings to
be reported

Audit differences
Other reporting matters
Use of resources

Letter of representation point

Risk description

Results and conclusions

Local authorities are required to ensure that the
carrying value of land, buildings and dwellings is not
materially different to the current value (operational
assets) or fair value (investment properties) at the
balance sheet date.

At the time of drafting, our work on the valuation of
non current assets is still in progress but we expect it
to be completed by the time of the Audit Committee
where a verbal update will be given.

The Council applies an annual revaluation process
under which the assets that had significant change in
value during the year are subject to full revaluation
and all other assets are revalued on a desktop basis. All
assets are subject to full revaluation at least every 5
years.
Due to the significant value of the Council’s land,
buildings, dwellings and investment properties and the
high degree of estimation uncertainty, there is a risk
over the valuation of these assets where valuations are
based on assumptions.
Work performed
We carried out the following planned audit procedures:
•

Reviewed the instructions provided to the valuer
and the valuer’s skills and expertise in order to
determine if we can rely on the management
expert;

•

Checked that the basis of valuation for assets
valued in year is appropriate based on their usage;

•

Reviewed accuracy and completeness of
information provided to the valuer, such as rental
agreements and floor area sizes;

•

Reviewed assumptions used by the valuer and
movements against relevant indices for similar
classes of assets; and

•

Followed up valuation movements that appear
unusual.

Control environment
Audit report
Independence and fees
Appendices contents
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VALUATION OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS
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Management override of controls
Expenditure recognition
Valuation of non-current assets
Valuation of non-current assets
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities
Going Concern
Other matters
Matters requiring additional
consideration
Audit differences
Other reporting matters
Use of resources
Control environment

Assessment of
significant
accounting estimate
Overview

Discussion

Council dwellings are
Council dwellings
valued by reference to
Work in progress.
open market value
less a social housing
discount.
Land and buildings are
valued by reference to
existing use market
Other land and buildings (including specialist buildings)
values.
Work in progress.
Some specialist
buildings are valued at
depreciated
replacement cost by
reference to building
indices.
Investment properties
Investment properties
Work in progress.
are valued by
reference to highest
and best use market
value.
Impact
< lower

higher >

Audit report
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VALUATION OF PENSION ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Contents
Introduction
Executive summary
Financial statements
Coronavirus
Coronavirus 2
Coronavirus 3
Our methodology

Page 50

Audit risks overview
Management override of controls

The valuation of the
pension assets and
liabilities is a
significant risk as it
involves a high degree
of estimation
uncertainty.

Expenditure recognition
Valuation of non-current assets
Valuation of non-current assets
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities

Significant risk
Normal risk
Significant management
judgement

Going Concern

Use of experts

Other matters

Unadjusted error

Matters requiring additional
consideration

Adjusted error
Additional disclosure required

Audit differences
Other reporting matters
Use of resources
Control environment

Risk description
The net pension liability comprises the Council’s share of the market value of assets held in the Essex Pension Fund and
the estimated future liability to pay pensions.
The valuation of the defined benefit obligation is a complex calculation involving a number of significant judgements and
assumptions. The actuarial estimate of the pension fund liability uses information on current, deferred and retired
member data and applies various actuarial assumptions over pension increases, salary increases, mortality, commutation
take up and discount rates to calculate the net present value of the liability.
There is a risk that the membership data and cash flows provided to the actuary at year end may not be accurate, and
that the actuary uses inappropriate assumptions to value the liability. Relatively small adjustments to assumptions used
can have a material impact on the Council’s share of the scheme liability.
The investment portfolio of the Pension Fund includes a significant proportion of assets the valuation of which may be
subject to a significant level of assumption and estimation, and valuations may not be based on observable market data.
Due to the significance of these valuations, even a small change in assumptions and estimates could have a material
impact on the overall valuation. There is a risk that valuation of pension assets may be based on inappropriate
assumptions and estimates, and the share of assets allocated to the Council may not be accurate.
Work performed
We carried out the following planned audit procedures:
•

Reviewed the competence of the management expert (actuary);

•

Reviewed the reasonableness of the assumptions used in the calculation against other local government actuaries and
other observable data;

•

Reviewed the controls in place for providing accurate membership data to the actuary;

•

Contacted the pension fund auditor and requested confirmation of the controls in place for providing accurate
membership data to the actuary and testing of that data, and obtained assurance from the auditor of the pension
fund over the reasonableness of the valuation of pension fund assets at 31 March 2020;

•

Checked that any significant changes in membership data have been communicated to the actuary; and

•

Agreed the disclosures to the information provided by the pension fund actuary.

Significant control findings to
be reported
Letter of representation point

Audit report
Independence and fees
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VALUATION OF PENSION ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Continued
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The valuation of the
pension assets and
liabilities is a
significant risk as it
involves a high degree
of estimation
uncertainty.

Coronavirus 2
Coronavirus 3
Our methodology
Audit risks overview

Significant risk

Expenditure recognition

Normal risk
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Management override of controls

Valuation of non-current assets
Valuation of non-current assets
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities

Significant management
judgement
Use of experts
Unadjusted error
Adjusted error

Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities

Additional disclosure required

Going Concern

Significant control findings to
be reported

Other matters
Matters requiring additional
consideration
Audit differences
Other reporting matters
Use of resources
Control environment
Audit report
Independence and fees
Appendices contents

Letter of representation point

Results and conclusions
Our review of skills and expertise of the actuary, alongside the assurance from PwC consulting actuary, confirmed that
we can rely on the management expert.
Our review of the reasonableness of assumptions used to calculate the present value of future pension obligations is
noted in the following page.
Essex Pension Fund has established controls and procedures to ensure completeness and accuracy of membership data
provided to the actuary. The pension fund auditor, on our behalf, has reviewed these controls and confirmed that their
review of the controls to ensure data provided to the actuary is complete and accurate did not identify any issues.
We obtained a letter of assurance from the pension fund auditor which confirmed that the auditor has obtained the final
data return submitted to the actuary in respect of the triennial valuation and agreed the number of members to the
member administration system. The pension fund auditor has reconciled the number of members by each category
(active members, deferred members and pensioners) per the final data return to the membership data reported in the
final triennial valuation report. The pension fund auditor has also selected a sample of 40 members across the whole
pension fund, split between active members, deferred members and pensioners, and has tested the key data points such
as date of birth, gender, pensionable salary and qualifying service period etc. to underlying supporting documents. This
audit work has not identified any issues.
In respect of the share of pension fund assets attributable to the Council, we obtained assurance from the pension fund
auditor, who, on our behalf, has performed detailed testing over investment assets and confirmed that no material
issues have been identified. We reviewed the share of pension assets allocated to the Council in the current and prior
year. In the prior year, the Council’s share of pension assets was 1.90% and is 1.88% in 2019/20, which also provides
assurance that the assets allocated to the Council is reasonable.
The pension fund auditor has confirmed in their assurance letter that the valuation of property assets has been reported
on the basis of ‘material valuation uncertainty’ due to Covid-19, and this is in line with guidance from Royal Institute of
Chartered Surveyors (RICS). As reported in Note 31 to the financial statements, share of property assets within the gross
pension assets is £11,206k. We have therefore requested management to include additional disclosures about the matter.
We anticipate including an Emphasis of Matter paragraph within our audit opinion to refer to this.
From discussions with management, and from our audit procedures performed on the payroll expenses, we have not
identified any significant changes in membership data during the year. Also, the annual data return template from the
actuary includes details of any bulk transfers as these are estimated by the actuary, and no such data was included in
respect of the Council. This data is subjected to data confirmation with individual employers to ensure that they are
reasonable. We are therefore satisfied that there were no significant changes in membership data during the year.
We agreed disclosures in Note 31 to the financial statements to the information provided by the actuary and have not
identified any issues.
Following the ruling on age discrimination on the McCloud case and gender discrimination on a Lloyds case in the prior
year, the actuary made an allowance at the last accounting date and this was, therefore, already included in the
opening liability for this year. This allowance was therefore incorporated in the roll forward approach and the actuary
has confirmed that this was re-measured 31 March 2020. The approach adopted by the actuary is considered to be
reasonable.

Tendring District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2020
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VALUATION OF PENSION ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
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Assessment of the significant accounting estimate
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Audit risks overview
Management override of controls
Expenditure recognition
Valuation of non-current assets
Valuation of non-current assets
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities
Going Concern
Other matters
Matters requiring additional
consideration
Audit differences
Other reporting matters
Use of resources
Control environment

Overview

Discussion

The key assumptions include
estimating future expected cash
flows to pay pensions including
inflation, salary increases and
mortality of members; and the
discount rate to calculate the
present value of these cash
outflows.

The pension liability to pay future pensions has decreased by £12.846 million to £164.205 million at 31 March 2020.

Changes in 2019/20
The actuarial valuation of future
benefits has decreased by £12.846
million, from £177.051 million to
£164.205 million.
Changes in assumptions that have
decreased the liability include a
decrease in CPI and future pension
increases (from 2.45% to 1.90%)
and decrease in salary increase
(from 3.95% to 2.90%), which was
partially offset by reduction to the
discount rate (from 2.40% to
2.35%). Mortality assumptions have
not been changed significantly
during the year, as such this has
resulted in a decrease in the
liabilities from these actuarial
assumptions only by £0.899 million
(0.5%). The liability has increased
by £1.810 million (1%) due to
experience loss.

We compared the assumptions and estimates used by the actuary with the expected ranges provided by the
independent consulting actuary PwC.
Actual

Expected / range

Comments

RPI increase

2.70%

2.65% - 2.80%

Reasonable

CPI increase

1.90%

1.85% - 1.95%

Reasonable

Salary increase

2.90%

2.85% - 2.95%

Reasonable

Pension increase

1.90%

1.85% - 1.95%

Reasonable

Discount rate

2.35%

2.35%

Reasonable

- Male current

23.2 years

22.8 - 24.7

Reasonable

- Female current

25.2 years

25.2 - 26.2

Reasonable

- Male retired

21.8 years

21.4 - 23.3

Reasonable

- Female retired

23.7 years

23.7 - 24.7

Reasonable

- Pre 2008

50%

50%

Reasonable

- Post 2008

50%

50%

Reasonable

Mortality - LGPS:

Commutation:

All the financial and mortality assumptions are within the expected range based on national data and therefore the
assumptions are considered to be reasonable.
The pension liability has increased by £1.810 million due to experience loss, which represents 1.0% of opening
liability. This is considered to be reasonable given the inherent limitations of a roll forward approach.
We are satisfied that the assumptions used are not unreasonable or outside of the expected ranges. We have included
specific representations that management confirm that the assumptions used reflect their understanding of the future
expectations of the scheme.

Impact
< lower

higher >

Audit report
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GOING CONCERN
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Management override of controls
Expenditure recognition
Valuation of non-current assets
Valuation of non-current assets
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities
Going Concern
Other matters
Matters requiring additional
consideration
Audit differences
Other reporting matters
Use of resources

We are required to
highlight any
judgements about
events or conditions
that may cast
significant doubt over
the entity’s ability to
continue as a going
concern.

Management has not prepared a going concern
assessment in line with the CIPFA Bulletin 05, which
states that “the requirements to use the going concern
basis of accounting means that authorities therefore
cannot apply paragraph 25 of IAS 1 mandating
management to make an assessment of the authority’s
ability to continue as a going concern. The going
concern assumption under the Code is therefore drawn
up to assume that a local authority’s services will
continue to operate for the foreseeable future. This is
despite the impact of COVID-19 on local authority
financial sustainability because the going concern basis
of reporting in the Code and the rationale behind it
remains unchanged”.
The Bulletin further states that “However, it is
recognised that while the going concern assumption in
the Code remains in place, this is separate from the
need for local authorities to report on the impact of
financial pressures in the narrative report”. In line with
this requirement the Council has reported the financial
pressures it has faced in current climate under Covid19. Our review of the narrative report identified that
the Council has provided sufficient disclosures in the
narrative report.
Nevertheless, despite financial pressures the Council
has retained usable reserves of over £50m. The Council
has reported an underspend against the budget in
recent years, and managed its financial pressures
effectively.

Control environment
Audit report
Independence and fees
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Audit risks overview
Management override of controls
Expenditure recognition
Valuation of non-current assets
Valuation of non-current assets
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities

The following are additional significant and other matters arising during the audit which we want to bring to your attention.
Issue

Comment

Consideration of materiality in the preparation of financial statements:

We observed that a number of immaterial notes and disclosures have been
included in the Council’s financial statements. These included:

Local Authorities are required to prepare their accounts in accordance with
the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom issued by CIPFA/LASAAC. The adoption of IFRSs has meant a
substantial increase in the amount of information reported, yet the
overarching principle of providing clear, simple and relevant information
should be adhered to.
CIPFA has published a guidance ‘Streamlining the Accounts’ which aims to
supply practical ways of streamlining both financial statements and year-end
financial processes. There is also a significant focus in recent
regulator/quality reviews regarding the inclusion of immaterial notes and
disclosures.

Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities
Going Concern

•

A note for other operating expenditure with total of £1,528k (2018/19:
£1,724k).

•

A breakdown of General Fund and Housing Revenue Account capital
commitments (£179k and £734k respectively).

•

A note for intangible assets with net book value of £69k (2018/19:
£158k).

•

A note for provisions with a value of £1,503k (2018/19: £1,385k).

•

Lease disclosures for authority as lessee (£467k), and finance lease
disclosures for authority as lessor (£378k).

•

Disclosure note for contingent liabilities with a value of £276k (2018/19:
£352k).

•

A disclosure note for material items of income and expenditure which
have been reported elsewhere in the financial statements.

•

A number of immaterial accounting policies, including heritage assets,
intangible assets, inventories and leases.

Other matters
Matters requiring additional
consideration

Management agreed to amend the financial statements for the above
matters.

Audit differences
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MATTERS REQUIRING ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATION
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Fraud

Laws and regulations

Coronavirus

Whilst the directors have ultimate responsibility for prevention and
detection of fraud, we are required to obtain reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from material misstatement, including those
arising as a result of fraud. Our audit procedures did not identify any fraud.
We will seek confirmation from you whether you are aware of any known,
suspected or alleged frauds since we last enquired when presenting the Audit
Planning Report on 26 March 2020.

We have made enquiries of management regarding compliance with laws and
regulations and reviewed correspondence with the relevant authorities.

Coronavirus 2
Coronavirus 3
Our methodology
Audit risks overview
Management override of controls
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Expenditure recognition
Valuation of non-current assets
Valuation of non-current assets
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities
Valuation of pension assets and
liabilities

We did not identify any non-compliance with laws and regulations that could
have a material impact on the financial statements

Internal audit
We reviewed the audit work of the Council’s internal audit function and used
it to assist our risk scoping at the planning stage.
Related parties
Whilst you are responsible for the completeness of the disclosure of related
party transactions in the financial statements, we are also required to
consider related party transactions in the context of fraud as they may
present greater risk for management override or concealment or fraud.
Our audit work on related party transactions is currently in progress.

Going Concern
Other matters
Matters requiring additional
consideration
Audit differences
Other reporting matters
Use of resources
Control environment
Audit report
Independence and fees
Appendices contents
Tendring District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2020

21 | BDO LLP

AUDIT DIFFERENCES

UNADJUSTED AUDIT DIFFERENCES: SUMMARY
Summary for the current year

We are required to bring to your attention unadjusted differences and we
request that you correct them.

Contents
Introduction

Our audit did not identify any unadjusted audit differences.

Executive summary
Financial statements
Audit differences
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Unadjusted audit differences:
Summary
Adjusted disclosure omissions and
improvements
Other reporting matters
Use of resources
Control environment
Audit report
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ADJUSTED DISCLOSURE OMISSIONS AND IMPROVEMENTS
Disclosure omissions and improvements

Contents
Introduction
Executive summary
Financial statements

We are required to bring to your attention other financial reporting
matters that the Audit Committee is required to consider.
The following adjusted disclosure matters were noted:
•

The external valuer of the Council’s property assets had reported within
the valuation report that the valuations have been reported on the basis
of material uncertainty due to the impact of Covid-19, and this was as
advised by RICS. The draft financial statements did not include
disclosures in respect of this material valuation uncertainty associated
with the property assets. A similar disclosure was also required in respect
of the property assets included within gross pension assets. The required
disclosures have subsequently been reported.

•

Events after the reporting period disclosure did not include the impact of
Covid-19, and has subsequently been updated.

•

A disclosure note in respect of critical judgements in applying accounting
policies was missing and subsequently included.

•

Maturity analysis of financial liabilities had been prepared based on
discounted cash flows (i.e. loan capital payments). However, the CIPFA
Code requires preparation of this note using the contractual full cash
flow amounts.

•

Collection Fund Income and Expenditure Statement did not include
comparative information reported for Council Tax and Business Rates,
but only the total amounts had been reported.

Audit differences
Unadjusted audit differences:
Summary
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Other reporting
matters
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REPORTING ON OTHER INFORMATION

We comment below on other reporting required to be considered in arriving at the final content of our audit report:
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Matter

Comment

We are required to report on whether the financial and non-financial
information in the Narrative Report within the Statement of Accounts is
consistent with the financial statements and the knowledge acquired by
us in the course of our audit.

Our review of the Narrative Report identified some minor areas for follow up
and potential amendment. We anticipate these will be amended in the revised
Statement of Accounts brought to the Audit Committee. We are satisfied that
the other information in the Narrative Report is consistent with the financial
statements and our knowledge.

We are required to report by exception if the Annual Governance
Statement is inconsistent or misleading with other information we are
aware of from our audit of the financial statements, the evidence
provided in the Council’s review of effectiveness and our knowledge of
the Council.

We have no matters to report in relation to the consistency of the Annual
Governance Statement with the financial statements and our knowledge.

Reporting on other information
Whole of Government Accounts
Use of resources
Control environment
Audit report
Independence and fees
Appendices contents
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WHOLE OF GOVERNMENT ACCOUNTS

Contents

Matter

Comment

Introduction

Auditors are required to review Whole of Government Accounts (WGA)
information prepared by component bodies that are over the prescribed
threshold of £500 million in any of: assets (excluding property, plant and
equipment); liabilities (excluding pension liabilities); income or
expenditure. The Council falls below the threshold for review and there is
no requirement for further work other than to submit the section on the
WGA Assurance Statement to the WGA audit team with the total values
for assets, liabilities, income and expenditure.

Local authorities were required to submit the unaudited DCT to HM Treasury and
auditors by 30 September 2020. The Council met this deadline.

Executive summary
Financial statements
Audit differences
Other reporting matters
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Reporting on other information

We are planning to submit the relevant section of the assurance statement to
the National Audit Office by the audit deadline of 4 December.

Whole of Government Accounts
Use of resources
Control environment
Audit report
Independence and fees
Appendices contents
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USE OF RESOURCES
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OVERVIEW

We are required to be satisfied that proper arrangements have been made
to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources
(value for money) and report to you on an 'except for' basis. This is based
on the following reporting criterion:

Page 60

In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to
ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to
achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local
people.

There are three sub criteria that we consider as part of our overall risk
assessment:
•
•
•

Sustainable resource deployment
Informed decision making
Working with partners and other third parties.

Use of resources
Overview

As identified in our Audit Planning Report we assessed the following matters as being the most significant risks regarding use of resources.

Sustainable finances
Sustainable finances
Sustainable finances

Audit Risk

Criterion

Risk Rating

Issues identified that impact on conclusion

Control environment

Sustainable finances

Sustainable resource
deployment

Significant

No

Audit report
Independence and fees
Appendices contents
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Use of resources
Overview

Sustainable finances
Sustainable finances
Sustainable finances
Control environment

In light of the large
underspends and
significant amount of
accumulated reserves,
there is a risk that the
budget setting and
financial management
process of the Council
may not be designed to
achieve the best use of
the Council’s
resources.

Risk description
During the 2017/18 year the Council introduced a new long term approach to budgeting/forecast under which a long
term financial forecast is prepared for a ten year period which is updated on a regular basis. The most recent
forecast in February 2020 shows a cumulative budget gap of £1.523m by 2023/24 and a cumulative budget surplus of
£1.551m has been forecasted for the remaining years to 2026/27.
The 2019/20 budget monitoring shows that at the end of December 2019 there is an overall net underspend of
£2.864m, although this is largely due to timing differences of income and expenditure.
As per 2018/19 outturn report for General Fund revenue financial performance, outturn for the year was a surplus of
£3.583m against a net budget expenses of £11.339m, which represented a favourable variance (underspend) of
£14.922m. The variance was primarily due to carry forward of a number of planned projects.
At 31 March 2019 the Council had total usable reserves of £51.245m which included the General Fund balance of
£31.207m and HRA balance of £8.783m.
Whilst there is a recognition that the Council manages its finances in a prudent manner, given the large underspends
and significant amount of accumulated reserves, there is a risk that the budget setting and financial management
process of the Council may not be designed to achieve the best use of the Council’s resources.

Audit report

Significant risk

Independence and fees

Normal risk

Work performed

Sustainable resource
deployment

•

Reviewed the adequacy of the budget setting and financial management processes of the Council.

•

Assessed the effectiveness of the Council’s policies and procedures for periodically reviewing existing reserves to
evaluate the appropriateness of the levels of individual reserves based on factors such as historic utilisation rates,
associated risk / sensitivity analysis and their underlying purpose.

•

Reviewed the financial outturn for 2019/20 and progress against the 2020/21 budget, for assessing the
effectiveness of financial management arrangements, with the main focus being on any large underspends and
carry forwards;

•

Reviewed the strategies to utilise budget surpluses after 2023/24 and assess how these are deployed for better
delivery of Council services.

Appendices contents

Informed decision making
Working with partners and
other third parties
Significant control findings to
be reported
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SUSTAINABLE FINANCES
Continued
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Use of resources
Overview

Sustainable finances
Sustainable finances

In light of the large
underspends and
significant amount of
accumulated reserves,
there is a risk that the
budget setting and
financial management
process of the Council
may not be designed to
achieve the best use of
the Council’s
resources.

Audit report
Independence and fees
Appendices contents

Adequacy of the budget setting and financial management processes:
During 2017/18 the Council introduced a new Long Term Financial Sustainability Plan under which budget and the financial
forecasts are prepared for a 10 year period, with this is being updated on a regular basis throughout the year. The detailed
budget for 2020/21 has been prepared within the above framework. Clear rationale has been stated in respect of the
formulation of the financial forecast and how it has been translated into the detailed budgets for 2020/21. This has been
supported by a risk assessment of each line of the forecast. The financial forecasting process continues to remain alert to
government announcements and the impact of external issues such as funding receivable from elsewhere within the public
sector. Within the Financial Strategy framework there is Cabinet involvement at various stages in addition to a
comprehensive review and associated input from the Resources and Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Our review
of the Council’s budget setting and financial management process concluded that they are adequate.
Effectiveness of the Council’s policies and procedures for periodically reviewing existing reserves:

Working with partners and
other third parties

At 31 March 2020 the Council had a General Fund (GF) balance of £32.9 million (including earmarked reserves of £28.9
million), HRA balance of £7.0 million, major repairs reserve £4.3 million, capital grants unapplied reserve of £1.9 million
and capital receipts reserve of £7.7 million, thus total usable reserves of £53.8 million. Our review of the Earmarked
reserves identified that the Council had a Revenue Committed Reserve of £11,423k and Capital Committed Reserve of
£3,793k at 31 March 2020. Both these reserves had consistent balances in the past. The reserves represent revenue and
capital items for which financial provisions have been made in the current or previous year, and therefore these are the
carried forward items from the budget. As per the GF revenue financial performance for 2019/20, there was a underspend
of £10.770 million within the net cost of service budget of £26.348 million (including prior year carry forward). The
equivalent amount in the prior year was £9.212 million within a budget of £22.142 million. This indicates potential issues
with deliverability of planned projects such that a critical review of those projects should be undertaken to determine
whether reserves will be utilised in the short term or should be released. We understand that the Council has engaged an
external consultant perform this assessment and make recommendations for action to be taken. We have included a
recommendation on page 31 to expedite this process.

Significant control findings to
be reported

Our benchmarking shows that the Council has a review also identified that the Council has accumulated a number of
reserves, including:

Significant risk
Normal risk

Sustainable finances
Control environment

Discussion and conclusion

Sustainable resource
deployment
Informed decision making

•

Building for the future reserve £2,610k - this reserve has been set up to support the delivery of a balanced budget in
future years. This is in addition to the Forecast Risk Fund (£3,088k) which has been set up to ‘underwrite’ any adverse
variances in the long term financial forecast. Although the Council has planned to temporarily utilise £1,371k of this
reserve in 2020/21 to make an upfront payment of 3 years pension contributions under the ‘spend to save’ initiative,
this reserve, when considered in conjunction with the Forecast Risk Fund, could be perceived as overly cautious.

•

Business Rate Resilience Reserve £1,758k – this has been set up to support the Council in reacting to any potential
future changes in Business Rate appeals and income, reducing the impact should the Government, at some time in the
future, change the rules around business rate retention. As there are no known plans for Government to do so,
maintaining this reserve could be perceived as overly cautious by council tax payers.
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SUSTAINABLE FINANCES
Continued
We also identified that some earmarked reserves have not moved notably for the last two or three years, which could indicate that they are over prudent.
The levels of reserves held is clearly a matter of judgment for management and Members, however, we recommend a review of the level of each reserve against
its stated purpose and associated risks, to consider their ongoing validity and demonstrate they are held at level that optimises service delivery without
unacceptable risk exposure. We have included a management recommendation on page 31 to this effect.
Contents
Introduction
Executive summary
Financial statements
Audit differences
Other reporting matters
Use of resources
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Overview

Sustainable finances

Review the financial outturn for 2019/20 and progress against the 2020/21 budget:
The Council’s overall outturn position for 2019/20 was a surplus of £11,038k. This is because a number of projects planned for 2019/20, with a total value of
£9,518k, were carried forward to future years. This gives a residual surplus of £1,520k after agreed carry forwards which will be reallocated to services for
future years. Some large projects which were carried forward include the Garden Communities Project with a value of £1,300k (with the Garden Communities
project not being progressed, funds are now planned to be used for the Tendring Colchester Border project instead), the business investment and growth project
with a value of 1,586k, Rural and Urban Infrastructure Fund with a value of £1,184k and local plans with a value of £713k.
The Quarter II budget monitoring report presented to the Cabinet in November 2020 shows the position to the end of September 2020 that overall the General
Fund Revenue Account is underspent against the profiled budget by £6.858m (£4.137m of which relates to the timing of expenditure from COVID funding received
from the Government). It is acknowledged that other expenditure or income trends may still be emerging with the position also largely reflecting the timing of
other general expenditure and/or income budgets. Although, there is an underspend against the budget by September 2020, this is due to the timing of income
and expenditure and this underspend is expected to be significantly reduced going forward. Having a large underspend in the first half of the financial year is
also in line with previous years and partly due to the carry forward.

Sustainable finances

In respect of other areas of the budget such as the Housing Revenue Account, capital programme, collection performance and treasury activity, there are no
major issues that have been identified.

Control environment

Review the strategies to utilise budget surpluses after 2023/24:

Sustainable finances

Audit report
Independence and fees
Appendices contents

At the time of our Use of Resources planning, the Council’s long term financial plans showed an expected cumulative deficit of £1.523m for the three years to
2023/24 and total surplus of £1.551m for the remaining 3 years to 2026/27, thus a cumulative surplus of £28k. Accordingly, we planned to review the Council’s
strategies to utilise the budget surpluses during the last three years of the forecast.
However, the Council has since revised its long term financial forecast following the impact of Covid-19. As per the September 2020 update to the forecast, the
Council’s revised forecast shows that it will have deficits for all 6 years to 2026/27 with cumulative budget gap of £6.208m. Therefore, no budget surpluses in
the forecast for assessment. Although, the revised forecast shows a significant budget gap in the period, this is largely due to the uncertainties created by the
Covid-19 pandemic, and the Council is required to reassess this when uncertainties are reduced. Given the historical financial performance of the Council and our
considerations above, we do not consider the significant budget gap above is indicative of any significant issue.
Overall conclusion:
We are satisfied that the Council has adequate arrangements for setting and monitoring financial budgets and forecasts. While there is a recognised funding gap
in the long term plan, we are satisfied that the Council is making appropriate arrangements to manage this in a way that will ensure it continues to remain
financially sustainable. Conversely, our review identified areas where the Council may be taking an overly cautious approach to managing its finances, which may
adversely impact council tax payers. In addition a number of planned projects, for which reserves are being held, have been deferred and their continued
viability is being reviewed. We have made recommendations in respect of these issues.
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CONTROL ENVIRONMENT
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SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES

We are required to report to you, in writing, significant deficiencies in
internal control that we have identified during the audit. These matters are
limited to those which we have concluded are of sufficient importance to
merit being reported to the Audit Committee.

Financial statements

As the purpose of the audit is for us to express an opinion on the Council’s
financial statements and use of resources, you will appreciate that our audit
cannot necessarily be expected to disclose all matters that may be of
interest to you and, as a result, the matters reported may not be the only
ones which exist.
As part of our work, we considered internal control relevant to the
preparation of the financial statements such that we were able to design
appropriate audit procedures. This work was not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control.

Audit differences
Other reporting matters
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Use of resources

Our audit work did not identify any significant deficiencies in internal
controls.

Control environment
Significant deficiencies
Other deficiencies
Follow up of prior year
deficiencies
Audit report
Independence and fees
Appendices contents
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OTHER DEFICIENCIES
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Area

Observation & implication

Recommendation

Management response

Logical access controls –
number of super users

Our review of the Council’s IT systems
identified that there are a large number
of super users (users with privileged
access rights) on a number of IT systems.
There were 28 super users for the Capita
system, 10 super users for the Northgate
system and 6 super users for the Agresso
system. We consider that 2-3 super users
per system would provide a robust level
of IT security, and having a large number
of super users could jeopardise system
security.

1.

Assess the number of super user
access rights granted in each of the
IT systems and take necessary
actions to reduce the number of
super users to an acceptable low
level.

Agreed

Use of Resources

As set out on page 28, we identified some
significant amount of carry forward each
year from the planned projects of
revenue and capital items, which
indicates an issue of deliverability of
planned projects.

2.

Assess the ongoing viability of
planned projects and take actions
such that they can be delivered
within a reasonable time and
minimise the carry forward.

Agreed

3.

Assess, at least once every two
years, the appropriateness of the
levels of individual reserves and their
continued validity based on factors
such as historic utilisation rates,
associated risk / sensitivity analysis
and their underlying purpose and
release any excess reserves.

Financial statements
Audit differences
Other reporting matters
Use of resources
Control environment
Significant deficiencies
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Other deficiencies
Follow up of prior year
deficiencies
Audit report
Independence and fees
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As set out on page 28-29, there is a risk
that reserves are not being held at the
optimum level, given that number of
them have not moved notably in recent
years.
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FOLLOW UP OF PRIOR YEAR DEFICIENCIES
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Area

Issue and impact

Original recommendation

Progress

Management response

Related party
transactions

In the prior year we reported
that the Council does not
obtain annual declarations from
members which is on the basis
that onus is on the members to
notify the monitoring officer of
any changes without any
routine reminders to send any
updates. Whilst we agree with
the Council’s approach in
principle, from the practical
point of view and given the
inherent risk associated with
related party transactions, we
consider it is appropriate to
obtain an annual declaration
from the members of the
Council.

Send an annual email/letter
requesting all members to
confirm whether there are any
amendments to the original
declarations. Obtain nil
returns/responses as part of
this process.

During the 2019/20 year the
Council implemented this
recommendation and obtained
annual declarations from the
members.

Agreed

We are yet to confirm whether
the Council has obtained annual
declarations from all members.

Not requesting annual
declarations/ confirmations
could result in related party
relationships and transactions
could go undetected.
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Audit report

OVERVIEW

Contents

Opinion on financial statements

Other information

Introduction

We anticipate issuing an unqualified opinion on the financial statements.

Executive summary

The updated financial statements include disclosures about a material
valuation uncertainty in respect of ‘Other land and buildings’ within
Property, Plant and Equipment, and ‘Property’ assets within the Local
Government Pension Scheme Assets, due to the impact of Coronavirus
(Covid-19). We anticipate including an Emphasis of Matter paragraph in our
audit report, referring to this material valuation uncertainty. This does not
represent a qualification of the opinion, but sign-posts the reader to certain
disclosures in the financial statements that we consider are key to
understanding the financial statements.

We have not identified any material misstatements that would need to be
referred to in our report.

Financial statements
Audit differences
Other reporting matters
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Use of resources
Control environment
Audit report
Overview

Annual Governance Statement
We have no matters to report in relation to the Annual Governance
Statement as it is not inconsistent or misleading with other information we
are aware of.

Conclusion on use of resources

Independence and fees

We are proposing to issue an unmodified use of resources conclusion.

Appendices contents

Conclusion relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the applicability of the going
concern basis of accounting or the Council’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of
the financial statements.
There are no material uncertainties in relation to going concern disclosed in
the financial statements of which we are aware that we need to draw
attention to in our report.
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INDEPENDENCE

Under ISAs (UK) and the
FRC’s Ethical Standard
we are required, as
auditors, to confirm
our independence.

Under ISAs (UK) and the FRC’s Ethical Standard, we are
required as auditors to confirm our independence.
We have embedded the requirements of the Standards
in our methodologies, tools and internal training
programmes. Our internal procedures require that
audit engagement partners are made aware of any
matters which may reasonably be thought to bear on
the integrity, objectivity or independence of the firm,
the members of the engagement team or others who
are in a position to influence the outcome of the
engagement. This document considers such matters in
the context of our audit for the year ended 31 March
2020.
Details of services, other than audit, provided by us to
the Council during the period and up to the date of this
report are set out on the following page and were
provided in our Audit Planning Report. We understand
that the provision of these services was approved by
the Audit Committee in advance in accordance with
the Council’s policy on this matter.
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Details of rotation arrangements for key members of
the audit team and others involved in the engagement
were provided in our Audit Planning Report.
We have not identified any relationships or threats that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our objectivity
and independence.
We confirm that the firm, the engagement team and
other partners, directors, senior managers and
managers conducting the audit comply with relevant
ethical requirements including the FRC’s Ethical
Standard or the IESBA Code of Ethics as appropriate
and are independent of the Council.
We also confirm that we have obtained confirmation of
independence from non BDO auditors and external
audit experts involved in the audit comply with
relevant ethical requirements including the FRC’s
Ethical Standard and are independent of the Council.
Should you have any comments or queries regarding
any independence matters we would welcome their
discussion in more detail.
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FEES

Contents

Fees summary

Introduction

2019/20

2019/20

2018/19

Actual

Planned

Actual

£

£

£

(3)TBC

45,205

45,205

Executive summary
Financial statements
Audit differences
Other reporting matters

Audit fee
•

Code audit fee: financial statements and use of
resources

Page 69

Use of resources
Control environment

Non-audit assurance services

Audit report

Fees for reporting on government grants:

Independence and fees

•

Housing benefits subsidy claim

(2)TBC

11,250

11,400

Pooling of housing capital receipts return

(2)TBC

2,650

2,500

TBC

59,105

59,105

Independence

•

Fees

Total fees

(1)

Appendices contents

(1) The certification fee for housing benefit subsidy is on the basis that the Council performs the initial testing
and we will re-perform. This also assumes three or less 40+ detailed testing during the year. The prior year
fee includes a fee variation in respect of additional five 40+ detailed testing workbooks.
(2) Work on 2019/20 housing benefit subsidy claim and pooling of housing capital receipts return has not yet been
undertaken.
(3) The 2019/20 planned Code audit fee is the PSAA-published level. The Scale is based on the historical position
from 2012/13 and so does not reflect any of the changes in audit scope and depth linked to current audit
requirements for property, plant and equipment or pensions liability valuation work. Discussions on the total
fee impact will be held initially with officers in the context of detailed operational planning and interim audit
scope so as to best mitigate increases.
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OUR RESPONSIBILITIES

OUR RESPONSIBILITIES
Responsibilities and reporting

Contents

Our responsibilities and reporting

Appendices contents

We are responsible for performing our audit under International Standards on
Auditing (UK) to form and express an opinion on your financial statements.
We report our opinion on the financial statements to the directors of the
Council.

Our responsibilities
Additional matters we are
required to report
Communication with you
Outstanding matters
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Latest regulatory developments
Latest regulatory developments 2

We read and consider the ‘other information’ contained in the Statement of
Accounts such as the Narrative Report. We will consider whether there is a
material inconsistency between the other information and the financial
statements or other information and our knowledge obtained during the
audit.

Latest regulatory developments 4

We report where we consider that the Council had not put in place proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources.

Ethical standard

What we don’t report

Audit committee guidance

Our audit is not designed to identify all matters that may be relevant to the
Audit Committee and cannot be expected to identify all matters that may be
of interest to you and, as a result, the matters reported may not be the only
ones which exist.

Latest regulatory developments 3

Representative letter
Representative letter 2
Representative letter 3
Audit quality
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ADDITIONAL MATTERS WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT
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Issue

Comments

1

Significant difficulties encountered during the audit.

No exceptions to note.

2

Written representations which we seek.

We enclose a copy of our draft representation letter.

3

Any fraud or suspected fraud issues.

No exceptions to note.

4

Any suspected non-compliance with laws or regulations.

No exceptions to note.

5

Significant matters in connection with related parties.

No exceptions to note.

Our responsibilities
Additional matters we are
required to report
Communication with you
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Outstanding matters
Latest regulatory developments
Latest regulatory developments 2
Latest regulatory developments 3
Latest regulatory developments 4
Ethical standard
Audit committee guidance
Representative letter
Representative letter 2
Representative letter 3
Audit quality
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COMMUNICATION WITH YOU

Contents

Those Charged with Governance (TCWG)

Communication, meetings and feedback

Appendices contents

References in this report to Those Charged With Governance are to the
Council as a whole. For the purposes of our communication with those
charged with governance you have agreed we will communicate primarily
with the Audit Committee.

We request feedback from you on our planning and completion report to
promote two way communication throughout the audit process and to ensure
that all risks are identified and considered; and at completion that the
results of the audit are appropriately considered.

Our responsibilities
Additional matters we are
required to report

We have met with management throughout the audit process. We have
issued regular updates driving the audit process with clear and timely
communication, bringing in the right resource and experience to ensure
efficient and timely resolution of issues.

Communication with you
Outstanding matters
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Latest regulatory developments
Latest regulatory developments 2
Latest regulatory developments 3

Date (to be)
communicated

To whom

Latest regulatory developments 4

Communication

Ethical standard

Audit Planning Report

26 March 2020

Audit Committee

Audit committee guidance

Audit progress report

At Audit Committee
meetings

Audit Committee

30 November 2020

Audit Committee

28 January 2021

Audit Committee

Representative letter
Representative letter 2
Representative letter 3
Audit quality

Audit completion report
Annual Audit Letter
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Communication with you

OUTSTANDING MATTERS

We have substantially completed our audit work in respect of the financial
statements and use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2020.
The following matters are outstanding at the date of this report and could
impact our audit opinion. We expect that this small amount of residual work
will be complete before the Audit Committee, at which we will provide a
verbal update:
•

Completion of the audit testing / clearance of audit queries in respect
of:

Latest regulatory developments

o Housing benefit expenditure

Latest regulatory developments 2

o Reserves

Latest regulatory developments 3

o Impairment allowance for debtors

Latest regulatory developments 4

o Local Council Tax Support Scheme expenses audit queries
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Outstanding matters

Ethical standard

o Commitments and contingencies testing

Audit committee guidance
Representative letter
Representative letter 2
Representative letter 3
Audit quality

o Related party transactions testing
•

Completion of partner and manager review of the audit file and
clearance of review points.

•

Review of the updated Statement of Accounts

•

Subsequent events review

•

Management letter of representation, as attached in Appendix G to be
approved and signed

Tendring District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2020

40 | BDO LLP

LATEST REGULATORY
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LATEST REGULATORY DEVELOPMENTS
Future of Audit, Regulation and Market Competition

Contents
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Our responsibilities
Additional matters we are
required to report
Communication with you

A number of corporate governance, financial reporting and audit failures since the ‘financial crises’ have led to auditing being the focus of the BEIS Select
Committee and the commissioning of three separate, but related, independent reviews scrutinising audit, auditors and the corporate and audit regulatory
environment. Although these independent reviews started at various times since 2018, none have yet fully concluded upon and further consultations on
precisely what the implementation will look like is expected to take place during 2020. However, that is not to say that changes have not already begun:
There are already a number of changes being made by the market participants themselves such as increased operational separation of audit from consulting
and voluntary restriction of non-audit services. There have also been a number of changes arise through regulation such as the further restriction on nonaudit services introduced with the new ethical standard in December 2019. Other expected changes will be implemented via a suite of consultations
expected in 2020. Detailed below is a summary of the current reports issued and their status with a summary of the contents.
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Latest regulatory developments
Latest regulatory developments 2
Latest regulatory developments 3

Initiative

Timeline 2018

Q1 2019

Q2 2019

BEIS Select Committee

‘Carillion’ report
issued 5/2018

‘Future of audit’
report issued
24/4/2019

Government
response issued
7/6/2019

Competition and Markets
Authority (CMA) Report
‘Statutory Audit Services
Market Study’

Launch of Market
study 9/10/2018

Responses to
consultation
21/1/2019

Report and
recommendations
published 18/4/2019

Team appointed
to undertake
review 2/2019

Consultation ended
7/6/2019

Secretary of State
announces plans
for a new
regulator (ARGA)
11/3/2019

48 recommendations
to be implemented
by FRC

Latest regulatory developments 4
Ethical standard
Audit committee guidance
Representative letter
Representative letter 2
Representative letter 3
Audit quality

‘Report of the Independent
Review in to the quality
and Effectiveness of Audit’
– Sir Donald Brydon
‘Independent Review of
the FRC’ by Sir John
Kingman

Kingman Report
published – 83
recommendations
18/12/2018
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Q3 2019

Q4 2019

Status
It is a priority area for
the Committee which
has a watching brief

First BEIS
consultation on
implementation
ended
13/9/2019

Further consultations
expected in 2020

Brydon
report
issued
9/12/2019

Further consultations
expected in 2020

Further consultations
expected in 2020

BEIS first
implementation
consultation ended
11/6/2019
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LATEST REGULATORY DEVELOPMENTS 2
Continued

Contents

Report

Topic

Key points

‘Independent Review of
the FRC’ by Sir John
Kingman

December 2018 - Future of
regulation and the FRC –
requested by the Secretary
of State

•

Highlighted deficiencies in FRC and its operating effectiveness

•

New regulator to replace FRC ‘Audit, Reporting and Governance Authority’

•

Reconsideration of which entities are classed as ‘public interest’

Appendices contents
Our responsibilities
Additional matters we are
required to report

A number of changes require legislation changes but the FRC is working on implementation
where possible.

Communication with you
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Related BEIS consultation
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Representative letter 2
Representative letter 3
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Competition and Markets
Authority (CMA) Report
‘Statutory Audit Services
Market Study’

BEIS consultation independent review of the
FRC - March 2019 –
Recommends adopting a
significant number of the
Kingman proposals without
further consultation ended June 2019

The proposals being classed as:

April 2019 - Future of
market competition

Report 18 April 2019 – suggestions include

•

FRC and BEIS will implement as soon as possible

•

Can be implemented once considered, in advance of legislation

•

Primary legislation required

Further consultations are expected and will form part of the 2020 suite of consultations
undertaken.

•

Increased accountability of audit committees including a focus on how they select
auditors and their consideration of audit quality

•

Mandatory joint audits for largest companies including one member not from the big 4
and peer reviews

•

An operational split between the audit and non audit practices of the big 4

•

A 5 year review of progress by the new regulator

Further consultations are expected and will form part of the 2020 suite of consultations
undertaken.
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LATEST REGULATORY DEVELOPMENTS 3
Continued

Contents
Appendices contents
Our responsibilities

Topic

Key points

BEIS (Business, Energy
and Industrial Strategy
Committee) Report ‘The
Future of Audit’ – 24 April

Consideration of 2 reports
– CMA and Kingman – to
ensure they will lead to
coherent framework

This report considers the CMA and Kingman reports and supports their recommendations
and encourages implementation. In particular:
•

Implement Kingman recommendations as soon as possible

•

Endorsement of CMAs suggestion to split firms operations between audit and nonaudit
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Additional matters we are
required to report

Report

•

Segmented market cap and joint audits for FTSE 100

•

Detecting fraud a priority

Latest regulatory developments 3

•

Tightening of dividend regime

Latest regulatory developments 4

•

Make audit more forward looking

Ethical standard

•

Welcomes introduction of ARGA – deal with failures more quickly and more
stringently

Communication with you
Outstanding matters
Latest regulatory developments
Latest regulatory developments 2

Audit committee guidance
Representative letter

Published June 2019.

Representative letter 2
Representative letter 3
Audit quality
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LATEST REGULATORY DEVELOPMENTS 4
Brydon

Contents
Appendices contents
Our responsibilities
Additional matters we are
required to report

In December 2019 Sir Donald Brydon published his “Report of the Independent
Review in to the quality and Effectiveness of Audit” . This report proposes a
fundamental changes to the audit profession, the scope of audit and how the
Audit Committee interacts with auditors and shareholders. The report
introduces over 100 actions in a number of areas including:

•

Replace ‘true and fair’ with ‘present fairly, in all material respects’;

•

Retain binary audit opinion but create continuity between reports,
increase transparency further, have regard to other public
information;

•

Report specifically on the directors’ statement in relation to fraud;
and

•

Audit firms ensure a clear separation between the team which
negotiates the audit fees, and the team which carries out the audit.

•

Audit Purpose, Audit Profession and Auditor reporting;

•

Directors’ Reporting;

•

Role of Shareholders;

•

Other stakeholders;

Key considerations for Audit Committees are as follows

•

Internal Controls;

•

Latest regulatory developments 4

•

Fraud;

Recommendations for Directors to present to shareholders a three
year audit and assurance policy dealing with auditors appointment,
assurance budget and risks;

Ethical standard

•

Transparency;

•

Audit committee guidance

•

Technology;

Representative letter

•

Auditor Liability;

Directors to present an annual Public Interest Statement and
Resilience Statement (replacing the going concern and viability
statements) in the annual report;

Representative letter 2

•

Audit and Risk Committees;

•

Directors to present an annual statement on the actions they have
taken to prevent fraud;

•

KPIs and APMs (Alternative Performance Measures); and

•

•

ARGA – the new regulator.

CEO and CFO to provide an annual attestation to the board of
directors as to the effectiveness of the company’s internal controls
over financial reporting;

•

Directors be required to disclose when any material failure of their
internal controls has taken place;

•

Any Alternative Performance Measures reported by a company, and
any use of Key Performance Indicators to underpin executive
remuneration, should be subject to audit; and

•

Publication by the directors of a risk report in advance of the audit
with shareholders to be given a formal opportunity to propose
matters to be covered in the audit and also permitted to question
the Audit Committee Chair and the auditor.

Communication with you
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Representative letter 3
Audit quality

Key considerations for Audit Firms
•

A new definition of audit: “ The purpose of an audit is to help establish and
maintain deserved confidence in a company, in its directors and in the
information for which they have responsibility to report, including the
financial statements.”

•

Recognition of other stakeholders alongside the company’s shareholders;

•

Creation of a standalone audit profession as opposed to an extension of the
accounting profession;

•

Introduce the need for ‘professional suspicion’ alongside ‘professional
scepticism’;

Tendring District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2020

44 | BDO LLP

LATEST REGULATORY DEVELOPMENTS 5
Redmond

On 8 September 2020, Sir Tony Redmond published his Independent Review into the Oversight of Local Audit and the Transparency of Local Authority
Financial Reporting
The Report includes a number of key recommendations, including:
Contents

•

The establishment of new body, the Office of Local Audit and Regulation (OLAR), be created to manage, oversee and regulate local audit, taking
on certain responsibilities from Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA), Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW),
FRC/ARGA, and the Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG)

•

The governance arrangements within local authorities be reviewed by local councils with the purpose of:

Appendices contents
Our responsibilities
Additional matters we are
required to report
Communication with you
Outstanding matters
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Audit report

•

an annual report being submitted to Full Council by the external auditor;

•

consideration being given to the appointment of at least one independent member, suitably qualified, to the Audit Committee; and

•

formalising the facility for the CEO, Monitoring Officer and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) to meet with the Key Audit Partner at least annually.

•

The current fee structure for local audit be revised to ensure that adequate resources are deployed to meet the full extent of local audit
requirements.

•

Quality be consistent with the highest standards of audit within the revised fee structure. In cases where there are serious or persistent breaches
of expected quality standards, OLAR has the scope to apply proportionate sanctions.

Audit report 5

•

The deadline for publishing audited local authority accounts be revisited with a view to extending it to 30 September from 31 July each year.

Latest regulatory developments

•

The external auditor be required to present an Annual Audit Report to the first Full Council meeting after 30 September each year, irrespective of
whether the accounts have been certified; OLAR to decide the framework for this report.

Audit report 2
Audit report 3
Audit report 4

Latest regulatory developments 2
Latest regulatory developments 3
Latest regulatory developments 4
Latest regulatory developments 5
Ethical standard
Audit committee guidance
Representative letter
Representative letter 2
Representative letter 3
Audit quality
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ETHICAL STANDARD

FRC ETHICAL STANDARD
Issued in December 2019

Contents
Appendices contents

In December 2019 the FRC published the Revised Ethical Standard 2019 (‘ES’), which is applicable from 15 March 2020. There are some transitionary
provisions for services and arrangements that are not currently prohibited under the existing Standard. The ES aims to further strengthen auditor
independence and enhance confidence in the profession. The table below provides a high level summary of the key headlines.

Our responsibilities
Additional matters we are
required to report
Communication with you
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Ethical standard
Audit committee guidance
Representative letter

Key headlines

Impact

The objective,
reasonable & informed
third party test

Reinforcement that ethical principles take priority over rules. A need to take care where particular facts and circumstances are
either not addressed directly by the rules or might appear to ‘work around’ the rules, or result in an outcome that is
inconsistent with the general principles.

Extra-territorial
impact

For group audits where the audited entity has overseas operations, the ES will require all BDO Member firms to be independent
of the UK audited entity and its UK and overseas affiliates in accordance with the UK Ethical Standard, irrespective of if their
audit work is relied upon.

Contingent fees

Non-audit services with contingent or success-based fee arrangements will be prohibited for audited entities.

Secondments

All secondments/loan staff to audited entities are prohibited with the exception of secondments to public sector entities.

Recruitment and
remuneration services

Prohibition on providing remuneration services to audited entities such as advising on the quantum of the remuneration package
or the measurement criteria for calculation of the package. In addition, the prohibition on providing recruitment services to an
audited entity that would involve the firm taking responsibility for, or advising on the appointment of, any director or employee
of the entity.

Non-audit services to a
public interest entity
(PIE)

Moving to a “white-list” of permitted non-audit services for PIEs. The white-list largely consists of services which are either
audit-related or required by law and/or regulation. The provision of services not on the white-list are prohibited. The ES
separates those permitted services which are exempt from the 70% fee cap and those services which are subject to the fee cap.

Other entities of
public interest (‘OEPI’)

OEPI is a new term in the Ethical Standard. The FRC have imposed the ‘white-list’ applicable to PIE audited entities to also
apply to OEPIs. OEPIs are entities which, according to the FRC, do not meet the definition of a PIE but nevertheless are of
significant public interest to stakeholders. They include AIM listed entities which exceed the threshold to be an SME listed entity
- generally those with a market cap of more than €200m; Lloyd’s syndicates; Private sector pension schemes with more than
10,000 members and more than £1billion of assets; Entities that are subject to the governance requirements of The Companies
(Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018 (SI/2018/860), excluding fund management entities which are included within a
private equity or venture capital limited partnership fund structure. These would be entities which:

Representative letter 2
Representative letter 3
Audit quality

⎯

Have more than 2000 employees; and / or

⎯

Have a turnover of more than £200 million and a balance sheet total of more than £2 billion.

The FRC have noted that the rules applicable to OEPIs will apply from periods commencing on or after 15 December 2020.
Tendring District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2020
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
GUIDANCE

Contents
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FRC PRACTICE AID FOR AUDIT COMMITTEES

The FRC issued an updated practice aid for audit committees in December
2019 and a full copy can be found on the FRC website. In their practice aid
the FRC note: ‘The directors of a company (the Board as a whole) are
responsible for ensuring its ﬁnancial statements are prepared in accordance
with the applicable ﬁnancial reporting framework and for overseeing the
company’s internal control framework. A high-quality audit provides
investors and other stakeholders with a high level of assurance that the
ﬁnancial statements of an entity give a true and fair view and provide a
reliable and worthy basis for taking decisions.’

It gives guidance for Audit Committees in the following
areas:
•

Audit tenders and the tender process including audit fee
negotiations and auditor independence

•

A model for use by audit committees in making an overall
assessment of an external auditor including inputs,
evaluations and concluding:
Inputs

The practice aid then discusses how the role of audit committees in serving
the interests of investors and other stakeholders is through their
independent oversight of the annual corporate reporting process including
the audit. The FRC highlight that the responsibility for appointing the
external auditor, approving their remuneration and any non audit services
work, ensuring their independence and challenging them over the quality of
their work falls to the audit committee and can play a key role in facilitating
a high quality audit (see note below).

External

Evaluation

Management
Auditor

Concluding and
reporting
Mindset and
culture

Audit committee
Judgment

Representative letter

Skills,
Character and
Knowledge

Representative letter 2

Quality control

Representative letter 3
Audit quality

•

Transparency - reporting to the Board on how the audit
committee has discharged these responsibilities

•

Some guidance on key areas of audit judgement

The provision of high quality audits are a key focus of FRC
and the new Executive Director of Supervision, David Rule,
sent a letter to all audit firms in November 2019 explaining
the factors he would expect to see in place in order to
facilitate the delivery of high quality audits. A copy of the
letter can be found on the FRC website.
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REPRESENTATIVE LETTER

Letter of
representation
[Client name and Letter headed paper]
BDO LLP
16 The Havens
Ransomes Europark
Ipswich, Suffolk
IP3 9SJ
Contents

Dear Sirs

Appendices contents

Financial statements of Tendring District Council for the year ended
31 March 2020
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We confirm that the following representations given to you in connection
with your audit of the Council’s financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2020 are made to the best of our knowledge and belief, and after
having made appropriate enquiries of other officers and members of the
Council.
The Assistant Director Finance and IT has fulfilled his responsibilities for the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements as set out in the
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and in particular that the financial
statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council
as of 31 March 2020 and of its income and expenditure and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with proper practices as set out in the
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom (the Code).
We have fulfilled our responsibilities on behalf of the Council, as set out in
the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, to make arrangements for the
proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs, to conduct a review
at least once in a year of the effectiveness of the system of internal control
and approve the Annual Governance Statement, to approve the Statement
of Accounts (which include the financial statements), and for making
accurate representations to you.
We have provided you with unrestricted access to persons within the entity
from whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence. In
addition, all the accounting records of the Council have been made
available to you for the purpose of your audit and all the transactions
undertaken by the Council have been properly reflected and recorded in the
accounting records. All other records and related information, including
minutes of management and other meetings have been made available to
you.

Going concern
We have made an assessment of the Council’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date on which the
financial statements were approved for release. As a result of our assessment
we consider that the Council is able to continue to operate as a going
concern and that it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a
going concern basis.
In making our assessment we did not consider there to be any material
uncertainty relating to events or conditions that individually or collectively
may cast significant doubt on the Council’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
Laws and regulations
In relation to those laws and regulations which provide the legal framework
within which the Council’s business is conducted and which are central to our
ability to conduct our business, we have disclosed to you all instances of
possible non-compliance of which we are aware and all actual or contingent
consequences arising from such instances of non-compliance.
Post balance sheet events
Other than those disclosed in the financial statements there have been no
events since the balance sheet date which either require changes to be made
to the figures included in the financial statements or to be disclosed by way
of a note. Should any material events of this type occur, we will advise you
accordingly.
Fraud and error
We are responsible for adopting sound accounting policies, designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control, to, among other things, help
assure the preparation of the financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles and preventing and detecting fraud
and error.
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We have considered the risk that the financial statements may be materially
misstated due to fraud and have identified no significant risks.
To the best of our knowledge we are not aware of any fraud or suspected
fraud involving management or employees. Additionally, we are not aware
of any fraud or suspected fraud involving any other party that could
materially affect the financial statements.
To the best of our knowledge we are not aware of any allegations of fraud
or suspected fraud affecting the financial statements that have been
communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or any
other party.
Misstatements
You have not advised us of any unadjusted misstatements in the financial
statements or other information in the Annual Report.

Carrying value and classification of assets and liabilities
We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value
or classification of assets or liabilities reflected in the financial statements.
Accounting estimates
We confirm the following significant assumptions made in relation to
accounting estimates (including fair value measurements) used in the
preparation of the financial statements are reasonable:
a) Pension liability assumptions
The following key assumptions have been used to calculate the actuarial
present value of future pension benefits disclosed in the financial
statements:
•

RPI increase 2.70%

Related party transactions

•

CPI increase 1.90%

We have disclosed to you the identity of all related parties and all the
related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware. We have
appropriately accounted for and disclosed such relationships and
transactions in accordance with the applicable financial reporting
framework.

•

Salary increase 2.90%

•

Pension increase 1.90%

•

Discount rate 2.35%

•

Mortality: Current pensioners - male 21.8 years and female 23.7 years /
future pensioners - male 23.2 years and female 25.2 years

•

Commutation: pre-April 2008 - 50% / post-April 2008 - 50%

Other than as disclosed in note to the financial statements, there were no
loans, transactions or arrangements between the Council and Council
members or their connected persons at any time in the year which were
required to be disclosed.

We consider these assumptions to be appropriate for the purposes of
estimating the pension liability in accordance with the Code and IAS 19.
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b) Valuation of housing stock, other land and buildings and investment
properties
We are satisfied that the useful economic lives of the housing stock and
other land and buildings, and their constituent components, used in the
valuation of the housing stock and other land and buildings, and the
calculation of the depreciation charge for the year, are reasonable.
We confirm that the valuations applied to council dwellings and other land
and buildings revalued in the year, as provided by the external valuer and
accounted for in the financial statements, are reasonable and consistent
with our knowledge of the business and current market prices.

Latest regulatory developments 4

We are satisfied that investment properties have been appropriately
assessed as level 2 on the fair value hierarchy for valuation purposes and
valued at fair value, based on highest and best use.

Ethical standard

c) Allowance for non-collection of receivables

Audit committee guidance

We are satisfied that the impairment allowances for council tax arrears,
NDR arrears and housing benefit overpayments are reasonable, based on
collection rate data.

Latest regulatory developments 3
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We acknowledge our legal responsibilities regarding disclosure of information
to you as auditors and confirm that so far as we are aware, there is no
relevant audit information needed by you in connection with preparing your
audit report of which you are unaware. Each director and member has taken
all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director or member of the
Council in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that you are aware of that information.
Yours faithfully

Richard Barrett
Assistant Director Finance and IT
Date:

Litigation and claims
We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims
whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements
and these have been accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the
requirements of accounting standards.
Confirmation
We confirm that the above representations are made on the basis of
enquiries of management and staff with relevant knowledge and experience
(and, where appropriate, of inspection of supporting documentation)
sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can properly make each of the above
representations to you.
We confirm that the financial statements are free of material
misstatements, including omissions.

Alan Coley
Chair of the Audit Committee
Date:

AUDIT QUALITY

AUDIT QUALITY

Contents

BDO is totally committed to audit quality

Appendices contents

It is a standing item on the agenda of BDO’s Leadership Team who, in
conjunction with the Audit Stream Executive (which works to implement
strategy and deliver on the audit stream’s objectives), monitor the actions
required to maintain a high level of audit quality within the audit stream and
address findings from external and internal inspections.
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BDO welcomes feedback from external bodies and is committed to
implementing a necessary actions to address their findings.

Outstanding matters
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We recognise the importance of continually seeking to improve audit quality
and enhancing certain areas. Alongside reviews from a number of external
reviewers, the AQR (the FRC’s Audit Quality Review team), QAD (the ICAEW
Quality Assurance Department) and the PCAOB (Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board who oversee the audits of US companies), the firm
undertakes a thorough annual internal Audit Quality Assurance Review and as
member firm of the BDO International network we are also subject to a
quality review visit every three years.
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We have also implemented additional quality control review processes for all
listed and public interest audits.

Representative letter
Representative letter 2

More details can be found in our Transparency Report at www.bdo.co.uk
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Audit quality
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FOR MORE INFORMATION:
Lisa Clampin
t: 01473 320716
m: 07791 397160
e: Lisa.Clampin@bdo.co.uk

The matters raised in our report prepared in connection with the audit are those we
believe should be brought to your attention. They do not purport to be a complete record
of all matters arising. This report is prepared solely for the use of the company and may
not be quoted nor copied without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third
party is accepted.
BDO is an award winning UK member firm of BDO International, the world’s fifth largest
accountancy network, with more than 1,500 offices in over 160 countries.
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BDO LLP is a corporate establishment under the Limited Liability Partnership Act 2000 and
a UK Member Firm of BDO International. BDO Northern Ireland, a separate partnership,
operates under a licence agreement. BDO LLP and BDO Northern Ireland are both
separately authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority to conduct
investment business.
© November 2020 BDO LLP. All rights reserved.
www.bdo.co.uk
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NARRATIVE REPORT 2019/20
INTRODUCTION
During each year the Leader of the Council makes a number of key announcements such as the introduction to the
Council’s annual budget and the ‘Annual State of the Tendring District’ Statement, which provide a helpful
summary on a range of subjects, with some key highlights included in his announcement to Full Council in
February 2020 as follows:
The protection of frontline services, the key foundation of our 10-year financial plan, is once more the crucial and
significant deliverable in the budget [for 2020/21].
There is so much that we want to do; to achieve as a Council and to benefit from as a District, and we need the
new Government to genuinely understand our aspirations and support us as much as possible as we go forward.
The new business rates retention model has been postponed and we must hope that it will provide sufficient and
sustainable funding to this Council. We need the Government to support us in things such as giving us the powers
and freedoms to be meaningfully commercial. In respect of the Housing Revenue Account budgets, the
Government needs to address the right-to-buy conundrum and help us to continue being the best council-house
landlord in the country. This Council could really fly if the Government were to make what are just minor changes to
rules and regulations – surely a situation that we all want to see going into the next financial year and beyond.
As we moved into 2019/20, we continued to deliver, and we have made a number of further commitments to our
key priorities.
In terms of projects we have delivered and continue to deliver, these include:


Significant cliff stabilisation work in Holland-on-Sea;



Office rationalisation;



Major events and activities including the Mayflower celebrations;



The roll out of the new waste and recycling service; and



Digital Transformation

These projects have seen millions of pounds being spent. In terms of digital transformation, such projects can
seem a little invisible, especially to our residents, but it provides a foundation for us all in what is an ever-increasing
digital world. It has also given us more resilience in areas such as business continuity, given the significant cloud
migration project that remains in progress, and which is highly relevant as we see the world respond to the current
corona virus outbreak.
In terms of further commitments, over the last few months we have committed funding to key projects such as:


Rejuvenating Clacton Town Centre;



The Starlings Site and Milton Road Redevelopment;



Works to Clacton Leisure Centre; and



The Tendring4Growth initiative
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These projects along with others in the pipeline will see further significant investment in our District. Setting aside
funding is a prudent thing to do as we can demonstrate that our commitments are cash-backed and not just ideas
that we hope to fund in future years if we have enough money.
However, I do appreciate that whilst committing money is a necessary part of the budget-setting process, our
residents only really see what is actually delivered on the ground. Therefore the actual delivery of projects and
initiatives is key, and behind the scenes, the cogs and wheels have been slowly pieced together to give us a
stronger platform going into 2020/21 – some of the cogs and wheels include a new project appraisal approach,
developing a corporate investment plan to deliver against our priorities, recognising necessary additional staff
capacity in areas such as public realm and engineering services, additional disabled facilities grant coordinator
posts along with additional enforcement support. These various ingredients are now coming together, and we
should start seeing the associated benefits as we head into 2020/21.
To protect frontline services, we first have to protect our underlying revenue position. Although this will take the
form of a number of individual actions, one significant piece of the jigsaw has already been put in place in the form
of an asset improvement fund. As we have discussed before, expenditure on our assets is expensive and we
cannot rely on the underlying revenue position to generate the sums necessary for this type of investment – we
have therefore set aside £1.134m to invest in our assets, especially in terms of contributing to our commitment to
be carbon neutral by 2030.
As I mentioned earlier, we are developing an investment plan to support the delivery of our corporate priorities.
This will draw together funding from existing budgets and therefore may include the reprioritisation of funds already
set aside. It will also help us to provide a clearer understanding of external funding opportunities and give us the
focus to chase money that is made available by various funding bodies at different times of the year.
We are still in the first year[s] of a new administration and with the items I listed earlier, along with those that will be
emerging over the remaining 3 years of this term, we should not only see our own money being ploughed back into
the district but by also working hard at our partnerships, and constantly and with relentless positivity making the
case for Tendring, we will be attracting external funding into our area – we have been extremely successful at this
in the past and I have no doubt we will continue to be so in the future.
In terms of putting money back into the District and levering in match funding, two new investment funds [were
announced] – the first is a Rural and Urban Infrastructure Fund, that looks to unlock economic growth through
improvements to infrastructure [funded by allocating the full £1.2m of new homes bonus for 2019/20 to this new
fund]. The second is a Tendring Community Fund that seeks to support community groups and organisations that
in turn support the residents and local communities across our District. [An allocation of £500k was made to this
new fund from the Council’s New Homes Bonus allocation for 2020/21.]
[In respect of] our commitment to being carbon neutral by 2030. Money has already been set aside to develop a
long-term action plan and the £1.134m put into the asset investment fund should also help us support the required
actions needed to deliver against our commitment to tackling this issue.
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The balance we are trying to find is to spend the one-off money we do have on things that either deliver against our
carbon neutral commitment or raise money or save money or protect us from increased costs and wherever
possible all of the above. This seems both logical and pragmatic.
You may not always see a return on every pound that is spent in the very short term, but small steps made
tenaciously over a number of years do make a difference.
Some good examples of where this will be evident in future years are as follows:


Hosting stages of national cycling tours and races;



Hosting car rallies – the Tendring rally (now officially called the Corbeau Seats Rally Tendring and
Clacton) is now one of the most important rally events on the calendar;



Sea and beach festivals; and



The air show and other visitor events.

Over time these activities build and promote the District as a ‘go to’ place, not only by domestic visitors but also
internationally. This can only be good news for our local economy – it really puts Tendring on the map, a position
that will be further enhanced by other major events such as the upcoming Mayflower celebrations where the
Council is, of course, playing a key role.

The Government has launched a consultation on creating up to 10 free ports with special tariff and duty status. It is
a consultation that we will engage with to the fullest as it could represent a terrific opportunity for Harwich and
hence for the wider District.
The official announcement says that the Government has the following objectives for UK free ports, specifically it
wants to:


establish free ports as national hubs for global trade and investment across the UK;



promote regeneration and job creation; and



create hotbeds for innovation

The Government has drawn on evidence from successful free ports around the world to develop a UK free port
model. The proposed model includes tariff flexibility, customs facilitations and tax measures. The Government is
also considering planning reforms, additional targeted funding for infrastructure improvements and measures to
incentivise innovation.

[The above statements were made in February 2020 before the full impact of COVID-19 became clear –
therefore although the commitments mentioned remain as key priorities for the Council, they may be
subject to delay or postponement until such time as it is possible to safely deliver / implement them]

Along with the above, this narrative report, provides information about Tendring District Council, including key
issues affecting the Council and its financial position and includes the following:
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Organisational Overview and External Environment



Governance



Operational Model



Risks and Opportunities



Strategy and Resource Allocation



Non-Financial and Financial Performance



Outlook



Basis of Preparation and Presentation

Organisational Overview and External Environment
The Tendring district has many geographic, demographic and economic characteristics that make it distinctive from
other areas. These provide both opportunities and challenges with the main features as follows:


Tendring enjoys over 36 miles of coastline, award-winning sandy beaches, numerous coastal towns
providing anything from the traditional pleasures of the seaside to maritime heritage, a variety of
beautiful and picturesque villages and one of the busiest harbours in Europe.



The coastal geography is one of the greatest assets but also presents difficulties such as expensive
management issues.



A large majority of people living in Tendring consider it a good place to live, which is reflected in the
number of individuals who have decided to retire to the area. A very high proportion of our residents
are over the age of 65. The population is growing rapidly and is predicted to grow to 170,000 by 2026.



People live in five main areas of settlement and villages across the District with differing community
needs and aspirations.



The Council has a workforce of over 400 (full time equivalents) of which many are Tendring residents.

The Council’s Corporate Plan – alongside the 10 year financial strategy, the Annual Budget and the Local Plan –
sets out the long term strategic framework of policies, priorities and projects for the benefit of the Tendring District.
The Council agreed a revised Corporate Plan (covering the period 2020 to 2024) during the year which remains set
against the context of a changing environment for Councils with continuing financial pressure and an increased
focus on the Council’s Community Leadership role working collaboratively across a range of issues.
Delivery of a long term financial sustainability plan continues to be an overriding priority for this Council with this
having an influence on other projects and priorities, targets, delivery and performance management. The overriding
pressure on the budget is the impact of the sustained reduction in Central Government funding over recent years.
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The success of the plan also requires effective and positive governance to ensure the Council and its various
resources – people, assets, IT and finances - are well managed to enable the Corporate Plan priorities and the
full range of the Council’s services to be delivered.
Community Leadership remains as the predominant cross cutting theme within the Corporate Plan along with a
newly launched ‘Tendring4Growth’ Initiative which also cuts across a wide range of the Council’s service activities
and projects.
The Vision and Values of the Council have been reviewed and considered in the light of changing circumstances
– both in the world of local government and more widely – and it is felt that they remain appropriate and relevant so
they remain unchanged within the updated plan set out below:
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Governance and Operational Model
The outcome from the annual review of the Council’s governance framework is set out within the Annual
Governance Statement (an annex to this Statement of Accounts) with many activities undertaken during the year to
strengthen/enhance all areas of the framework.

The Annual Governance Statement includes reference to the impact of the COVID-19 crisis on the Council and
how it has responded to the changes in how it operates. It also includes an action where a review of the Council’s
response along with what actions may still be required is planned to be undertaken during 2020/21.
The Annual Governance Statement also highlights a number of further key actions and planned activities in
2020/21.
Along with the Council’s performance management framework which is discussed further on, the Council’s budget
and Long Term Financial Plan articulate the use of resources with the position for 2020/21 and beyond
summarised within the Chief Finance Officer’s (S151 Officer) report to Council in February 2020 as part of the
budget process for 2020/21 as follows:

Robustness of the Estimates
As part of the Long Term Financial Sustainability Plan introduced during 2017/18, the forecast and budget setting
processes continue to be built on the following 5 key strands:


Increases to Underlying Income



Controlling Net Expenditure Inflationary Pressure



Savings and Efficiencies



Delivering a Favourable Outturn Position



Cost Pressure Mitigation

Within each strand, the forecast is based on relatively conservative estimates with no optimistic bias included. Each
element of the forecast and how it has been derived and developed over time is clearly set out within regular
reports to Management Team and Members.
As mentioned in earlier years of the long term forecast, cost pressures continue to present one of the more
significant risks to the long term plan. As part of the development of the long term plan during 2019 a number of ongoing cost pressures emerged which resulted in the cost pressure allowance being increased from £0.150 million
to £0.600 million in 2020/21. Although the final level of cost pressures included in the budget in 2020/21 was
slightly lower at £0.491 million, it was still significantly more than the initial amount allowed for. It is also important
to highlight that mitigation actions have been proposed for a number of cost pressures which may not provide a
permanent solution and the item may need to be reconsidered for inclusion in the budget over the later years of the
forecast.
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As acknowledged in prior years, the long term approach to the forecast requires a compromise in terms of the
speed at which the Council can spend money on items where it has a choice to do so or not. This may involve
areas where the additional expenditure may support income growth or the Council’s reputation. A hard but fair and
considered approach is being taken in terms of how much additional expenditure by way of cost pressures can be
accommodated within the long term forecast. Set against this backcloth and to ‘protect’ the revenue budget as
much as possible, the budget proposals in 2020/21 set out a revised approach to avoidable cost pressures and
those relating to the Council’s assets. It is proposed to deal with these two classes of cost pressures outside of the
annual budget cycle, supported by an initial asset improvement fund of £1.134 million and via the use of one off
money and/or the reprioritisation of existing budgets where necessary. The above approach will also be supported
by the Council’s newly adopted business case / project initiation processes, which will include the consideration of
maximising the use of existing resources or external funding where possible.
In response to the increase in the level of on-going cost pressures included within the 2020/21 budget, the annual
savings ‘allowance’ has been increased from £0.300 million to £0.450 million across the remaining 6 years of the
forecast period. Savings of £0.369 million have been included within the 2020/21 budget and work will shortly be
underway to identify further savings opportunities to support the budget position from 2021/22 onwards.
The detailed budget for 2020/21 has been prepared within the above framework. Clear rationale has been stated in
respect of the formulation of the financial forecast and how it has been translated into the detailed budgets for
2020/21. This has been supported by a risk assessment of each line of the forecast.
The on-going review of reserves continues to demonstrate that the Council’s current level of reserves remain
adequate to ‘underwrite’ risks and uncertainties that are also inherent within the forecasting process, supported by
the specific Forecast Risk Fund. No significant adjustments have been required in 2020/21 that weaken the overall
long term approach to the forecast. A specific statement on reserves is set out further on in this section of the
report.
The financial forecasting process continues to remain alert to government announcements and the impact of
external issues such as funding receivable from elsewhere within the public sector. The forecast also aims to reflect
the outturn position from the previous year along with cost pressures which also allow it to remain alert to potential
changes to its financial position. The future financial settlement arrangements from the Government remains a key
risk along with cost pressures and savings targets discussed earlier and together they represent the highest rated
risks within the long term forecast.
Clear actions in respect of financial resilience continue to form part of the Council’s Annual Governance Statement
that includes amongst other things a number of financial risks and issues that enable the Council to keep a
watching brief on significant upcoming matters that may have a financial consequence. Linked to an earlier point
above, where the Council makes significant financial commitments, such as to major projects to deliver against its
priorities, money is found from within existing budgets wherever possible and set aside accordingly rather than
relying on projected savings or future forecasts.
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The Council’s External Auditor recently highlighted [2018/19] as part of their value for money work that the medium
term financial strategy assumptions adequately reflect demographic and inflationary cost pressures, pay awards
and other known cost pressures. The assumptions around funding sources are reasonable and reflect published
information and Government announcements. The auditor went on to say that they were satisfied that the Council
has adequate arrangements for setting and monitoring financial budgets. While they recognised that there was a
funding gap in the long term plan, they were satisfied that the Council is making appropriate arrangements to
manage this in a way that will ensure it continues to remain financially sustainable.
Financial Resilience remains at the forefront of the financial planning process with money identified where possible
to invest in ‘spend to save’ projects or ‘protect’ key services that will in turn support the Council in delivering a
balanced and sustainable budget in the long term. It is important to highlight that the Council continues to aim to
find savings from within its underlying revenue budget rather than rely on potentially time limited income, such as
from the New Homes Bonus, to balance the budget.
The need to continue to deliver against the 10 year forecast is clearly recognised within the Council and remains
the key focus in 2020/21 and beyond to enable it to continue to provide quality services and invest in its priorities.
Self-sufficiency continues to underpin the Council’s 10 year forecast along with maximising opportunities through
investment and maximising savings opportunities over a longer time period. Taking a longer term view of the
forecast also enables the Council to respond to any significant financial impacts over several years rather than as
part of an annual budget cycle, which strengthens financial resilience in the long term.
Another aspect to the long term approach to the forecast is the ability to ‘flex’ the delivery of services rather than
cut services. If required by the forecast, the Council could flex the delivery of a service one year but increase it
again when money next becomes available, which also provides a key foundation against which the budget is
‘built’.
The Council continues to play a key role in a number of activities such as engaging with cross authority working
and maximising commercial opportunities wherever possible, all of which are important elements in supporting the
Council’s longer term financial strength. Significant transformation activities including office rationalisation, channel
shift and digital transformation projects, remain in progress within the Council to support the overall financial
position going forward.
The Council remains alert to the risks associated with the highly complex area of the budget introduced via the
local retention of business rates. A separate Business Rates Resilience Reserve has been established to support
the Council through periods where income may be volatile, which provides the Council with a longer recovery
period if faced with adverse issues in the years ahead.
It is recognised that there are risks inherent within the Council’s financial framework and corresponding detailed
estimates. However, action has been taken to mitigate these risks as far as possible. The budgets have been
prepared against the background of the continuing difficult economic climate resulting in on-going reviews of
significant budgets.
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Within the Financial Strategy framework there is Cabinet involvement at various stages in addition to a
comprehensive review and associated input from the Resources and Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
Regular and comprehensive monitoring of the budget will continue to be undertaken during 2020/21 as part of the
well-established and comprehensive financial performance reporting process, so issues can be identified and
action taken at the earliest opportunity if and when appropriate. Also any savings identified during the year will
continue to be transferred to the Forecast Risk Fund where possible, to further strengthen the approach taken in
‘underwriting’ the risks associated with a 10 year forecasting period.
The proposed budget resulting from this process is therefore robust and deliverable and is supported by reserves
with further details below.

Adequacy of the Reserves
An integral part of the Council’s overall strategy is that the level of reserves is sufficient to support identified risks
along with supporting a sustainable budget position in the longer term. The level of uncommitted reserves forecast
at 31 March 2020 is £4.000 million including the minimum working balance of £1.600 million. All of the reserves are
regarded as adequate and recognise significant risks such as from potential business rates volatility.
Spend to save initiatives have been supported by reserves with the rate of return on investment being a key
consideration when any proposal is considered to be funded this way. One example proposed in 2020/21 being the
use of reserves to enable the payment of the 3 year pension deficit amount in one upfront amount, which saves the
Council in excess of £0.093 million over three years (equivalent to a return on investment of 4.3%)
A Forecast Risk Fund has been established to ‘underwrite’ the 10 year forecast.

Further information is also included within the Annual Governance Statement in terms of the framework against
which the Council responds to issues such as consultation, engagement with stakeholders, building the capacity of
the organisation to support the delivery of its objectives.
Looking ahead, the Annual Governance Statement includes an action to implement a framework to ensure lessons
learned/outcomes from projects and investment are reviewed to aid future decision making.

Risks and Opportunities
The Council understands that by being risk aware and understanding its risk appetite, the Council will be better
able to take advantage of opportunities and mitigate threats.
Within the context of the above, Tendring District Council has adopted a risk management framework which is
integrated with departmental planning and is reported along with the Council’s Corporate Risk Register to the Audit
Committee on a six monthly basis.
The Council’s approach to risk is that it must be addressed on an integrated basis with everyone having roles and
responsibilities for its management.
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The Council’s Corporate Risk Register was reviewed during the year to aid accessibility and to improve the focus
on actions that are required to successfully manage risks. Within the risk register items have been grouped
together under the following themes:


Failure to Deliver Key Services



Failure to Deliver Key Projects



Reputational Damage



Ineffective Workforce Management and Planning



Failure to Deliver a Balanced and Sustainable Budget



Ineffective Management of Information



Failure to Adopt a Sound Local Plan



Failure of Income Streams to meet the Council’s Financial Requirements and Obligations to Other
Bodies



Failures in Emergency and Business Continuity Planning

Mitigating actions have reduced the residual risk against each risk item within the categories above to at or below
the Council’s acceptable risk tolerance level apart from the ability to deliver a balanced and sustainable budget,
with a summary of this item as currently included within the risk register as follows:

Risk
RISK 5A - Financial Strategy - The impact of

How the Risk is Controlled/Mitigated
Long Term Financial Plan updated on an ongoing basis.

achieving a balanced budget in an ever-tightening
financial environment on service delivery

• Financial Strategy / Forecast Preparation including

objectives.

identifying and capturing significant risks such as changes to
government funding, and the identification of savings which
will require some challenging decisions.
• Robust and timely financial performance monitoring.
• Engagement with key stakeholders, members and senior
management as early as possible.
• Responding to and implementing recommendations and
advice issued by the Council’s External Auditor.
• Material savings options to be individually risk assessed
If the event that the long term approach does not deliver the
intended outcomes then the Council can revert to the more
traditional / short term approach to setting the budget.

As highlighted above, the Corporate Risk register recognises the risks associated with the delivery of key projects
and initiatives, with the current risk register recognising items such as:
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Transforming the way the Council works



Building Council Homes



Coastal Defences

The Corporate Risk Register also acknowledges the risks associated with the development of services and
includes items such as:


The management of council assets



The management of information



Partnership working

In addition to the above, risks and opportunities are reviewed, considered and reported to the Council’s Senior
Management Team and Members as part of the Council’s decision making processes when projects are identified
and developed during the year.

Strategy and Resource Allocation
During 2017/18 the Council adopted a long term financial sustainability plan with the primary aim of protecting
services, as far as is reasonably possible, that the Council provides to its residents, businesses and visitors in the
wake of the on-going and significant reductions in government funding. A summary of the thinking behind this new
approach was set out in the report to Cabinet on 5 September 2017, which is available on the Council’s website.
The updated long term forecast presented to Full Council on 11 February 2020 included revised annual forecasts
over the remaining years of the 10 year plan which are set out in the table below:

Year

Net Budget Position (including adjusting
for prior use of reserves to balance the
budget)

2021/22

£0.935m (Deficit)

2022/23

£0.651m (Deficit)

2023/24

£0.365m (Deficit)

2024/25

£0.076m (Deficit)

2025/26

£0.215m (Surplus)

2026/27

£0.507m (Surplus)

The Council continues to focus on the following five key strands, all of which seek to make the necessary
contributions to the long term approach to the forecast.
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Increases to Underlying Income
This strand concentrates on delivering growth in council tax and business rates and will include year
on year increases in the council tax levy, increasing collection performance, on-going compliance work
to ensure that people/businesses are paying what they are liable to pay along with general housing
and business growth in the district.



Controlling Net Expenditure Inflationary Pressure
It would be advantageous if the Council could hold future costs to current prices, which would enable
income growth to quickly outstrip the cost of growth in net expenditure. Although it is accepted that this
will not be possible in the purest sense, it is a good base to work from e.g. reducing energy usage,
redesigning/alternative service delivery, reducing printing and paper usage, office rationalisation,
working with Town and Parish Councils and renegotiating contracts. The above set out only a few
examples where the Council can look to limit net increases in its overall budget which will be
developed as part of the overall delivery plan and will also include maximising its assets and
generating money from capital investment.



Savings and Efficiencies
Savings still feature within the forecast, albeit at a much more modest annual rate than would
otherwise have been the case if a shorter term view of the budget had been adopted and therefore
provides opportunities to maximise savings over a longer period.



Delivering a favourable Outturn Position
Although favourable outturn positions have been delivered historically, primarily through one-off items
or the aggregate of a number of smaller items, actions to influence the likelihood of a favourable
position can be put in place such as holding vacancies for a longer period of time where there would
be no adverse impact on service delivery, reviewing carry forward requests each year, ‘banking’
fortuitous savings as they emerge such as unringfenced government grants and favourable increases
in fees and charges income.



Cost Pressure Mitigation
Each year there are a number of cost pressures that emerge and are usually formed of a mix of where
there is no option such as reductions in external funding and the living wage along with items where
there is a choice whether to fund or not. The long term approach to the forecast does highlight the
need to compromise to some extent in terms of the speed at which the Council can spend money on
items where it has a choice to do so or not. This may involve areas where the additional expenditure
may support income growth or the Council’s reputation. A hard but fair line will need to be taken to
how much additional expenditure by way of cost pressures can be accommodated within the ten year
forecast.

The Council recently approved a revised Capital and Treasury Strategy which continues to set out a number of key
factors to be included in future capital investment decisions such as:
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Return on Investment/Net Present Value



Whole life costing/revenue consequences



Alternative options/opportunity costs



Sustainability



Capacity/deliverability

Council Performance 2019/20
Non-Financial Performance
A comprehensive performance report is presented to Management Team and Members on a quarterly basis, which
includes projects, targets and where the Council has an influencing role.
The following sets out a summarised outturn position at the end of March 2020:
(The full / detailed report that was considered by the Council’s Cabinet on 29 May 2020 can be found by following this
link: https://tdcdemocracy.tendringdc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=1639&Ver=4]

Item

Year End
Position

Additional Commentary

Projects
A Growing and Inclusive
Economy – Tendring for
Growth

A Growing and Inclusive
Economy – Enhancing our
Great Tourism Offers
Building Sustainable
Communities for the future
– Garden Communities
Building Sustainable
Communities for the
future – Jaywick Sands
Building Sustainable
Communities for the future
– Delivering the Local Plan
Building Sustainable
Communities for the future
– Creating a Vibrant Town
Centre
Building Sustainable
Communities for the future
– Residents Feeling This is a
Great Place to Live
Building Sustainable
Communities for the future
– Housing Strategy
Delivering High Quality
Services – Cliff Stabilisation
(Protecting our Coastline)
Delivering High Quality
Services – Waste Contract

On Target

Impacted by
COVID-19

Below Target

The Council has developed a range of business led events which
promote growth opportunities, these include development of key
sectors, bespoke business advice and business networking
events.
A range of regular and one off events are delivered by the
Council each year including the Airshow and Tour de Tendring.
However due to the COVID-19 crisis, some events have been
postponed but the Council remains committed to their delivery
when the next favourable opportunity arises.
Following events in 2020/21 (outcome from Planning Inspectors
Report), future options to deliver this project are currently subject
to review during the second half of 2020/21

Below Target

10 new properties were built in 2019/20 with further work ongoing in 2020/21 to enable them to be occupied later in the year.

Below Target

Modifications to the plan are being progressed in 2020/21
following the Planning Inspectors report.

Impacted by
COVID-19

Stakeholder consultation was delayed due to the COVID-19
crisis. However a bid to the High Street Futures Fund in respect
of Clacton Town Centre was made in July 2020.

Below Target

Associated actions remain ongoing in 2020/21.

On Target

The Housing Strategy is planned to be adopted shortly once it
has ‘cleared’ the Council’s associated decision making
processes.

On Target

Major works were completed in 2019 with investigation work ongoing elsewhere along the frontage in Holland-on-Sea.

On Target

The required changes were fully implemented in 2019/20.
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Delivering High Quality
Services – Leisure Facilities
Review
Delivering High Quality
Services – Creating a
Quality Environment for our
Staff
Delivering High Quality
Services – Building and
Managing our own Homes
Delivering High Quality
Services – Carbon
Neutrality
Strong Finances and
Governance – Maximising
our Assets
Strong Finances and
Governance – Clear
Political Leadership and
Effective Governance

Below Target

Activities remain on-going in 2020/21 to take this project forward
which has been impacted by the COVID-19 crisis.

Below Target

Major building and IT works and activities completed in 2019/20
with activities remaining on-going in 2020/21.

On Target

Work remains on-going in 2020/21 to agree and implement a
development and acquisitions policy.

On Target

Work remains on-going (supported by external consultants) to
develop an associated action plan to deliver on the Council’s
carbon neutrality commitment.

Below Target

On Target

Work remains on-going to take forward the management and
acquisition of property with a more strategic, commercial focus in
order to address community needs and the Council’s wider
financial position.
A new Corporate Plan covering the period 2020/24 was agreed in
2019/20 and a number of governance related activities were
undertaken as set out in the Annual Governance Statement that
can be found within the annex to these Statement of Accounts.

Targets
Fly Tipping
Missed Bin Collection

Recycling Rate
Proactive Planning
Approach
Sickness and Authorised
Covert Surveillance

Complaints

Above Target
No Data

Above Target

On Target

Further statistical analysis is being developed to support the
reporting and management of this target in 2020/21.
Increased recycling rates have been supported by the
implementation of the new waste and recycling service during
2019/20.
-

-

In terms of sickness data, please see detailed report referred to
above. There were no approved authorisations for covert
surveillance during the year.

Below Target

This primarily relates to stage 1 complaints which were largely
associated with the introduction of the new waste and recycling
service during the year whilst the new arrangements were
‘bedding in’.

Influencing Role
Community Leadership
Through Partnerships –
Health

-

Community Leadership
Through Partnerships –
Education

-

Community Leadership
Through Partnerships –
Law and Order

-

Community Leadership
Through Partnerships –
Influencing & Lobbying for
Tendring

-

The Council remains actively engaged with a range of partners
and stakeholders to support areas where it has an influencing
role. (please see more detailed report referred to above for
additional information)
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Community Leadership
Through Partnerships –
Improving Digital
Connectivity

-

Community Leadership
Through Partnerships –
Sport England

-

Building Sustainable
Communities for the future
– Manningtree Underpass

-

Financial Performance
Continuing from last year, the various strands representing the overall financial performance of the Council have
been brought together in one report that is reported to members on a quarterly basis. This approach follows the
commitment made to provide regular updates on the long term financial forecast and to bring the reporting of key
financial performance and budget monitoring together in one report. The report therefore sets out the overall
financial position of the Council in one place and includes a risk assessed approach to each strand of the forecast.
Three such financial performance reports were presented to Members during 2019/20 and are available on the
Council’s website.
The Council is meeting its long term forecasted position with only a limited use of the forecast risk fund that was set
up to ‘underwrite’ the risks associated with the new long term approach. In respect of 2020/21, there is an
estimated contribution to the forecast risk fund of £0.393 million, with £3.088 million in the fund at the end of March
2020 to continue to support the long term plan in 2021/22 and beyond.

Financial Performance 2019/20 including comparison with the 2019/20 Budget
A comprehensive outturn report was presented to the Council’s Portfolio Holder for Corporate Finance and
Governance in July 2020, with a summary set out below that follows a similar format of the Expenditure and
Funding analysis within the Statement of Accounts:
Summary of General Fund Revenue Financial Performance 2019/20
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Budget
£m
26.348

Outturn
£m
15.578

Variance
£m
(10.770)

Other Income and Expenditure
Revenue Support for Capital Investment
Financing Items
Business Rates (including Tariff and Levy)
Revenue Support Grant
Collection Fund Surplus/Deficit
Income from Council Tax Payers
Total Other Income and Expenditure

5.511
(5.187)
(4.490)
(0.422)
(0.710)
(7.955)
(13.253)

1.928
(5.755)
(4.349)
(0.422)
(0.710)
(7.955)
(17.263)

(3.583)
(0.568)
0.141
(4.010)

(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services **

13.095

(1.685)

(14.780)

Opening General Fund Balances
(Surplus) or Deficit on General Fund in Year

(31.207)
13.095

(31.207)
(1.685)

(14.780)

Closing General Fund Balances at 31 March

(18.112)

(32.892)

(14.780)

Net Cost of Services *

* the budget of £26.348 million included in the table above is £8.143 million more than the figure (£18.205 million)
presented to Full Council in February 2019 when the original budget was agreed, which is due to the amounts
carried forward from 2018/19 into 2019/20.
** the difference between budget and actuals is primarily due to carry forwards, with significant items as follows:


Garden Communities Project - £1.300 million



Local Plan - £0.713 million



Business Investment and Growth - £1.586 million



Rural and Urban Infrastructure Fund - £1.184 million

The above figures relate to the General Fund only which explains the difference with the figures set out in the
Expenditure and Funding Analysis which include the Housing Revenue Account. The Expenditure and Funding
analysis set out within the Statement of Accounts shows a Net Cost of Services figure for 2019/20 of £17.397
million. When the HRA is excluded (£1.819 million), the outturn position relating to the Net Cost of Services is
£15.578 million as included in the table above.
Within the £14.780 million variance on the (Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services above, a general
contribution of £0.862 million was made to reserves representing the overall outturn variance for the year. The
main reasons behind this variance are summarised below:


Receipt of New Burdens Grant Funding - £0.164 million



Reduced Housing Benefit and Rent Rebates Net Costs- £0.447 million



Increase in Net Cost of the Council’s leisure facilities - £0.199 million

Summary of General Fund Capital Programme 2019/20
Expenditure is capitalised when it is spent on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of assets that have a value
to the Council or the community for more than one year. Examples of capital expenditure incurred by the Council
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during the year were disabled facilities grants and major repairs / enhancements to assets. As capital schemes
span financial years, amounts have been carried forward to continue the schemes and projects in 2020/21, with
significant items as follows:


Disabled Facilities Grants - £3.662 million



Starlings and Milton Road Development - £1.556 million



Cliff Stabilisation Scheme - £0.439 million



Clacton Leisure Centre Refurbishments – £0.521 million.

A summary of capital expenditure and how it was funded is set out in the following table:

Capital Expenditure

Funding of Capital Expenditure
External Sources of Finance
S106
Government Grants
Capital Receipts
Revenue Contributions
Use of Earmarked Reserves
Total

Budget
2019/20
£m
13.657

Outturn
2019/20
£m
5.202

Budget
2019/20
£m
0.067
0.015
7.157
0.907
0.486
5.025

Outturn
2019/20
£m
0.023
0.007
3.216
0.028
0.342
1.586

To Fund
C/fwds
£m
0.043
0.008
3.941
0.825
0.144
3.435

13.657

5.202

8.396

C/fwds
£m
8.396

Variance
£m
(0.059)

Variance
£m
(0.001)
(0.054)
(0.004)
(0.059)

General Fund Reserves
The overall level of reserves at the end of 2019/20 is £32.892 million, made up of £15.216 million for earmarked
commitment reserves, £13.676 million for other earmarked reserves and £4.000 million for uncommitted reserves.
It should be noted however, that transfers to earmarked reserves are not an increase in the Council’s longer-term
unallocated general resources as it relates to future years commitments.

Housing Revenue Account 2019/20
A summary for the year is set out in the table below that follows a similar format of the Expenditure and Funding
analysis within the Statement of Accounts:
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Budget
£m
2.890

Net Cost of Services
Other Income and Expenditure

Outturn
£m
1.819

-

(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services *

-

Variance
£m
(1.071)
-

2.890

1.819

(1.071)

Opening HRA Revenue Reserves
(Surplus) or Deficit on HRA in Year

(8.783)
2.890

(8.783)
1.819

(1.071)

Closing HRA General Balance at 31 March

(5.893)

(6.964)

(1.071)

* the difference between budget and actuals is primarily due to carry forwards along with an additional call on the
Housing Repairs Reserve of £0.864 million.

Housing Revenue Account 2019/20 – Capital Expenditure

HRA Capital Expenditure

Budget
2019/20
£m
7.602

Outturn
2019/20
£m
5.370

C/fwds
£m
2.151

Variance
£m
(0.081)

A summary of how this capital expenditure was financed in 2019/20 is set out below:

Major Repairs Reserve
S106
Capital Receipts
External Contributions
Revenue funding from the HRA
Total

Budget
2019/20
£m
3.754
0.380
0.461
0.117
2.890

Outturn
2019/20
£m
3.652
0.086
0.368
0.067
1.197

To Fund
C/fwds
£m
0.020
0.294
0.093
0.050
1.694

7.602

5.370

2.151

Variance
£m
(0.082)
0.001
(0.081)

The overall variance of £0.081 million is largely due to the timing and programme of works which will continue in
2020/21 and beyond supported by the Major Repairs Reserve within a wider stock condition/refurbishment
programme.

The Council’s Overall Balance Sheet
The Council’s balance sheet as at the end of March 2020 is set out within the Statement of Accounts. Some
significant matters to highlight are as follows:
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New or Significant Changes in Liabilities/Assets


Total Current Assets – At the end of 2019/20 there are Total Current Assets of £70.304 million
(£66.739 million in 2018/19) an increase of £3.565 million which reflects an increase in Short Term
Investments of £5.898 million offset by some reductions on other headings. A higher level of available
funds were invested through the year as a result of the timing of expenditure in both the revenue
account and capital programme. This continued up to 31 March. The early receipt of £2.555 million of
business rates grant relating to 2020/21 on 27 March 2020 also increased the year-end balance on
investments.



Short Term Creditors – At the end of 2019/20, there is an overall balance on this heading of £16.222
million (£12.260 million in 2018/19) an increase of £3.962 million.

This is largely due to the

prepayment by government of £2.466 million of section 31 grant (this is part of the £2.555 million
referred to in the paragraph on Total Current Assets above). In addition, an increase in Collection
Fund balances has increased the shares of balances due to government and preceptors at year end
by £1.160 million.


Capital Grants Receipts in Advance – This has reduced by £1.769 million from £2.531 million in
2018/19 to £0.762 million in 2019/20 and reflects use of Environment Agency funding for cliff
stabilisation work at Clacton and Holland as this scheme nears completion. The levels of Capital
Grants Receipts in Advance held at the end of each year can be found in note 24.



Other Long Term Liabilities - Pension Liability - At the end of 2019/20 there is an overall pension
deficit attributable to the Council of £39.602 million (£43.475 million for 2018/19) which has been
included in the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020. This reflects the calculations carried out in
accordance with IAS19 based on actuarial assumptions which were subject to a comprehensive
triennial review as at 31 March 2019. The next triennial review is due in 2022. The deficit reported for
2019/20 highlights that to date the current benefit obligations of the fund are greater than the current
value of the assets of the fund although it is important to note that the figures calculated under IAS19
differ from those calculated as part of the triennial actuarial review. Statutory arrangements for funding
the deficit calculated via the triennial actuarial review mean that the deficit on the local government
scheme will be made good by contributions over the remaining working life of employees, as assessed
by the scheme actuary.



Long Term Borrowing
The Local Government Act 2003 gives councils the freedom to determine how much they borrow for
investment in new capital projects and schemes, subject to a regulation that they have regard to the
Prudential Framework developed by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA).
This aims to ensure that the capital investment plans of local authorities are affordable, prudent, sustainable,
and that treasury management decisions are taken in accordance with good professional practice.
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The Council manages its debt portfolio with advice from external consultants.

No new borrowing was

undertaken during 2019/20 in respect of either the General Fund or Housing Revenue Account. The total
external debt of the Council as at 31 March 2020 stood at £40.621 million compared to its capital financing
requirement (which represents the overall borrowing requirement) as at 31 March 2020 of £45.554 million.
The difference between external debt and the capital financing requirement is the amount met by internal
resources.

Outlook
Although the thinking and philosophy behind the long term financial sustainability plan has been referred to earlier
on in this report, the detailed budget for 2020/21 that was ‘built’ on this approach is set out below:
General Fund
The Council’s overall net General Fund revenue budget for 2020/21 (excluding amounts carried forward from
2019/20) is £14.581 million with a summary below, including how it is financed:
2020/21
Original
£m
19.337
0.267
(3.472)

Net Cost of Services
Revenue Support for capital investment
Financing items
Net Expenditure

16.132

Net Use of Earmarked Reserves

(1.551)

Total Net Budget

14.581

Financed by:
Business Rates (excl. S31 Govt. Grant funding)
Revenue Support Grant
Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit

(4.438)
(0.429)
(1.360)

Council Tax Requirement (for Tendring District Council)

8.354

A summary of planned Capital Expenditure in 2020/21 (excluding amounts carried forward from 2019/20) and how
it is financed is as follows:
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2020/21
Original
Budget
£m
1.024

Expenditure

Financing
Government Grants
Capital Receipts
Earmarked Reserves
Direct Revenue Contributions

0.757
0.212
0.055

Total Financing

1.024

The current long term forecast going into 2021/22 and beyond reflects items such as the on-going impact from the
reduction in government funding and the potential for income growth from council tax and business rates, including
amounts from property growth. The proposed changes to business rates nationally remains as a significant risk to
Councils and will continue to be monitored and reflected in the forecast accordingly. On the expenditure side of the
forecast, inflation such as salaries and the living wage are also included along with an estimate of cost pressures
and potential savings.
Although delayed due to COVID-19, the Government’s ‘fairer funding’ review also poses a significant risk in future
years which the Council will need to remain alert to, and the forecast will need to be adjusted accordingly.
Housing Revenue Account
A summary of the HRA Revenue Budget for 2020/21 is summarised below:

Direct Expenditure
Direct Income
Indirect Income/Expenditure including Financing Costs

2020/21
Original
Budget
£m
6.585
(13.713)
7.128

Net (Surplus)/Deficit

-

Contribution to/(from) Reserves

-

A summary of the HRA Capital Programme for 2020/21 is set out below:

Page
- xxii110
-

2020/21
Original
Budget
£m
3.457

Expenditure

Financing
Major Repairs Reserve
Revenue funding from the HRA

3.176
0.281

Total Financing

3.457

As highlighted last year, the Council continues to take forward and develop a number of projects and priorities, a
key strand of which is housing delivery. This includes the development of a garden community on the west of the
district along with key actions / activities within Jaywick Sands, with further details as follow:
Regeneration of Jaywick Sands
Following on from purchases in previous years, the Council continues to explore further opportunities in
Jaywick Sands as part of the early phases of providing housing/regeneration improvements. To correct
historic market failure within the Jaywick area the Council purchased land at a price in excess of what a
private developer may wish to pay for it. The difference in values is charged to the Housing Revenue
Account as impairment. The Council is in a position to take such an approach as it can view its investments
over a longer term than the private sector. However the Council’s actions in Jaywick Sands continue to build
confidence in the market which has seen an increase in land values. This has resulted in the previous
impairment charges being reversed out with a total credit of £0.285 million being made to the HRA up to and
including 2019/20. Although the impairment charge remaining in the HRA of £1.317 million at the end of
2019/20 will inevitably limit the scale and speed of future investment in Jaywick Sands, it is not expected to
have a direct impact on the underlying HRA position which remains in good health to enable the Council to
continue to provide quality housing and associated services to its tenants.
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The Impact of COVID-19
The COVID-19 pandemic has had a considerable impact on the Council, our businesses and our residents. There
was only a very limited impact in 2019/20 given the timing of the Government’s ‘lockdown’ so the true scale of the
crisis will be only emerge in 2020/21 and beyond.
The Council has seen significant losses in income in areas such as leisure and parking along with increases in
costs in direct response to the crisis, such as those associated with working from home on an unprecedented scale
and reopening facilities on a COVID safe basis. Income from business rates and council tax are also likely to be
adversely effected, with the position only becoming clearer over the second half of the year.
The Government have reacted quickly and are supporting Local Authorities through direct grant funding along with
underwriting the risk of reduced income in the areas such as those highlighted above.
The Council is aiming to implement a ‘back to business’ initiative in the second half of 2020/21 to help the district
recover from the crisis in its Community Leadership role.
Updated financial analysis and forecasts will be presented to members over the reminder of the year, which may
need to include the approval to use reserves to balance the budget if it cannot be fully supported by the financial
assistance provided by the Government and/or cannot be accommodated within the overall budgeted position for
the year.
Further actions relating to the Councils response to the COVID-19 crisis are included in the Annual Governance
Statement (Annex to these Statement of Accounts), which will be monitored by the Council’s Audit Committee over
the course of the year.
In addition to the above, The Government are now pressing ahead with large scale reorganisation of Local
Government. Based on information published to date, the proposed reorganisation would see two tier local
government areas replaced with combined authorities where two or more existing areas will be merged and cover
areas with a population size as great as 500,000 to 600,000. Information emerging from the Government indicates
that they wish to move relatively quickly to establish the new combined authorities from 2022. Although the
Government have yet to publish their associated ‘white paper’, discussions and proactive steps are now underway
to respond to this major change within the Local Authority Sector and the financial and non-financial impact it will
undoubtedly have.

Basis of Preparation and Presentation
The financial statements and what they show including the accounting concepts etc. applied are set out in the
Statement of Accounts that follow. The financial statements are based on the going concern basis which means
that the Council will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The main elements of the financial statements are explained below and comprise of information in respect of
accounting concepts and estimation techniques, the responsibilities for the statement of accounts along with the
report of the auditors and the detailed financial statements and notes. The format and information in the Accounts
has been prepared in line with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20 (The Code). The detailed financial statements that are
required are explained below; these are split into ‘core statements’ and ‘supplementary statements’.

ACCOUNTING AND RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENTS


Accounting Concepts and Estimation Techniques - This briefly sets out the three main concepts that are
applicable along with estimation methods used in preparing the accounts.



Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts - This statement sets out the respective
responsibilities required of the Council and the Assistant Director Finance and IT for the Authority’s accounts
and financial affairs.



Report of the Auditors - The Auditor certifies that an audit of the Statement of Accounts has been
concluded and gives an opinion on their presentation and content.

CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The following four statements comprise the ‘core statements’ and are directly followed in the Statement of
Accounts by comprehensive notes supporting these statements.


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - This statement shows the accounting cost in the
year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the
amount to be funded from taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with
regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement
in Reserves Statement.



Movement in Reserves Statement (MIRS) - This statement shows the movement in the year on the
different reserves held by the authority, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund
expenditure or reduce local taxation) and ‘unusable reserves’. This statement shows how the movements in
year of the authority’s reserves are broken down between gains and losses incurred in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices and the statutory adjustments required to return to the amounts
chargeable to council tax and rents for the year. The Net Increase/Decrease line shows the statutory
General Fund Balance and Housing Revenue Account Balance movements in the year following those
adjustments.
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Balance Sheet - The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and
liabilities recognised by the authority. The net assets of the authority (assets less liabilities) are matched by
the reserves held by the authority. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves
are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the authority may use to provide services, subject to the need to
maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital
Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second category of
reserves is those that the authority is not able to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes
reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts
would only become available to provide services if the assets were sold; and reserves that hold timing
differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line ‘Adjustments between accounting basis and
funding basis under regulations’.



Cash Flow Statement - The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the
authority during the reporting period. The statement shows how the authority generates and uses cash and
cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of
net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the
authority are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the
authority. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources
which are intended to contribute to the authority’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing
activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the
authority.

Expenditure and Funding Analysis Note - In addition to the four core statements this note demonstrates to
council tax and rent payers how the funding available to the authority (i.e. government grants, rents, council tax and
business rates) for the year has been used in providing services in comparison with those resources consumed or
earned by authorities in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. The Expenditure and Funding
Analysis also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the Council’s Portfolio
Holders. Income and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is presented more
fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. This note is positioned as Note 1 to the Core
Financial Statements to provide it with due prominence.
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SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure Statement - The Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
reflects a statutory obligation (Local Government and Housing Act 1989) to maintain a separate account for
local authority housing provision such as those revenue transactions relating to the Council’s housing stock
and its other housing assets. The HRA Income and Expenditure Statement shows the economic cost in the
year of providing housing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than
the amount to be funded from rents. Authorities charge rents to cover expenditure in accordance with
regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The increase or decrease in the year, on the
basis of which rents are raised, is shown in the Movement on the HRA Statement. The Account is also
consolidated into the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement previously mentioned.



Movement on the Housing Revenue Account Statement - Similarly to the Movement in Reserves
Statement, amounts that need to be included in the HRA to arrive at an overall position for the year include
those in accordance with statute and are either added or removed from the figures in the Income and
Expenditure Statement. Accordingly this statement reconciles the income and expenditure statement with
the other items in the HRA to arrive at the overall HRA balance for the year.



Collection Fund Income and Expenditure Statement - The Collection Fund is an agent’s statement that
reflects the statutory obligation for billing authorities to maintain a separate Collection Fund. The statement
shows the transactions of the billing authority in relation to the collection from taxpayers and distribution to
local authorities and the Government of council tax and business rates. Transactions relating to Tendring
District Council are included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

OTHER INFORMATION
Additional information to aid the understanding and interpretation of the accounts:

ADDITIONAL STATEMENTS


Glossary - This explains in more detail the terms used in the Statement of Accounts.
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ACCOUNTING CONCEPTS AND ESTIMATION TECHNIQUES
Accounting Concepts
The accounting policies are detailed in a separate section (see page 69).

These are consistent with the

fundamental accounting concepts of:


Going concern – that the Authority will continue in its operational existence for the foreseeable future;



Accruals – the non-cash effects of transactions are reflected in the financial statements for the accounting
period in which those effects are experienced and not in the period in which any cash is received or paid.
Further details are provided in the separate section on Accounting Policies;



Legislative requirements – where specific legislative requirements and accounting principles conflict,
legislative requirements are applied.

Estimation Techniques
These are the methods adopted by the Council to arrive at estimated amounts, corresponding to the measurement
bases selected for assets, liabilities, gains, losses and charges to the Reserves. Where the basis of measurement
for the amount to be recognised under accounting policies is uncertain, an estimation technique is applied. In the
Council’s accounts, estimation techniques continue to be applied for the calculation of depreciation, provision for
doubtful debt, pension assets/liabilities, some grant amounts claimed from Government and the valuation of
Property, Plant and Equipment. Methods used are further explained in the separate section on accounting policies.
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS
The Authority’s Responsibilities
The Authority is required to:


make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers
has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this Authority, that officer is the Assistant
Director Finance and IT;



manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets;



approve the Statement of Accounts.

The Assistant Director Finance and IT’s Responsibilities
The Assistant Director Finance and IT is responsible for the preparation of the Authority’s Statement of Accounts in
accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting
in the United Kingdom (the Code).
In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Assistant Director Finance and IT has:


selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;



made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;



complied with the Local Authority Code.

The Assistant Director Finance and IT has also:


kept proper accounting records which were up to date;



taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Assistant Director Finance and IT’s Certificate
I certify that the accounts set out in this document give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority
at the 31 March 2020 and the income and expenditure for the year then ended.

R C Barrett
Assistant Director Finance and IT
Date: 30 November 2020
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Chair of the Audit Committee’ Certificate
I can confirm that the Audit Committee at the meeting held on the 30 November 2020 approved these accounts.

Councillor A Coley on behalf of Tendring District Council
Chair of the meeting approving the accounts
Date: 30 November 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF
TENDRING DISTRICT COUNCIL
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
Opinion on the financial statements
We have audited the financial statements of Tendring District Council (“the Council”) for the year ended 31 March
2020 which comprise the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Movement in Reserves
Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement, the Housing Revenue Account - Income and Expenditure
Statement, the Housing Revenue Account - Movement on the Housing Revenue Account Statement, the Collection
Fund Income and Expenditure Statement and notes to the financial statements including a summary of significant
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law
and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 20198/2019.
In our opinion the financial statements:


give a true and fair view of the financial position of Tendring District Council as at 31 March 2020 and of its
expenditure and income for the year then ended; and



have been prepared properly in accordance with applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20; and



have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

Basis for opinion on the financial statements
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)), the Code of
Audit Practice issued by the National Audit Office in April 2015 (“Code of Audit Practice”) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Council in accordance with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report
to you where:


the Assistant Director Finance and IT’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements is not appropriate; or



the Assistant Director Finance and IT has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Council’s ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.
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Emphasis of matter – Valuation of land and buildings (including investment properties) and
Pension Fund assets
As explained in Note 5 to the financial statements, there is a material uncertainty regarding the valuation of the
Council’s property (including Investment Property) as a result of uncertainties in global financial markets caused by
the outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19).
Note 5 also explains that valuations applied to Pension Fund assets are also reported on a ‘material valuation
uncertainty’ basis.
Consequently, less certainty, and a higher degree of caution, should be attached to these valuations than would
normally be the case. Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Other information
The Assistant Director Finance and IT is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Narrative report together with all other information included in the Statement of Accounts, other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements, the other
information published together with the financial statements in the Statement of Accounts is consistent with the
financial statements.

Conclusion on use of resources
On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion published by the National Audit
Office in April 2020, we are satisfied that, in all significant respects, the Council put in place proper arrangements to
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Basis for conclusion on use of resources
We have undertaken our review of the Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in its use of resources in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance on the
specified criterion, published by the National Audit Office in April 2020, as to whether in all significant respects, the
Council had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve
planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.
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The National Audit Office has determined this criterion as that necessary for us to consider in satisfying ourselves
whether the Council put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use
of resources for the year ended 31 March 2020.
Based on our risk assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary. We believe that the
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our conclusion.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following other matters which the Code of Audit Practice requires us to
report to you if:


we have been unable to satisfy ourselves that the Annual Governance Statement is not misleading or
inconsistent with other information that is forthcoming from the audit;



we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Act in the course of, or at the conclusion of the
audit;



we designate under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 any recommendation as one
that requires the Council to consider it at a public meeting and to decide what action to take in response;



we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law under Section
28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014;



we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014; or



we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

Responsibilities of the Assistant Director Finance and IT and the Council
As explained more fully in the Statement of the Assistant Director Finance and IT’s Responsibilities, the Assistant
Director Finance and IT is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which comprises the
financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom, and for being satisfied that the financial statements give a true
and fair view.
In preparing the financial statements, the Assistant Director Finance and IT is responsible for assessing the
Council’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Council intends to cease operations or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.
The Council is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the
adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
In respect of our audit of the financial statements our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
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they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the Financial
Reporting Council’s website at: https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.
Auditor’s responsibilities in respect of the Council’s use of resources
We are required under Section 20 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to satisfy ourselves that the
Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.
The Code of Audit Practice requires us to report to you our conclusion relating to proper arrangements, having
regard to relevant criterion specified by the National Audit Office.
We report if significant matters have come to our attention which prevent us from concluding that the Council has
put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We
are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Council’s arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.

Certificate of completion of the audit
We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of Tendring District Council in accordance with the
requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice issued by the National
Audit Office.

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the members of Tendring District Council, as a body, in accordance with part 5 of the
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in the Responsibilities of the Audited Body and
Responsibility of the Auditor within Chapter 2 of the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the members of the Council those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Council and the Council’s members, as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Lisa Clampin
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Appointed Auditor
Ipswich, UK
30 November 2020
BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127).
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
2018/19 Restated (See Note 34)
Expenditure
Income
Net
£000
£000
£000

Page 123

3,361
3,962
10,546
74,059
516
693
9,643
1,290
823

(1,564)
(317)
(4,640)
(73,559)
(32)
(150)
(4,484)
(838)
(279)

1,797
3,645
5,906
500
484
543
5,159
452
544

104,893

(85,863)

19,030

2,496

(772)

1,724

3,667

(713)

2,954

5,858

(29,121)

(23,263)
445
(4,935)
(9,363)

Expenditure
£000
EXPENDITURE ON SERVICES
Leader
Corporate Finance and Governance
Environment and Public Space
Housing
Partnerships
Business and Economic Growth
Leisure and Tourism
Independent Living
Budgets Relating to Non Executive Functions

2019/20
Income
£000

Net
£000

Note
Ref

4,805
2,464
11,902
67,055
581
1,026
11,257
1,361
1,579

(1,931)
(263)
(4,752)
(65,046)
(285)
(95)
(4,470)
(849)
(644)

2,874
2,201
7,150
2,009
296
931
6,787
512
935

102,030

(78,335)

23,695

Other Operating Income and Expenditure

3,149

(1,621)

1,528

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

2,610

(840)

1,770

11

Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure

6,164

(32,061)

(25,897)

12

Net Cost of Services

(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services

1,096

(Surplus) or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset)

(12,324) 10(a)
(7,295) 10(c)

(14,298)

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

(19,619)

(13,853)

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

(18,523)
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MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT
General
Fund
Balances

Balance at 1 April 2018 brought forward
Movement in reserves during the year
Total comprehensive expenditure and income
Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under
regulations

Housing
Revenue
Account

£000

£000

27,624

8,441

(688)

243

Capital
Grants
Unapplied
Reserve
£000
£000

Major
Repairs
Reserve

4,858

-

166

Capital
Receipts
Reserve

Total
Usable
Reserves

Unusable
Reserves

Total
Authority
Reserves

£000

£000

£000

£000

5,723

46,812

119,239

166,051

14,298

13,853

-

-

(445)

99

(47)

-

555

4,878

(4,878)

-

3,583

342

(47)

-

555

4,433

9,420

13,853

Balance at 31 March 2019 carried forward

31,207

8,783

4,811

166

6,278

51,245

128,659

179,904

Balance at 1 April 2019 brought forward

31,207

8,783

4,811

166

6,278

51,245

128,659

179,904

(1,096)

19,619

18,523
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4,271

Increase/(Decrease) in Year

Movement in reserves during the year
Total comprehensive expenditure and income
Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under
regulations
Increase/(Decrease) in Year
Balance at 31 March 2020 carried forward

(2,089)

993

-

-

-

3,774

(2,812)

(476)

1,724

1,391

3,601

(3,601)

-

1,685

(1,819)

(476)

1,724

1,391

2,505

16,018

18,523

32,892

6,964

1,890

7,669

53,750

144,677

198,427
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4,335

Note
Ref

7

8,10

7

8,10

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2020
31/03/2019
£000

31/03/2020 Note
£000 Ref

213,977
7
2,300
158
483

Long Term Assets
- Property Plant and Equipment
- Heritage Assets
- Investment Property
- Intangible Assets
- Long Term Debtors

224,385
2,155
69
483

216,925

Total Long Term Assets

227,092

57,126
533
68
5,296
3,716

Current Assets
- Short Term Investments
- Assets Held for Sale
- Inventories
- Short Term Debtors
- Cash and Cash Equivalents

63,024
33
31
3,986
3,230

66,739

Total Current Assets

70,304

(2,085)
(12,260)
(1,385)
(2,531)

Current Liabilities
- Short Term Borrowing
- Short Term Creditors
- Provisions
- Capital Grants Receipts in Advance

(2,029)
(16,222)
(1,503)
(762)

(18,261)

Total Current Liabilities

(20,516)

(1,712)
(40,312)
(43,475)

Long Term Liabilities
- Long Term Creditors
- Long Term Borrowing
- Other Long Term Liabilities - Pensions

(259)
(38,592)
(39,602)

(85,499)

Total Long Term Liabilities

(78,453)

179,904

Total Net Assets

198,427

51,245
128,659

Financed by:
Usable Reserves
Unusable Reserves

53,750
144,677

179,904

Total Reserves

198,427

R C Barrett
Assistant Director Finance and IT
30 November 2020
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13
14
15

15

17
18

15
19
24

19
15
29

9
10

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
2018/19
£000
(445)

8,657
800
134
967
579
4,544
194
604
(9)

2019/20
£000
Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services
Adjustments to net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services for
non-cash movements:
Depreciation, revaluation and impairment of non-current assets
Movement in Investment Property Values
Amortisation of Intangible Assets
Increase/decrease in creditors
Increase/decrease in debtors
Movement in pension liability
Contributions to/(from) provisions
Carrying amount of non-current assets and non-current assets
held for sale, sold or derecognised
Other items

(4,737)
(892)

Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the
provision of services that are investing and financing activities:
Capital Grants credited to surplus or deficit on the provision of
services
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment

10,396

Net cash flows from Operating Activities

(9,620)
(1,872)

Investing Activities
Financing Activities

(1,096)

Net increase or (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Note
£000 Ref
(1,096)

10,592
145
89
1,896
1,320
3,422
118
1,446
36

19,064

(5,124)
(2,118)

(7,242)
10,726

20

(10,426)
(786)

21
22

(486)

4,812

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period

3,716

3,716

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period

3,230
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NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1

Expenditure and Funding Analysis
2018/19 Restated (See Note 34)
Expenditure
Adjustment
Net
Chargeable to
between
Expenditure in
GF and HRA Funding and
the CIES
Balances
Accounting
basis
£000
£000
£000

Page 127

1,797
(3,180)
5,906
884
484
543
5,159
452
544

6,825
(384)
-

1,797
3,645
5,906
500
484
543
5,159
452
544

12,589

6,441

19,030

(16,514)

(2,071)

(18,585)

(3,925)

4,370

(36,065)
(3,925)
(39,990)

445

2019/20
Expenditure
Adjustment
Net
Note
Chargeable to
between
Expenditure in Ref
GF and HRA Funding and
the CIES
Balances
Accounting
basis
£000
£000
£000
EXPENDITURE ON SERVICES
Leader
Corporate Finance and Governance
Environment and Public Space
Housing
Partnerships
Business and Economic Growth
Leisure and Tourism
Independent Living
Budgets Relating to Non Executive Functions

2,874
(5,293)
7,150
3,205
296
931
6,787
512
935

7,494
(1,196)
-

2,874
2,201
7,150
2,009
296
931
6,787
512
935

Net Cost of Services

17,397

6,298

23,695

(17,263)

(5,336)

(22,599)

Other Income and Expenditure
(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services
Opening General Fund and HRA Balances
(Surplus) or Deficit on General Fund and HRA Balances in
Year

134

1,096

(39,990)
134

Closing General Fund and HRA Balances at 31 March 2017 (39,856)
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962

8

Expenditure and Funding Analysis – Adjustments between funding basis and accounting basis
2018/19 Restated (See Note 34)
Adjustments Pensions
Other
Total
for Capital Adjustments Differences Adjustments
Purposes (see b below) (see c below)
(see a below)
£000
£000
£000
£000

2019/20
Adjustments Pensions
Other
Total
for Capital Adjustments Differences Adjustments
Purposes (see b below) (see c below)
(see a below)
£000
£000
£000
£000
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2,958
787

180

3,867
(1,351)

6,825
(384)

EXPENDITURE ON SERVICES
Corporate Finance and Governance
Housing

1,696
(129)

240

5,798
(1,307)

7,494
(1,196)

3,745

180

2,516

6,441

Net Cost of Services

1,567

240

4,491

6,298

(2,071)

(5,336)

(3,871)

4,364

(2,564)

(126)

4,544

(48)

4,370

Other Income and Expenditure

(3,433)

3,182

(5,085)

(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services

(1,866)

3,422

(594)
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a) Adjustments for Capital Purposes – This Column adjusts for:


Reversals of depreciation, impairment and revaluation gains/losses.



Capital disposals with a transfer of income on disposal of assets and the amounts written off for
those assets.



Statutory charges for capital financing, i.e., Minimum Revenue Provision and other revenue
contributions are deducted from other income and expenditure as these are not chargeable
under generally accepted accounting practices.



Capital grants are adjusted from the service segments and included under Taxation and NonSpecific Grant Income and Expenditure in accordance with generally accepted accounting
practices in the Code.

b) Pensions Adjustments – This gives the net change for the removal of pension contributions and
the addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefits pension related expenditure and income. This includes
removal of the employer pension contributions made by the authority as allowed by statute and the
replacement with current service costs and past service costs. Net interest on the defined benefit
liability is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement under Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure.
c) Other Differences – This includes the difference between what is chargeable under statutory
regulations for Council Tax and Business Rates that was projected to be received at the start of the
year and the income recognised under generally accepted accounting practices in the Code. This is a
timing difference as any difference will be brought forward in future Surpluses or Deficits on the
Collection Fund. This is reflected under Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
This column also includes the adjustments for Revenue Grants which are to be included under
Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices.

2

Accounting Policies
The Council is required to prepare a Statement of Accounts for each financial year by the Accounts and
Audit Regulations 2015 in accordance with proper accounting practices as set out in the Chartered Institute
of Public Finance and Accountancy 2019/20 Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom (the Code).
Detailed information on the Council’s Accounting Policies are detailed in a separate section (see page 69).
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3

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The appropriate accounting treatment of Grants and Contributions is a result of critical judgements made
about whether any attached terms are restrictions or conditions and whether any conditions have been met,
see accounting policy i). If conditions are met, or there are no conditions or only restrictions, then the
income must be shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. However, if there are
conditions and they have not been met they must be shown in the Balance Sheet. The Council also
recognises as income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement income received under
s106 planning agreements in the year of receipt as, although these have conditions action is always taken to
ensure the conditions are met. Details of grants recognised during the year are set out in Note 24.

4

Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted
The changes introduced by the 2020/21 Code will have very little impact on Tendring District Council, as
adoption of the new leasing standard, IFRS16, has been deferred to 2021/22 and amendments to the IAS19
Employee Benefits relating to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement are not expected to have a
material impact on the Financial Statements.

5

Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty
The preparation of the Statement of Accounts requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported for assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date and the
amounts reported for revenues and expenses during the year. However, the nature of estimates means that
the actual outcomes could differ from those estimates.
The key judgements and estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of causing adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are as follows:
a)

COVID-19
The outbreak of COVID-19 has had a substantial effect on the world, its economy, the UK and the
local area.
It is clear that the pandemic and the ensuring economic damage which will need to be repaired is
likely to have an impact on the Council, its assets and its future operations, but it is too early to
ascertain with any certainty what the likely adverse impact will be.
The Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors has urged caution with its members in respect of property
valuations undertaken in light of the global coronavirus pandemic and the possible consequences on
the reliance that can be placed on valuations carried out for the 2019/20 accounts. Where RICS
regulated members conclude there is material uncertainty, they have recommended following phrasing
be used:
The outbreak of the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19), declared by the World Health Organisation as a
“Global Pandemic” on 11 March 2020, has impacted global financial markets. Travel restrictions have
been implemented by many countries.
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Market activity is being impacted in many sectors. As at the valuation date, we consider that we can
attach less weight to previous market evidence for comparison purposes, to inform opinions of value.
Indeed, the current response to COVID-19 means that we are faced with an unprecedented set of
circumstances on which to base a judgement. Our valuations are therefore reported on the basis of
‘material valuation uncertainty’ as per VPS 3 and VPGA 10 of the RICS Red Book Global.
Consequently, less certainty – and a higher degree of caution – should be attached to our valuation
than would normally be the case. Given the unknown future impact that COVID-19 might have on the
real estate market, we recommend that you keep the valuation of [this property] under frequent review.
In terms of these accounts, the Council places reliance on the professional valuers in providing
accurate valuations for properties defined as Council Dwellings, Other Land and Buildings and
Investment Properties. While there is always a degree of judgement and estimation involved in these
valuations, it is clear from the above that for 2019/20, this is greater than under normal circumstances.
Users of the accounts should therefore take this into account when reaching any conclusions in
respect of the Councils finances in these particular areas.
In addition to the valuations of the Council’s own property, the COVID-19 outbreak has resulted in
similar levels of uncertainty on property valuations within the Essex Pension Fund.

The IAS 19

assurance letter produced by the Essex Pension Fund auditor states that material valuation
uncertainty has been reported by the valuers of direct properties and property unit trusts. Tendring
District Council’s proportionate share of these assets is £11.206 million and therefore, as with the
Council’s own property valuations, users of the accounts should take this additional uncertainty into
account when reaching any conclusions in respect of pension fund valuations in 2019/20.
b)

Property, Plant and Equipment Valuations
As set out in note 13 on Property Plant & Equipment, the Council uses the services of an external
professional Valuer in valuing assets. In accordance with the Code council dwellings are valued on a
beacon basis by grouping similar houses together and applying the social housing discount factor set
by central government. Land and buildings are valued either at existing use value (EUV) which is
based on market evidence and the Valuer's professional judgement assuming they remain in existing
use or for specialised assets at Depreciated Replacement cost (DRC) which includes assumptions
made by the Valuer for relevant build costs, obsolescence and professional fees costs.

c)

Pensions Liability
Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements relating to
the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes in retirement
ages, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. A firm of consulting actuaries is
engaged (via Essex County Council) to provide the Authority with expert advice about the
assumptions to be applied.
The effects on the net pension liability of changes in individual assumptions can be measured. For
instance, a 0.1% increase in the discount rate assumption would result in a decrease in the pension
liability of £2.945 million.
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However, the assumptions interact in complex ways. During 2019/20, the Authority’s actuaries advised
that the net pensions liability had decreased by £3.873 million primarily as a result of updating the
assumptions and increases in the value of the fund assets.
This list does not include assets and liabilities that are carried at fair value based on a recently observed
market price.

6

Events after the Reporting Period
The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Assistant Director Finance and IT on 26 August
2020. Consideration for events arising after the Balance Sheet date is given up to the date the accounts are
authorised for issue.
As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic on 23 March the government imposed a lockdown on the whole
population, banning all “non-essential” travel and contact with people outside the home, and shutting almost
all businesses, venues, facilities and places of worship.
More detail on the implications of this for the Council has been included in the Narrative Report in the
Section titled ‘The impact of COVID-19’ starting on page xxiv.
There is little certainty as to the full impact of the measures taken by government to control the pandemic on
the resources available to the Council. Where impacts have created uncertainty of information included, this
has been highlighted in the narrative paragraphs within the statements and any accompanying notes.
This event is therefore deemed to be a non-adjusting event for the purposes of the accounts for the year
ending 31 March 2020.
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7

Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis Under Regulations
This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure recognised by the Authority in the year in accordance with
proper accounting practice to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Authority to meet future capital and revenue
expenditure.
2018/19
General
Fund
Balance
£000

Housing
Revenue
Account
£000

Major
Repairs
Reserve
£000

2019/20
Capital
Grants
Unapplied
£000

Capital
Receipts
Reserve

General
Fund
Balance

£000

2,709
800
113

5,948
21

-

-

-

Adjustm ents to the Revenue Resources
Amounts by w hich income and expenditure included in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement are different from
revenue for the year calculated in accordance w ith statutory
requirements:
Pensions costs (transferred to/from the Pensions Reserve)
Council Tax and Business Rates (transferred to/from the Collection
Fund Adjustment Account)
Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services in relation to capital expenditure (these items
are charged to the Capital Adjustment Account):
- Depreciation, revaluation and impairment of non-current assets
- Movement in Investment Property Values
- Amortisation of intangible assets

7,937

6,150

-

-

-

Total Adjustm ents to Revenue Resources

4,363
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(48)

181

-

-

-

-

-

-

-
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Housing
Revenue
Account

Major
Repairs
Reserve

£000

Capital
Receipts
Reserve

£000

£000

3,182

240

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(594)

£000

Capital
Grants
Unapplied

£000

4,705
145
68

5,887
21

-

-

-

7,506

6,148

-

-

-

2018/19
General
Fund
Balance
£000

Housing
Revenue
Account
£000

Major
Repairs
Reserve
£000

2019/20
Capital
Grants
Unapplied
£000

Capital
Receipts
Reserve
£000

(207)

(685)

-

-

892

120

484

-

-

-

13

-

-

(13)

(680)

-

(4,057)
302
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(236)
5
1,140

-

-

(3,177)
(1,664)
-

3,177
-

-

(302)
(5)

Provision for the repayment of debt (transfer from the Capital
Adjustment Account)
Mitigation of Finance Lease costs in accordance w ith regulation

Major
Repairs
Reserve

£000

(734)

(1,384)

-

-

504

942

-

-

-

18

-

-

(18)

(2,499)

-

-

-

(3,215)
315
-

(3,176)

3,176

£000

Capital
Receipts
Reserve

£000

-

£000

Capital
Grants
Unapplied

3,605
-

£000

2,118

(315)

-

-

(227)
6

(1,664)
-

-

-

(6)

-

Revenue expenditure financed from capital under statute (transfer
from the Capital Adjustment Account)

1,547

-

-

-

-

-

Capital expenditure financed from revenue balances (transfer to
the Capital Adjustment Account)

(1,928)

(1,197)

-

-

-

(342)

(3,666)

(6,051)

3,177

3,638

572

Total Adjustm ents betw een Revenue and Capital Resources

(3,732)

(8,960)

3,176

3,605

1,779

-

-

(3,224)
-

(3,638)
-

(77)
60

Adjustm ents to Capital Resources
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance capital expenditure
Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance capital expenditure
Application of capital grants to finance capital expenditure
Cash payments in relation to deferred capital receipts

-

-

(3,652)
-

(1,881)
-

(396)
8

-

-

(3,224)

(3,638)

(17)

Total Adjustm ents to Capital Resources

-

-

(3,652)

(1,881)

(388)

-

555

Total Adjustm ents

(476)

1,724

1,391

99

(47)

-

-

Adjustm ents betw een Revenue and Capital Resources
Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds from revenue to the
Capital Receipts Reserve and Deferred Capital Receipts
Amounts of non-current assets w ritten off to the Capital
Adjustment Account on disposal
Administrative costs of non-current asset disposals (funded by a
contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve)
Transfer of capital grants, contributions and donated assets
income credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Payments to the government housing receipts pool (funded by a
transfer from the Capital Receipts Reserve)
Posting of HRA resources from revenue to the Major Repairs
Reserve

Housing
Revenue
Account

(733)

4,271

-

3,638

General
Fund
Balance

3,774
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(2,812)

8

Transfers to/from General Fund and HRA Balances
This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund and HRA balances including earmarked reserves which are used to provide financing for future
expenditure plans and the amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to meet General Fund and HRA expenditure.
Balance at
1 April
2018
£000
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General Fund:
Revenue Commitments Reserve
Capital Commitments Reserve
Forecast Risk Fund
Asset Refurbishment/Replacement Reserve
Beach Recharge Reserve
Benefit Reserve
Building for the Future Reserve
Business Rate Resilience Reserve
Careline System Replacement Reserve
Commuted Sums Reserve
Crematorium Reserve
Election Reserve
Haven Gateway Partnership Reserve
Leisure Capital Projects Reserve
Planning Inquiries and Enforcement Reserve
Residents Free Parking Reserve
Section 106 Agreements Reserve
Specific Revenue Grants Reserve - Homelessness
Total General Fund Earmarked Reserves
General Fund Balance
Total General Fund
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Transfers
Out
2018/19
£000

Transfers Balance at
In
31 March
2018/19
2019
£000
£000

Transfers
Out
2019/20
£000

Transfers Balance at
In
31 March
2019/20
2020
£000
£000

11,607
4,591
1,888
135
1,500
1,100
56
1,608
37
97
154
60
75
50
279
221
166

(11,386)
(4,591)
(522)
(100)
(39)
(20)
(85)

11,579
4,868
2,131
1,277
150
241
30
50
-

11,800
4,868
3,497
135
1,500
1,000
1,333
1,758
37
299
154
90
75
100
259
221
81

(11,579)
(4,655)
(932)
(37)
(29)
(120)
(551)
(160)
(81)

11,202
3,580
523
1,134
1,277
119
30
575
1,389
-

11,423
3,793
3,088
1,269
1,500
1,000
2,610
1,758
389
154
75
124
99
221
1,389
-

23,624

(16,743)

20,326

27,207

(18,144)

19,829

28,892

4,000

-

-

4,000

-

-

4,000

27,624

(16,743)

20,326

31,207

(18,144)

19,829

32,892

Balance at
1 April
2018
£000

Transfers
Out
2018/19
£000

Transfers Balance at
In
31 March
2018/19
2019
£000
£000

Transfers
Out
2019/20
£000

Transfers Balance at
In
31 March
2019/20
2020
£000
£000

Housing Revenue Account:
Housing Repairs Reserve
Housing Revenue Account Commitments Reserve
General Reserve

955
2,752
4,734

(3,772)
(2,752)
(140)

3,681
2,891
434

864
2,891
5,028

(4,781)
(1,197)
-

3,917
242

1,694
5,270

Total Housing Revenue Account

8,441

(6,664)

7,006

8,783

(5,978)

4,159

6,964
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Usable Reserves
Movements in the Authority’s usable reserves are shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement with
additional detail provided in notes 7 and 8.
The following schedule lists the usable reserves together with their purpose:
a)

General Fund Balance
Resources available to meet future running costs for non-Housing Revenue Account services.

b)

Capital Receipts
Proceeds of non-current asset sales available to meet future capital investment.

c)

Capital Grants Unapplied
Balance of capital grants recognised as income but not yet utilised for capital funding.

d)

Earmarked Reserves
The Council’s Earmarked Reserves provide funds for the following specific policy purposes:
i)

Revenue Commitments Reserve
This is earmarked for revenue items of expenditure for which financial provision was made in
the previous or current year.

ii)

Capital Commitments Reserve
This is earmarked for capital items of expenditure for which financial provision was made in the
previous or current year.

iii)

Forecast Risk Fund
This reserve has been established to support planned annual budget deficits as part of the Long
Term Financial Sustainability Plan.

iv)

Asset Refurbishment/Replacement Reserve
To provide for the maintenance, enhancement and replacement of the Council’s assets.

v)

Beach Recharge Reserve
To fund future costs of replenishing the beaches with sand along the Clacton to Holland
coastline.

vi)

Benefit Reserve
To meet any potential costs arising from the obligation to pay benefits and to support future
changes to the Welfare Regime.

vii)

Building for the Future Reserve
To support the delivery of a balanced budget in future years.
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viii)

Business Rates Resilience Reserve
To support the Council in reacting to potential future changes in Business Rate appeals and
income.

ix)

Careline System Replacement Reserve
To finance future equipment/investment.

The balance on this reserve was fully utilised in

2019/20.
x)

Commuted Sums Reserve
Established from commuted sums paid to the Council to cover such items as maintenance costs
of Open Spaces and CCTV.

xi)

Crematorium Reserve
To finance future replacement and improvement works to the crematorium plant and equipment
at Weeley.

xii)

Election Reserve
To finance future costs associated with holding District Elections on a periodic basis.

xiii)

Haven Gateway Partnership Reserve
To support the costs associated with the Haven Gateway Partnership.

xiv)

Leisure Capital Projects Reserve
This reserve has been established to fund ongoing investment in Leisure Facilities.

xv)

Planning Inquiries and Enforcement Reserve
To meet associated costs relating to planning services.

xvi)

Residents Free Parking Reserve
To support the continuation of the residents’ free parking initiative in the District.

xvii)

Section 106 Agreements Reserve
This reserve holds income received from developers under Section 106 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 to be spent on specific projects over a number of years in
accordance with the terms of the agreements.

xviii) Specific Revenue Grants Reserve - Homelessness
This reserve holds the grants received from the Government for which a restriction on their use
has been placed by the Government. The balance on this reserve was fully utilised in 2019/20.
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e)

Housing Revenue Account
i)

General Reserve
Resources available to meet future running costs for council houses.

ii)

Housing Repairs Reserve
Resources available to meet the cost of on-going repairs to council houses.

iii)

Housing Revenue Account Commitments Reserve
This is earmarked for items of expenditure for which financial provision was made in the
previous or current year.

10

Unusable Reserves
2018/19
£000
36,487
134,360
(43,475)
275
1,146
(134)

Revaluation Reserve
Capital Adjustment Account
Pensions Reserve
Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve
Collection Fund Adjustment Account
Accumulated Absences Account

2019/20
£000
47,484
134,922
(39,602)
267
1,740
(134)

128,659

a)

144,677

Revaluation Reserve
The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Authority arising from increases in the value
of its Property, Plant and Equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains
are:


Revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost,



Used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or



Disposed of and the gains are realised.

The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the
Reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance on
the Capital Adjustment Account.
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2018/19
£000

£000
32,385

5,664

(729)

4,935

Balance at 1 April
Upward revaluation of assets

13,853

Downward revaluation of assets and impairment
losses not charged to the Surplus/Deficit on the
Provision of Services

(1,529)

Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current
assets not posted to the Surplus or Deficit on
the Provision of Services
Difference between fair value depreciation and
historical cost depreciation
Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped

(749)
(84)
(833)
36,487

b)

2019/20
£000

£000
36,487

12,324

(1,077)
(250)

Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment
Account

(1,327)

Balance at 31 March

47,484

Capital Adjustment Account
The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the
acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The Account is
debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses
and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (with
reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical cost
basis). The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Authority as finance for the costs of
acquisition, construction and enhancement.
The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1
April 2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.
Note 7 provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account, apart from those
involving the Revaluation Reserve.
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2018/19
£000
£000
133,849

(8,657)
(800)
(134)
(1,140)

(604)

Balance at 1 April
Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure
debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement:
Charges for depreciation, revaluation and
impairment of non-current assets
Movement in Investment Property Values
Amortisation of Intangible Assets
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under
statute
Amounts of non-current assets written off on
disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss on
disposal to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

(11,335)

2019/20
£000
£000
134,360

(10,592)
(145)
(89)
(1,547)

(1,446)
(13,819)

Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation
Reserve

833

(10,502)

Net written out amount of the cost of non-current
assets consumed in the year
Capital financing applied in the year:
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance
new capital expenditure
Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance
new capital expenditure
Application of grants, donated assets and
contributions to capital financing
Statutory provision for the financing of capital
investment charged against the General Fund
and HRA Balances
Capital expenditure charged against General
Fund or HRA

77
3,224
4,737

1,900
1,075
11,013
134,360

1,327

Total amount of capital financing applied in the
year
Balance at 31 March
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(12,492)

396
3,652
3,990

1,891
3,125
13,054
134,922

c)

Pensions Reserve
The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for
accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory
provisions. The Authority accounts for post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating
the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any
resources set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be
financed as the Authority makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any
pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore
shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources
the Authority has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will
have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid.
2018/19
£000

£000
(48,294)
9,363

(6,634)
2,090
(4,544)
(43,475)

d)

2019/20
£000
Balance at 1 April
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit
liability (asset)
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits
debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement
Employer's pensions contributions and direct
payments to pensioners payable in the year
Total adjustments to revenue resources

£000
(43,475)
7,295

(5,619)
2,197
(3,422)
(39,602)

Balance at 31 March

Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve
The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non-current
assets but for which cash settlement has yet to take place.

Under statutory arrangements, the

Authority does not treat these gains as usable for financing new capital expenditure until they are
backed by cash receipts. When the deferred cash settlement eventually takes place, amounts are
transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.
2018/19
£000
335
(60)
275

Balance at 1 April
Transfer to the Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash
Balance at 31 March
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2019/20
£000
275
(8)
267

e)

Collection Fund Adjustment Account
The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of
council tax and business rates income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it
falls due compared with the statutory arrangements for paying amounts across to the General Fund
from the Collection Fund.

Council Tax
£000
342

Balance at 1 April 2018

f)

Business
Rates
£000
756

Total
£000
1,098

Amount by which income credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement is different from income calculated
for the year in accordance with statutory requirements

(46)

94

48

Balance at 31 March 2019

296

850

1,146

Balance at 1 April 2019
Amount by which income credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement is different from income calculated
for the year in accordance with statutory requirements

296

850

1,146

100

494

594

Balance at 31 March 2020

396

1,344

1,740

Accumulated Absences Account
There has been no net movement on the Accumulated Absences Account during the year.

11

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
2018/19
£000
1,662
1,205
(506)
800
(207)
2,954

Interest payable and similar charges
Net interest on the defined benefit liability (asset)
Interest receivable and similar income
Movement in Investment Property Values
Rental Income from Investment Property
Total

2019/20
£000
1,447
1,018
(629)
145
(211)
1,770
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Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure
2018/19
£000
9,588
10,958
(5,858)
4,937
3,638
23,263

Council tax income
Retained Business Rates Income
Business Rates Tariff and Levy
Non-Ringfenced Government Grants
Capital Grants, Contributions and Donated Assets

2019/20
£000
10,194
11,452
(6,164)
6,220
4,195

Total

25,897

Further details for the Non-Ringfenced and Capital Grants disclosed above are provided on note 24.
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13

Property, Plant and Equipment
a)

Movement on Balances

Movements in 2019/20

Page 145

Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2019
Additions
Accumulated depreciation and impairment written off to Gross
Carrying Amount
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the Revaluation
Reserve
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services
Derecognition - Disposals
Assets reclassified (to)/from Assets Under Construction
At 31 March 2020

Vehicles
Other
Plant,
Council
InfraLand and Furniture
Dwellings
structure
Buildings and Equipment

Community
Assets

Total
Assets
Property,
Surplus
Under
Plant and
Assets ConstrucEquiption
ment

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

122,860
4,327

54,887
559

5,956
1,257

50,806
95

514
20

35
-

3,573
3,358

238,631
9,616

-

(2,439)

(3,945)

-

-

-

9,377

2,958

-

-

-

(3,289)
(841)
-

(1,020)
(113)
62

(897)
-

-

-

129,995
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53,388

6,316

50,901

534

5
-

-

(6,384)

-

12,340

-

(4,309)
(1,851)
-

(62)
40

6,869

248,043

Movements in 2019/20
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Depreciation and impairments
At 1 April 2019
Depreciation Charge for 2019/20
Accumulated depreciation written off to Gross Carrying Amount
Accumulated impairment written off to Gross Carrying Amount
Impairment losses/(reversals) recognised in the Revaluation
Reserve
Impairment losses/(reversals) recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on
the Provision of Services
Derecognition - Disposals
At 31 March 2020

Vehicles
Other
Plant,
Council
InfraLand and Furniture
Dwellings
structure
Buildings and Equipment
£000

£000

£000

(1,593)
(2,494)
2,416
23

(3,296)
(1,356)
3,945
-

(4,329)
(399)
-

(17)

-

(53)
10

-

(1,708)

2
(705)

£000

(15,403)
(1,977)
-

897

Community
Assets
£000

(33)
(1)

Total
Assets
Property,
Surplus
Under
Plant and
Assets ConstrucEquiption
ment
£000

£000

£000

-

-

-

(24,654)
(6,227)
6,361
23

-

-

-

-

(17)

-

-

-

-

(53)
909

-

-

(23,658)

(3,831)

(17,380)

(34)

Net Book Value
at 31 March 2020

128,287

52,683

2,485

33,521

500

40

6,869

224,385

at 1 April 2019

121,267

51,591

1,627

35,403

481

35

3,573

213,977
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Movements in 2018/19
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Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2018
Additions
Accumulated depreciation and impairment written off to Gross
Carrying Amount
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the Revaluation
Reserve
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services
Derecognition - Disposals
Assets reclassified (to)/from Assets Held for Sale
Other Movements in cost or valuation
At 31 March 2019

Vehicles
Other
Plant,
Council
InfraLand and Furniture
Dwellings
structure
Buildings and Equipment

Community
Assets

Total
Assets
Property,
Surplus
Under
Plant and
Assets ConstrucEquiption
ment

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

122,317
3,388

52,902
1,023

5,687
269

50,395
411

512
2

35
-

730
2,846

232,578
7,939

(2,572)
2,943
(2,731)
(486)
1
122,860
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(759)
1,992
351
(122)
(500)
54,887

-

-

-

-

-

(3,331)

-

-

-

-

-

4,935

-

-

-

-

-

5,956

50,806

514

(2)
(1)
35

3,573

(2,380)
(610)
(500)
238,631

Movements in 2018/19
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Depreciation and impairments
At 1 April 2018
Depreciation Charge for 2018/19
Accumulated depreciation written off to Gross Carrying Amount
Impairment losses/(reversals) recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on
the Provision of Services
Derecognition - Disposals
Other Movements in depreciation and impairment
At 31 March 2019

Vehicles
Other
Plant,
Council
InfraLand and Furniture
Dwellings
structure
Buildings and Equipment
£000

£000

£000

(1,564)
(2,582)
2,572

(2,760)
(1,297)
759

(3,917)
(416)
-

(23)
4
(1,593)

2
-

4

£000

(13,443)
(1,960)
-

Community
Assets
£000

(32)
(1)

Total
Assets
Property,
Surplus
Under
Plant and
Assets ConstrucEquiption
ment
£000

£000

£000

-

-

-

(21,716)
(6,256)
3,331

-

-

-

(23)
6
4

-

-

(24,654)

(3,296)

(4,329)

(15,403)

(33)

Net Book Value
at 31 March 2019

121,267

51,591

1,627

35,403

481

35

3,573

213,977

at 1 April 2018

120,753

50,142

1,770

36,952

480

35

730

210,862
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b)

Depreciation
An annual charge for depreciation is required to be made on all non-current assets with the exception
of non- depreciable land and assets held for sale. There is also a requirement to undertake an annual
test for ‘impairment’ which is caused by either a consumption of economic benefits or a general fall in
prices.
In accordance with these requirements, depreciation has been provided in 2019/20 on a straight-line
basis over the expected life of the Council’s non-current assets after allowing for residual values,
based on information provided by the Council’s valuer.
The following useful lives and depreciation rates have been used in the calculation of depreciation:


Council Dwellings – 30 years.



Other Buildings – Up to a maximum of 70 years, depending on the asset, its location and type of
construction, as set out in table below:
Life
11-68 years
56 years
45-50 years
30-40 years
20-30 years

10-20 years
1-16 years
2 years

c)

Asset Categories
Public conveniences
Princes Theatre, Crematorium buildings
Council offices, Chapels, cemetery buildings, historic buildings, public halls,
Frinton and Walton pool
Clacton leisure centre, squash courts, Dovercourt pool, Cliff Park building
Harwich
Jaywick starter units, Beach office, Car park buildings, former cash office in
Dovercourt, print unit, first aid station, kiosks and shops, miscellaneous
buildings, sea cadet station, museums, sports pavilions, depots, beach
changing facilities
Beach huts, deck chair kiosks, garages
Seafront Shelters
Dovercourt all-weather pitch



Land – this is not depreciated.



Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment – 4 to 20 years.



Infrastructure – 20 years.

Capital Commitments
At 31 March 2020, the Authority had entered into a number of contracts for the construction or
enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment with 2020/21 and future years budgeted to cost
£0.916 million. Similar commitments as 31 March 2019 were £3.391 million. The major commitments
over £25,000 as at 31 March 2020 or entered into before the publication of the accounts are:
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d)

Revaluations
A full revaluation of General Fund and Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Properties was undertaken in
2016/17. In respect of 2019/20, a desk top revaluation of the Council’s Housing Stock and General
Fund properties was undertaken as at 30 September 2019 by Ian Pitt, MRICS and Martin Wilson,
MRICS of Bruton Knowles in accordance with the RICS Valuation – Global Standards 2017 as
published by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Where there had been significant changes
since 2018/19, instead of just a desktop revaluation, the relevant properties were subject to a full
revaluation as at 30 September 2019.
An estimate was also obtained from Martin Wilson of Bruton Knowles as to the change in value from
30 September 2019 to 31 March 2020 of all the Authority’s non-current assets. For General Fund land
and buildings, the movement was estimated at a reduction of 0.25% in value for specialised assets
and of less than 2% for non-specialised assets.

The Council considers these movements are

immaterial so they are not reflected in the Balance Sheet. For HRA Assets the indices provided by the
Valuer were modelled through the portfolio and would have resulted in a decrease of £0.805 million
which the Council did not consider material so they are not reflected in the Balance Sheet. See note 4
which highlights additional valuation risks for the position at 31 March 2020 due to the COVID-19
pandemic. The Supplementary Financial Statement for the HRA sets out additional valuation details
relating to the Council’s housing stock.
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Investment Properties
The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
2018/19
£000
(207)
(207)

Rental Income from Investment Property
Direct operating expenses arising from Investment Property
Net gain/loss

2019/20
£000
(211)
(211)

There are no restrictions on the authority’s ability to realise the value inherent it its investment property or on
the authority’s right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal.

The authority has no

contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property, or repairs, maintenance or
enhancement.
The movement in the fair value of investment property over the year is as follows:
2018/19
£000
3,100
(800)
2,300

Balance at start of year
Purchases
Net Gains/losses from fair value adjustments
Balance at end of the year

2019/20
£000
2,300
(145)
2,155
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a)

Fair Value hierarchy
The investment property held is a commercial unit and is valued at Level 2 under accounting policy r),
with significant observable inputs.
The fair value has been based on the market approach using current market conditions and recent
sales prices and other relevant information for similar assets in the local area.
Sufficient actively purchased and sold similar properties have been identified by the Council’s Valuer,
Bruton Knowles, to arrive at the fair value using this approach.
For further details of the Valuers used see Note 13 on Property, Plant and Equipment.
There have been no transfers between levels in the fair value hierarchy and there have been no
changes in the valuation techniques used during the year.

b)

Highest and best use of investment properties
In estimating the fair value of the authority’s investment properties, the highest and best use of the
properties is their current use.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are recognised in the
Surplus or deficit on the provision of services – financing and investment income and expenditure line.
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Financial Instruments
a)

Categories of Financial Instruments
Long Term
31 March
2019
£000

Current
31 March
2019
£000

483
-

57,126
2,297
3,716

483

63,139

Long Term
31 March
2020
£000

Current
31 March
2020
£000

Financial assets at amortised cost
Investments
Trade and other receivables
Cash and Cash Equivalents

483
-

63,024
2,674
3,230

Total Financial Assets at amortised cost

483

68,928

38,592
259
-

2,029
3,511

38,851

5,540

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
40,312
1,712
-

2,085
3,691

42,024

5,776

Borrowing from Public Works Loan Board
(PWLB)
Section 106 agreements
Trade and other payables
Total Financial Liabilities at amortised cost

The Council’s balance of Investments at amortised cost consisted of fixed term deposits and
certificates of deposit with UK banks, Building Societies, central government’s Debt Management
office and other Local Authorities.
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b)

Reclassifications
There have been no reclassifications of financial assets or liabilities in 2019/20.

c)

Income, Expense, Gains and Losses

2018/19
Financial Financial
Liabilities
Assets
measured measured
at
at
amortised amortised
cost
cost
£000
£000
1,473
2
1,473

d)

Total

£000
1,473
2

Interest expense
Fee expense
Total expense in Surplus or Deficit on
the Provision of Services

Financial
Liabilities
measured
at
amortised
cost
£000
1,423
-

2019/20
Financial
Assets
measured
at
amortised
cost
£000
1

1,423

1

1,424

Total

£000
1,423
1

2

1,475

-

(505)

(505)

Interest income

-

(628)

(628)

-

(505)

(505)

Total income in Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services

-

(628)

(628)

1,473

(503)

970

1,423

(627)

796

Net (gain)/loss for the year

Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities
All of the financial liabilities and financial assets are carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost.
Their fair value can be assessed by calculating the present value of the cash flows that take place
over the remaining life of the instruments, using the following assumptions:


For loans from the Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) payable, premature redemption rates
from the PWLB have been applied to provide the fair value under PWLB debt redemption
procedures;



Where an instrument will mature in the next 12 months, the carrying amount is assumed to
approximate to fair value



The fair value of trade and other receivables and payables is taken to be the invoiced or billed
amount as this is a fair approximation of fair value.

The fair values calculated are as follows:

31 March 2019
Carrying
Fair Value
Amount
£000
£000
42,397
58,050

PWLB borrowing

1,712

1,712

Long term Section 106 agreements

3,691

3,691

Trade and other payables
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31 March 2020
Carrying
Fair Value
Amount
£000
£000
40,621
61,864
259

259

3,511

3,511

The fair value of PWLB loans of £61.864 million measures the economic effect of the terms agreed
with the PWLB compared with estimates of the terms that would be offered for market transactions
undertaken at the Balance Sheet date. The difference between the carrying amount and the fair value
measures the reduced interest that the authority will pay over the remaining terms of the loans under
the agreements with the PWLB, against what would be paid if the loans were at prevailing market
rates.
31 March 2019
Carrying
Fair Value
Amount
£000
£000
57,126
57,126

16

31 March 2020
Carrying
Fair Value
Amount
£000
£000
63,024
63,024

Investments

483

483

Long term trade and other receivables

483

483

2,297

2,297

Short term trade and other receivables

2,674

2,674

Nature and Extent of Risks arising from Financial Instruments
The Council has adopted CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management, as amended, and complies
with the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities, as amended. Financial instrument risk
management is based on policies approved by the Council in the Annual Treasury Strategy before the start
of the financial year. The Strategy emphasises that priority is to be given to security and liquidity, rather than
yield and is underpinned by Treasury Management Practices (TMPs) specifying the practical arrangements
to be followed to manage these risks. The Council employs specialist Treasury Advisors to assist officers.
a)

Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and other financial institutions and from credit advanced to
the Council’s customers. The Balance Sheet figures for financial assets are not representative of the
normal level of exposure at any particular time. Positive cash flows in the early part of each financial
year can lead to a considerably higher level of total investments. The maximum exposure during
2019/20 was £78.493 million.
The TMPs set out the criteria for deciding which organisations the Council will invest money with. Most
investments are with HM Government and other UK Local Authorities, investments with other
organisations are determined by reference to their credit ratings, as provided by the 3 main credit
rating agencies.

In addition a limit is placed on the amount that can be invested with any one

organisation. A limit is also applied to the amount of investment that can be placed in individual
countries other than the UK.
The Council has had no experience of default on investments and does not expect any losses, nor has
credit risk increased significantly since initial recognition, so no loss allowance has been made for
investments.
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The Authority allows credit for some customers where payment in advance of service provision is not
practicable.

£0.624 million of the £1.064 million sundry debtor balance is past its due date for

payment. The past due, but not impaired, amount can be analysed by age as follows;
2018/19
£000
101
15
49
303

2019/20
£000
143
36
123
322

Less than three months
Three to six months
Six months to one year
More than one year

468

624

Impairments of Sundry Debtors at 31 March 2020 totalled £0.552 million.
b)

Liquidity Risk
The Council manages its liquidity position through its cash flow management procedures. If
unexpected movements happen, the Authority has ready access to borrowings from the money
markets and the Public Works Loans Board. There is no significant risk that the Council will be unable
to raise finance to meet its commitments.
Instead, the risk is that the Authority will have to replace its borrowings at a time of unfavourable
interest rates. This is addressed by monitoring the maturity structure of its debt and the limits placed
on investments of more than one year in duration.
The maturity analysis of financial liabilities in respect of the PWLB debt at 31 March was as follows:

Principal
£000
1,764
1,720
5,315
9,645
4,684
18,948

2018/19
Interest
£000
1,423
1,375
3,822
4,967
3,972
12,274

Total
£000
3,187
3,095
9,137
14,612
8,656
31,222

42,076

27,833

69,909

Less than one year
Between one and two years
Between two and five years
Between five and ten years
Between ten and fifteen years
More than fifteen years

Principal
£000
1,720
1,671
6,267
8,113
4,299
18,242

2019/20
Interest
£000
1,375
1,333
3,636
4,671
3,845
11,550

Total
£000
3,095
3,004
9,903
12,784
8,144
29,792

40,312

26,410

66,722

All trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one year.
c)

Market Risk


Interest Rate Risk
At 31 March 2020 the Council’s borrowing for more than one year was all at fixed rates of
interest with the PWLB. The Annual Treasury Strategy draws together the Council’s Prudential
Indicators and its expected treasury operations, including an expectation of interest rate
movements. The effects of movements in interest rates on investments are immaterial as the
sums invested are at fixed interest rates for short periods.

Page
- 39154
-

At 31 March 2020, if interest rates had been 1% higher with all other variables held constant,
the financial effect would have been:

Increase in interest payable on variable rate borrowings
Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments

£000
412
(694)

Impact on Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services

(282)

Share of overall impact relating to the HRA

295

The impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being
reversed.


Price Risk
The Authority does not invest in equity shares. It therefore has no exposure to loss arising from
movements in the stock market.



Foreign Exchange Risk
The Authority has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, and
therefore it has no exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange rates.

17

Debtors
2018/19
Gross
Impairment
Amount
Allowance
£000
£000
292
(107)
1,854
(464)
2,137
(1,415)

18

Net
£000
185
1,390
722

1,526
2,369
15

(911)
-

615
2,369
15

Council tenants arrears
Trade debtors
Housing benefit overpayments
Business rates and Council
Tax Payers
Amounts due from government
Other

8,193

(2,897)

5,296

Balance at 31 March

2019/20
Gross
Impairment
Amount
Allowance
£000
£000
369
(160)
2,379
(577)
2,005
(1,342)

Net
£000
209
1,802
663

1,848
563
6

(1,105)
-

743
563
6

7,170

(3,184)

3,986

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents is made up of the following elements:
2018/19
£000
1,216
2,491
9

2019/20
£000
Current Assets:
Bank current accounts
Call accounts
Petty cash

(378)
3,598
10

3,716

3,230
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Creditors
2018/19
£000
2,807
884
4,989
3,041
532
7
12,260

Trade creditors
Capital creditors
Amounts due to government and preceptors for Business Rates and Council Tax
Other amounts due to government and preceptors
Receipts in Advance for Council Tax and Business Rates
Other

2019/20
£000
3,005
507
8,647
3,584
476
3
16,222

Balance at 31 March

2018/19
£000

2019/20
£000
Creditors due after more than one year:

1,712

20

Section 106 contributions

259

Cash Flow Statement – Operating Activities
The cash flows for operating activities include the following items:
2018/19
£000
486
(1,497)

21

Interest received
Interest paid

Cash Flow Statement – Investing Activities
2018/19
£000
(7,716)
(335,800)
952
330,750
2,194
(9,620)

22

2019/20
£000
630
(1,435)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible
assets
Purchase of short term investments
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from short term investments
Other receipts from investing activities
Net cash flows from investing activities

2019/20
£000
(9,993)
(297,900)
2,126
292,000
3,341
(10,426)

Cash Flow Statement – Financing Activities
2018/19
£000
(1,822)
(50)
(1,872)

Repayments of short and long term borrowing
Other receipts from financing activities
Net cash flows from financing activities
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2019/20
£000
(1,764)
978
(786)

23

Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature
The authority’s expenditure and income is analysed as follows:
2018/19
£000
19,868
82,091
8,791
800
1,662
1,205
1,698
302
497

2019/20
£000
Expenditure
Employee Expenses
Other Services Expenses
Depreciation, Amortisation, Impairment
Movement in Investment Property Values
Interest Payable and Similar Charges
Pension Interest and Return on Pension Assets
Precepts and Levies
Payments to Housing Capital Receipts Pool
Loss on the Disposal of Non-Current Assets

19,662
77,850
10,682
145
1,447
1,018
1,873
315
961

116,914

Total Expenditure

113,953

(32,279)
(772)
(713)
(9,588)
(10,958)
(62,159)

Income
Fees and Charges and Other Service Income
Gain on Disposal of Non-Current Assets
Interest and Investment Income
Income from Council Tax
Income from Business Rates
Government Grants and Contributions

(35,814)
(1,621)
(840)
(10,194)
(11,452)
(52,936)

(116,469)
445

(112,857)

Total Income
(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services
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1,096
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Grant Income
The Authority credited the following significant grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement:
2018/19
£000

1,070
1,333
289
1,929
76
154
86

2019/20
£000
Credited to Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income
Non-Ringfenced Grants:
Revenue Support Grant
New Homes Bonus Grant
New Burdens Grant
NDR Section 31 Business Rate Grants
Business Rates Levy Account Surplus Grant
EU Exit Funding
Section 106 Agreements
COVID-19 Support Grant
Future High Street Fund
Private Rented Sector Innovation and Enforcement Grant
Other Government Grants

4,937

2,609
80
678
168
103
-

6,220
Capital Grants, Contributions and Donated Assets
Government Funding
- Environment Agency
- Homes and Communities Agency
Local Authority - Essex County Council
Other Capital Contributions
- Section 106
- Walton Flood Wall
- Haven Gateway
Donated Assets

3,638

73
56,153
193
1,077
871
452
184

422
1,184
246
2,409
17
185
1,389
89
150
100
29

1,670
119
1,798
7
11
590
4,195

Other Significant Grants Credited to Services
Apprenticeship Training Grant
Benefits
CCG Wellbeing Hub
Collection Investment/Hardship Administration Grant
Disabled Facilities Grant
Essex County Council - Technical Agreement Contribution
Homelessness Grants
Individual Electrol Registration
Tendring Mental Health and Discharge Support

59,003

80
47,155
245
193
1,519
821
454
82
50,549
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The Authority has received a number of grants, contributions and donations that have yet to be recognised
as income as they have conditions attached that will require the monies or property to be repaid/returned if
the conditions fail to be met. The balances at the year end are as follows:
2018/19
£000

2,222
164
124
21

2019/20
£000
Capital Grants Receipts in Advance
Government Funding:
The Environment Agency
Home and Communities Agency
Local Authority Funding
Other capital contributions

552
152
55
3

2,531

25

762

Related Parties
The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties (bodies or individuals that have
the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or influenced by the Council). Material
related party transactions which are not disclosed elsewhere in the Statement of Accounts were as follows:
2018/19
Receipts Payments
£000
£000
2,287
165
101

-

26

300

4

5

2,392

470

Essex County Council
Other Essex local authorities
Transactions with organisations related by a declared
interest of Council Members or Senior Officers:
Association of Retained Council Housing
Other
Total Related Party Transactions

2019/20
Receipts Payments
£000
£000
2,332
440
113

-

873

4

2
1

2,449

1,316

Members’ Allowances
The Authority paid £0.400 million to members of the Council during the year (£0.449 million in 2018/19). Full
details are available on the Transparency page of the Council’s website.
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Officers’ Remuneration
a)

Analysis of “senior employees” remuneration
The remuneration paid to the Authority’s senior employees is set out below:

Post Title
Chief Executive
Deputy Chief Executive
Corporate Director - Operational
Services
Corporate Director - Planning &
Regeneration Services
Head of Governance & Legal
Services
Head of Finance, Revenues
and Benefits

2019/20
Total remunSalary,
eration
Employer's
Total RemunFees and
excluding Contributions
eration
Allowances
Pension
to Pension
note
Contributions

1

£

£

£

£

132,433
72,200

132,433
72,200

21,984
11,985

154,417
84,185

88,789

88,789

14,739

103,528

86,678

86,678

14,389

101,067

66,167

66,167

10,984

77,151

65,256

65,256

10,833

76,089

Notes
1.

The Deputy Chief Executive retired on 31 December 2019.

Post Title
Chief Executive
Deputy Chief Executive
Corporate Director - Operational
Services
Corporate Director - Planning &
Regeneration Services
Head of Governance & Legal
Services
Head of Finance, Revenues
and Benefits

2019/20
Total remunSalary,
eration
Employer's
Total RemunFees and
excluding Contributions
eration
Allowances
Pension
to Pension
note
Contributions

1

£

£

£

£

132,433
72,200

132,433
72,200

21,984
11,985

154,417
84,185

88,789

88,789

14,739

103,528

86,678

86,678

14,389

101,067

66,167

66,167

10,984

77,151

65,256

65,256

10,833

76,089
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b)

Analysis of ‘non-senior employees’
The Authority’s other employees receiving more than £50,000 remuneration for the year (excluding
pension contributions but including compensation for loss of office) are set out below:
2018/19
Number of
Total
5
6
1
1
-

Remuneration Band

2019/20
Number of
Total
5
7
1

£50,000 - £54,999
£55,000 - £59,999
£75,000 - £79,999
£80,000 - £84,999
£150,000 - £155,000 (1)

Where the £5,000 bands included no officers in both 2018/19 and 2019/20, they have been excluded
from the note.
(1)
c)

This band includes the £76,026 exit package in note c) below.

Exit Packages
The number of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and other
redundancies are set out in the tables below:

Exit package cost band
(including special payments)

2019/20
Number of
compulsory
redundancies

Number of other Total Number of Total cost of exit
departures
exit packages by
packages in
agreed
cost band
each band
£

£0 - £20,000
£20,001 - £40,000
£60,001-£80,000

2
1
-

7
1
1

9
2
1

60,170
43,202
76,026
179,398

Total cost included in Comphensive Income and Expenditure Statement

The compulsory redundancies were due to a service restructure.

Exit package cost band
(including special payments)

2018/19
Number of
compulsory
redundancies

Number of other Total Number of Total cost of exit
departures
exit packages by
packages in
agreed
cost band
each band
£

£0 - £20,000
£20,001 - £40,000

1

1
-

1
1

Total cost included in Comphensive Income and Expenditure Statement

1,394
35,358
36,752

The compulsory redundancy related to a fixed term contract which had come to an end.
The cost of exit packages includes redundancy costs in addition to financial strain amounts (if they
arise in the year) that are payable to the pension fund rather than to an individual directly.
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Termination Benefits
The contracts of 12 employees ceased in 2019/20 with incurred total liabilities of £179,398 (2 employees
with incurred total liabilities of £36,752 in 2018/19).

2 of these contracts ceased in 2020/21, but were

accrued in 2019/20 due to the decision being made in the 2019/20 financial year. The whole sum was
compensation for loss of office. Further details can be found in Note 27(c).

29

Defined Benefit Pension Schemes
a)

Participation in Pension Schemes
As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Authority makes contributions
towards the cost of post-employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable
until employees retire, the Authority has a commitment to make the payments (for those benefits) and
to disclose them at the time that employees earn their future entitlement.
The Authority participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) administered by Essex
County Council – the current LGPS is a Career Average Revalued Earnings Scheme (CARE). The
Authority and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the
pensions liabilities with investment assets.
The scheme administered by Essex County Council is operated under the regulatory framework for
the Local Government Pension Scheme and the governance of the scheme is the responsibility of the
Essex Pension Strategy Board. Policy is determined in accordance with the Pensions Fund
Regulations. The investment managers of the fund are appointed within this overall governance
framework supported by Hymans Robertson acting as an external Independent Governance and
Administration Advisor to the fund.
The principal risks to the authority of the scheme are the longevity assumptions, statutory changes to
the scheme, structural changes to the scheme (i.e. large-scale withdrawals from the scheme),
changes to inflation, bond yields and the performance of the equity investments held by the scheme.
These are mitigated to a certain extent by the statutory requirements to charge to the General Fund
and Housing Revenue Account the amounts required by statute as described in the separate section
on accounting policies.

b)

Transactions Relating to Post-Employment Benefits
The Authority recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are
earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the
charge required to be made against council tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real
cost of post employment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement in
Reserves Statement. The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement and the General Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement
during the year:
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2018/19
Local
Government
Pension
Scheme
£000

4,250
1,128
51
1,205
6,634

(7,055)
(9,742)
7,434
(2,729)

(6,634)

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

2019/20
Local
Government
Pension
Scheme
£000

Cost of Services
Service cost comprising:
Current service cost
Past service costs
Administration Expenses
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
Net interest expense

4,518
42
41

Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Surplus or Deficit on
the Provision of Services

5,619

Other Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability comprising:
Return on plan assets (excluding the amount included in the net
interest expense)
Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in demographic
assumptions
Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in financial assumptions
Experience gains and losses on defined benefit obligation
Other Actuarial gains and losses on assets
Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement
Movement in Reserves Statement
Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit for the Provision of
Services for post employment benefits in accordance with the Code

1,018

9,997
(899)
(17,055)
1,810
(1,148)
(1,676)

(5,619)

Actual amount charged against the General Fund Balance for
pensions in the year:
2,090

Employer's contributions payable to scheme
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c)

Pensions Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet
The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the authority’s obligation in respect of its
defined benefit plans is as follows:
2018/19
Local
Government
Pension
Scheme
£000
177,051
(133,576)
43,475

d)

Present value of the defined benefit obligation
Fair Value of plan assets

2019/20
Local
Government
Pension
Scheme
£000
164,205
(124,603)
39,602

Net liability arising from defined benefits obligation

Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme (Plan) Assets
2018/19
Local
Government
Pension
Scheme
£000
126,102
3,181

7,055
2,090
746
(5,547)
(51)
133,576

Opening fair value of scheme assets
Interest income
Remeasurement gain/(loss):
The return of plan assets, excluding the amount included in the net
interest expense
Other actuarial gains/(losses)
Contributions from employers
Contributions from employees into the scheme
Benefits paid
Other
Closing fair value of scheme assets

2019/20
Local
Government
Pension
Scheme
£000
133,576
3,167

(9,997)
1,148
2,197
780
(6,227)
(41)
124,603

The employer contributions include financial strain payments relating to liabilities associated with early
retirements if they arise during the year.
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e)

Reconciliation of Present Value of the Scheme Liabilities (Defined Benefit Obligation)
2018/19
Local
Government
Pension
Scheme
£000
174,396
4,250
4,386
746
(9,742)
7,434
1,128
(5,547)
177,051

f)

Opening Balance at 1 April
Current service cost
Interest cost
Contributions from scheme participants
Remeasurement (gain)/loss:
Actuarial gains/losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial gains/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions
Experience gains and losses on defined benefit obligation
Past service cost
Benefits paid

2019/20
Local
Government
Pension
Scheme
£000
177,051
4,518
4,185
780
(899)
(17,055)
1,810
42
(6,227)
164,205

Closing Balance at 31 March

Local Government Pension Scheme Assets comprised:

Quoted
Prices in
Active
Markets
£000

2018/19
Unquoted
Prices (not
in Active
Markets)
£000

Total

£000

6,007
71,015

3,518
-

3,518
6,007
71,015

7,090
7,807
4,404
-

7,473
6,140
6,713
4,028
2,283
7,098

7,090
7,807
11,877
6,140
6,713
4,028
2,283
7,098

96,323

37,253

133,576

Fair Value of Scheme Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Equities - UK
Equities - Overseas
Gilts UK index Linked Government
Securities
Bonds - Corporate (UK)
Property
Private Equity
Infrastructure
Timber
Private Debt
Other Managed Funds
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Quoted
Prices in
Active
Markets
£000

2019/20
Unquoted
Prices (not
in Active
Markets)
£000

5,236
61,339

5,179
-

5,179
5,236
61,339

5,371
7,550
3,113
-

8,093
6,358
7,363
4,493
2,496
8,012

5,371
7,550
11,206
6,358
7,363
4,493
2,496
8,012

82,609

41,994

124,603

Total

£000

g)

Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities
Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an
estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about
mortality rates, salary levels, etc.
The Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities have been estimated by Barnett Waddingham, an
independent firm of actuaries for the Essex County Council Fund, based on the latest full valuation of
the scheme as at 31 March 2019 which has been rolled forward using financial assumptions that
comply with IAS19.
An allowance was made in the last reporting period for the potential impact of the Court of Appeal
Judgement in relation to the McCloud and Sargent cases which relate to age discrimination within the
Judicial and Fire Pension Schemes and is therefore already included in the starting position for this
reporting period.

This allowance is therefore incorporated in the roll forward approach and is

remeasured at the reporting date along with the normal LGPS liabilities.
The COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in additional valuation risks for the Council’s share of property
assets in the pension fund this is covered in more detail in Note 5.
The significant assumptions used by the actuary have been:
2018/19
Local
Government
Pension
Scheme

21.3
23.6
22.9
25.4
3.45%
2.45%
3.95%
2.45%
2.40%
50%

2019/20
Local
Government
Pension
Scheme
Mortality assumptions:
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:
Men
Women
Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:
Men
Women
Rate of inflation - RPI Increases
Rate of inflation - CPI Increases
Rate of increase in salaries
Rate of increase in pensions
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities
Take up of option to convert annual pension into retirement lump sum

21.8
23.7
23.2
25.2
2.70%
1.90%
2.90%
1.90%
2.35%
50%

The demographic assumptions used are consistent with those used for the most recent fund valuation,
which was carried out as at 31 March 2019. The assumptions used in the last reporting period were
based on those adopted for the Funds 31 March 2016 valuation. Both periods used the latest version
of the Continuous Mortality Investigation’s model, CMI_2018 to project the base tables. The impact of
updating the demographic assumptions base table projections is reflected in the Change in
demographic assumptions figure.
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In addition to the above, it is also estimated that 10% of active members will take up the option under
the new LGPS to pay 50% of contributions for 50% of benefits, this has not changed from the previous
period.
The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the
table above. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible
changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change
that the assumption analysed changes while all the other assumptions remain constant.

The

assumptions in longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy increases or decreases for men
and women. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be
interrelated. The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting policies for the
scheme, i.e. on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method. The methods and types of
assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below did not change from those used in the
previous period.
Increase in
Assumption
£000

Decrease in
Assumption
£000

171,469
166,940
164,481
166,940
161,260

157,274
161,519
163,930
161,519
167,206

Impact on the Defined Benefit Obligation in the Scheme
Longevity (increase or decrease in 1 year - mortality age rating)
Rate of inflation (increase or decrease by 0.1%)
Rate of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 0.1%)
Rate of increase in pensions (increase or decrease by 0.1%)
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities (increase or decrease by 0.1%)

i)

Impact on the Authority’s Cash Flows
The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers’ contributions at as constant rate as possible.
The County Council has agreed a strategy with the scheme’s actuary to achieve a funding level of
100% using the actuarial valuation assumptions. Funding levels are monitored on an annual basis.
The next triennial valuation is due to be completed as at 31 March 2022.
The authority expects to pay contributions totalling £4.466 million to the scheme in 2020/21.
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for scheme members is 19 years,
2019/20 (17 years 2018/19).
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External Audit Costs
The Authority has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts:
2018/19
£000
46

*

31

10

Fees payable with regard to external audit services carried out by the appointed
auditor for the year
Fees payable in respect of other services provided by the external auditor during
the year - certification of Housing Benefit Subsidy and Pooling of Housing Capital
Receipts *

56

Total Audit Fees Payable

2019/20
£000
45
23

68

For 2019/20, this includes £4,000 under provisions for prior year.

Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing
The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below, together with the
resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by
charges to revenue as assets are used by the Authority, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital
Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the Authority that
has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed in the second part of this note.
2018/19
£000
49,346

2019/20
£000
47,445

(1,075)
(236)
(1,664)

Opening Capital Financing Requirement
Capital Investment:
Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible Assets
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute
Sources of Finance:
Capital receipts
Government grants and other contributions
Major Repairs Reserve
Sums set aside from revenue:
Direct revenue contributions
MRP/loans fund principal
Voluntary MRP - HRA

47,445

Closing Capital Financing Requirement

45,554

(1,901)

Explanation of movements in year
Increase/(decrease) in underlying need to borrow (unsupported by Government
financial assistance)

(1,891)

(1,901)

Increase/(Decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement

(1,891)

7,939
35
1,139
(78)
(4,737)
(3,224)
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9,026
1,547
(396)
(3,400)
(3,652)
(3,125)
(227)
(1,664)

32

Operating Leases - Authority as Lessor
The Authority leases out land and property under operating leases for the following purposes:


For the provision of community services, such as sports facilities, tourism services and community
centres.



For economic development purposes to provide suitable affordable accommodation for local
businesses.

The future lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future years are:
2018/19
£000
341
1,131
2,927

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years

2019/20
£000
380
1,254
3,467

4,399

5,101

The lease payments receivable do not include rents that are contingent on future events taking place, such
as adjustments following rent reviews.
Currently Tendring District Council leases its depot to the household waste and recycling contractor at no
charge. This arrangement is due to continue for the remainder of the contract which has been extended to
2026.

33

Subsidiary Companies
The Council has an interest in North Essex Garden Communities Limited (NEGC Ltd), a joint strategic entity
which is equally owned by the Council along with Braintree District Council, Essex County Council, and
Colchester Borough Council. The company is limited by shares. At present the trading activities of the
company have been limited and therefore as its accounts are not material they will not be incorporated into
the Group Accounts of any of the four owning authorities for the 2019/20 financial year.
A decision has been taken by the four Local Authorities in 2020/21 to wind up NEGC Ltd after ceasing to
trade at the end of August 2020.
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Restatement of the 2018/19 prior year comparators for Net Cost of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the Expenditure and Funding
Analysis Note.
The Code requires that an authority shall present information on reportable segments using the service
analysis in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the segmental analysis within the
Expenditure and Funding Analysis.

It also requires that reportable segments shall be based on an

authority’s internal management reporting, for example, departments, directorates or portfolios. In line with
these requirements, in 2018/19, the Council’s Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the
Expenditure and Funding Analysis disclosed the Net Cost of Services (£19.030 million) as:
Portfolio
Leader
Finance and Corporate Resources
Environment
Housing
Health and Education
Corporate Enforcement
Investment and Growth
Leisure and Tourism
Budgets Relating to Non Executive Functions

£000 Note
100 (a)
3,645 (b)
5,520 (c)
952 (a)
484 (d)
1,156 (c)
543 (e)
6,086 (a)
544
(f)
19,030

During 2019/20 Tendring District Council changed its Portfolio structure and therefore the analysis shown
above is no longer in line with internal management reporting. The result of this change is as follows:
(a)

These three portfolios remain but have amended responsibilities.

(b)

This portfolio was renamed to be ‘Corporate Finance and Governance’ with no changes to the
comparative amounts.

(c)

These two portfolios were completely replaced by two new portfolios.

(d)

This portfolio was renamed to be ‘Partnerships’ with no changes to the comparative amounts.

(e)

This portfolio was renamed to be ‘Business and Economic Growth’ with no changes to the
comparative amounts.

(f)

This portfolio remains unchanged with no changes to the comparative amounts.
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A summary of these changes are as follows:
£000
Removal of two portfolios that no longer exist
Effect of changes in responsibility:
Leader
Housing
Leisure and Tourism

£000
(6,676)

1,697
(452)
(927)
318

New portfolios:
Environment and Public Space
Independent Living

5,906
452
6,358
-

Net effect of changes

The result of these changes on the 2018/19 comparators can be seen in full in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement and the segmental analysis within the Expenditure and Funding Analysis (see
note 1).
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HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT –
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
2018/19
£000

2019/20
£000

£000

Note
Ref

EXPENDITURE
3,832
2,612
153
5,948
66
37
21
12,669

Repairs and Maintenance
Supervision and Management
Rents, Rates, Taxes and Other Charges
Depreciation and Impairments of Non-Current Assets
Debt Management Costs
Movement in the allowance for bad debts
Sums Directed by the Secretary of State that are Expenditure in
Accordance with the Code

4,774
2,880
209
5,887
66
74

5,6

21
13,911

Total Expenditure

INCOME
(12,740)
(225)
(629)
(76)

Dwelling rents
Non dwelling rents
Charges for Services and Facilities
Contributions towards expenditure

(13,670)

Total Income

(1,001)
276
(725)

(12,725)
(230)
(520)
(90)
(13,565)

Net Cost of HRA Services as included in the whole authority
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

346

HRA Share of Corporate and Democratic Core

276

Net Expenditure / (Income) for HRA Services

622

HRA share of the operating income and expenditure
included in the whole authority Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement:
(189)
1,441
(680)
(90)
(243)

(Gain) or loss on sale of HRA Non-current Assets
Interest Payable and Similar Charges
Capital Grants and Contributions Receivable
Interest and Investment Income

(Surplus) / Deficit for the year on HRA Services

Page
- 57172
-

(423)
1,401
(2,499)
(94)
(993)

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT –
MOVEMENT ON THE HOUSING REVENUE
ACCOUNT STATEMENT
2018/19
£000
4,734
243

3,294
21
(189)
(680)
(342)
(1,664)
181
864

2019/20
£000
Balance on the HRA as at the end of the previous year
Surplus or (Deficit) on the HRA Income and Expenditure Statement
Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under
regulations:
Reversal of Revaluation Changes and Impairment
Reversal of Sums Directed by the Secretary of State that are
Expenditure in Accordance with the Code
Reversal of (Gain) or Loss on sale of HRA Non-current assets
Reversal of Capital Grants and Contributions Receivable
Capital Expenditure Funded by the HRA
Debt Repayment & Credit arrangements
HRA share of contributions to or from the Pension Reserve

(423)
(2,499)
(1,197)
(1,664)
240

Net increase or (decrease) before transfer to or from Reserves

(1,208)

(522)
(48)

Transfer (to) or from Reserves:
Transfer (to)/from Major Repairs Reserves
Transfers (to)/from Earmarked Reserves

294

Increase or (decrease) in year on the HRA

5,028

Balance on the HRA as at the end of the current year
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£000
5,028

993

3,321
21

(611)
2,061
242
5,270

NOTES TO THE HRA INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
AND MOVEMENT ON THE HRA STATEMENT
1

Housing Revenue Account Balances

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT RESERVES
Housing
Revenue
Account
£000

2018/19
Housing
Housing
Repairs Commitments
Reserve
Reserve
£000
£000

Housing
Revenue
Account
£000

Total
£000

2019/20
Housing
Housing
Repairs
Commitments
Reserve
Reserve
£000
£000
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4,734
294

955
(91)

2,752
139

8,441
342

Balances as at 1 April
Surplus/(deficit) for year

5,028
242

864
(864)

5,028

864

2,891

8,783

Balances as at 31 March

5,270

-
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Total
£000

2,891
(1,197)

8,783
(1,819)

1,694

6,964

2

Housing Assets
As at 31 March 2020, the Council was responsible for managing the following council housing assets:
01/04/2018

31/03/2019

Opening Acquisitions Disposals
Stock
in Year
in Year

Closing
Stock

01/04/2019

Balance
Sheet
Value

31/03/2020

Opening Acquisitions Disposals
Stock
in Year
in Year

Closing
Stock

£000
1,466
1,006
335
321
16

2
1
-

3,144
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62
415
404
1
4
11
4,041

6
4

1

1,462
1,003
335
321
15

44,058
54,253
15,974
6,130
852

11

3,136

121,267

62
418
415
1
4
12

1,116
1,345
83
440
341
1,236

4,048

125,828

-

3

3
11
1
18

11

Balance
Sheet
Value
£000

Dw ellings
Flats
Houses
Bungalow s
Sheltered Accommodation
Do-It-Yourself Shared Ow nership (DIYSO)

1,462
1,003
335
321
15

2
1
-

3,136

Other Land and Buildings
Shared Equity Plots of Land
Garages
Ground Rents re: sold council flats
Community Centre
Other non-domestic properties
Land

62
418
415
1
4
12
4,048

Totals
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4
10

46,748
56,912
17,028
6,853
745

17

3,122

128,286

62
360
417
1
4
12

1,240
1,407
83
440
398
1,203

3,978

133,057

-

3

-

3

1,458
995
336
321
12

58
2

5

75

In addition to the above table, the Council also held equipment with a balance sheet value of £0.050 million
as at 31 March 2020 (£0.076 million in 2018/19), the Council also held assets under construction with a
balance sheet value of £1.998 million as at 31 March 2020 (2018/19 £0.467 million). The Balance Sheet
value for dwellings uses the valuation basis of ‘Existing Use Value for Social Housing (EUV-SH)’, which is
based on the vacant possession value adjusted to reflect the continuing occupation by a secure tenant. The
other housing assets have been valued on an ‘Existing Use Value’ basis, which assumes that vacant
possession is provided on all parts of the property occupied by the business. The difference between vacant
possession and existing use value represents the economic cost of providing council housing at less than
open market rents.
2018/19
£000
324,052

2019/20
£000
Vacant Possession Value

340,060

(123,140)

Less: Existing Use Values (Social Housing)

(129,222)

200,912

Economic Cost of Providing Social Housing

210,838

A desktop revaluation of all HRA assets was undertaken by the external valuer during the year with resulting
changes and other adjustments being reflected in the Balance Sheet value as at 31 March 2020.

3

Capital Expenditure and Financing
Capital expenditure on HRA assets for the year and its financing are set out below:
2018/19
£000
3,224
1,059

2019/20
£000
Capital Investment:
Operational Assets
Property Acquisition and New Build

4,283

3,224
342
680
37

3,746
1,624
5,370

Sources of Finance:
Major Repairs Reserve
Direct Revenue Financing
Section 106 Funding
External Funding
Capital Receipts

4,283

3,652
1,197
86
67
368
5,370
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4

Housing Capital Receipts Reserve
There is a requirement to ‘pool’ part of the capital receipts received by the Council and pay it to the Secretary
of State. The amounts to pool on disposal reflect the age and type of dwelling.
The movement on the capital receipts reserve during the year is as follows:
2018/19
£000
4,342
604
31
37
1

Balance as at 1 April
Capital Receipts in the year:
Council house sales (net of administration costs)
Repayment of Discount on Right to Buy Sales
DIYSO property sales
Other Land Sales
Mortgage principal repayments

5,015

(302)
(37)
4,676

5

2019/20
£000
4,676
1,145
40
181
1
6,043

Less:
Capital receipts pooling contribution payable to the Government
Capital receipts used for financing capital expenditure
Balance as at 31 March

(315)
(368)
5,360

Depreciation
Depreciation has been provided on HRA assets on a straight-line basis over their expected lives, after
allowing for residual and freehold land values, based on information provided by the Valuer.

The

depreciation charge in respect of the dwellings is a real charge on the HRA and it is credited to the Major
Repairs Reserve. The depreciation charge in respect of other HRA property is shown in ‘Total Expenditure’
within the Income and Expenditure Account.
2018/19
£000
2,564
17
26
11
6
30
2,654

Dwellings
Do-It-Yourself Shared Ownership (DIYSO)
Garages
Community Centre
Other Non-Domestic Properties
Equipment
Depreciation Charged to the HRA I & E Account for the Year
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2019/20
£000
2,479
15
25
9
7
30
2,565

6

Impairment Charges
Impairment may be applicable to assets if caused by either a consumption of economic benefits or a general
fall in prices.
2018/19
£000
3,986
(692)
3,294

Impairment charge for works to the Council's dwelling stock
Reversal of previous Impairment Losses due to increase in asset values
Impairment charge for the year

2019/20
£000
4,241
(920)
3,321

Tendring District Council has elected to recover all losses on non-dwellings from the period 2012-2017 to the
HRA Reserve. Nothing was recovered during 2018/19 or 2019/20 and the balance currently left to recover is
£1.317 million.

7

Rent Arrears and the Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts
The rent arrears at 31 March 2020 were £0.368 million (2018/19 - £0.292 million), which equates to 2.76%
(2.18% for 2018/19) of the gross rent due for the year after excluding rents foregone on empty properties
and housing benefit overpayments but inclusive of service charges.
The HRA Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts at 31 March 2020 is £0.159 million after the following
movements on the account during 2019/20:
2018/19
£000
129
36
(58)
107

2019/20
£000
107
73
(21)

Balance as at 1 April
Provision for year
Arrears written off
Balance as at 31 March

159
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COLLECTION FUND INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT
Council Tax
£000

2018/19
Business
Rates
£000

Council Tax
£000

£000

2019/20
Business
Rates
£000

Total
£000

Note
Ref

INCOME
(80,814)
-

(27,926)

(80,814)
(27,926)

(80,814)

(27,926)

(108,740)

Council Tax Payers
Income from Business Ratepayers

(86,553)
-

(28,765)

(86,553)
(28,765)

Total Income

(86,553)

(28,765)

(115,318)

2
3

EXPENDITURE
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57,104
3,290
7,900
9,299
2,756
-

12,854
2,314
257
10,283
792

57,104
3,290
7,900
9,299
12,854
2,314
257
10,283
3,548

292
(262)
264

292
(262)
264

219
584
-

150
259
486

369
843
486

81,152

27,689

108,841

338

(237)

101

Precepts:
Essex County Council
Essex Fire and Rescue
Essex Police and Crime Commissioner
Tendring District Council
Shares of Business Rates Income:
Central Government
Essex County Council
Essex Fire and Rescue
Tendring District Council
Share of Collection Fund Balance
Other Business Rates Payments:
Costs of Collection
Transitional Protection
Renewable Energy Schemes
Bad Debt and Other Provisions:
Provisions
Write Offs
Provisions for Appeals
Total Expenditure
(Surplus)/Deficit for the Year

4
60,289
3,438
9,157
9,829

60,289
3,438
9,157
9,829
3

2,208
-

12,831
2,310
257
10,265
1,114

12,831
2,310
257
10,265
3,322

289
(239)
248

289
(239)
248

627
142
-

112
49
296

739
191
296

85,690

27,532

113,222

5

6

(863)
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-

(1,233)

(2,096)

Council Tax
£000

2018/19
Business
Rates
£000

Council Tax
£000

£000
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(2,808)
338

(1,890)
(237)

(4,698)
101

Collection Fund Balance
Balance brought forward
(Surplus)/Deficit for the year

(2,470)

(2,127)

(4,597)

Balance Carried Forward

(1,816)
(104)
(254)
(296)

(1,063)
(192)
(21)
(851)

(1,063)
(2,008)
(125)
(254)
(1,147)

(2,470)

(2,127)

(4,597)

Central Government
Essex County Council
Essex Fire and Rescue
Essex Police and Crime Commissioner
Tendring District Council
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2019/20
Business
Rates
£000

Total
£000

(2,470)
(863)

(2,127)
(1,233)

(4,597)
(2,096)

(3,333)

(3,360)

(6,693)

(2,429)
(139)
(369)
(396)

(1,680)
(302)
(34)
(1,344)

(1,680)
(2,731)
(173)
(369)
(1,740)

(3,333)

(3,360)

(6,693)

Note
Ref

5

1

General
The Collection Fund reflects the statutory requirement for billing authorities to establish and maintain a
separate fund for the collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of council tax and business rates.
There is no requirement for a separate Collection Fund Balance Sheet. Instead, Collection Fund balances
are distributed across the Balance Sheets of the billing authority, the Government and precepting authorities
according to the provisions of the Code.

2

Council Tax
The average Council Tax levy for 2019/20 was £1,742.98 for a Band D dwelling. This rate of tax, which
covers estimated net expenditure of the Council, Essex County Council, Essex Fire and Rescue, Essex
Police and Crime Commissioner and the Parish and Town Councils, was assessed on the tax base set out
below:

Calculation of the Tax Base for 2019/20
2018/19 Band

10
9,820
14,831
18,473
10,040
4,752
1,697
785
61
60,469

*A
A
B
C
D
E
F
G
H

Valuation

Up to £40,000
Up to £40,000
£40,001 to £52,000
£52,001 to £68,000
£68,001 to £88,000
£88,001 to £120,000
£120,001 to £160,000
£160,001 to £320,000
Over £320,000

2nd
Empty Exempt Total
LCTS
ProFull Paying PayingHomesProperties
Excluding Scheme
portion Charge 75% 50%
LCTS
100%
5/9
8
6/9
4,555
7/9 10,031
8/9 13,306
9/9
7,573
11/9 3,792
13/9 1,387
15/9
611
18/9
39

4
7,135
6,795
6,461
2,600
928
264
101
4

41,302 24,292

-

Total

548
291
405
236
92
36
30
5

609
409
285
157
69
16
17
2

413
247
321
153
61
30
11
-

12
13,280
17,800
20,822
10,759
4,967
1,770
810
60

(4)
8
(3,307) 9,973
(2,719) 15,081
(2,151) 18,671
(513) 10,246
(115) 4,852
(31) 1,739
(6)
804
60

243 1,643

1,564

1,236

70,280

(8,846) 61,434

20
27
44
40
25
37
40
10

48,185

Number of equivalent full charge Band D dwellings (unscaled tax base)

48,923

(1,445)

Less Provision for changes in valuation list, discounts and doubtful debts

(1,468)

46,740

Tax base for tax setting purposes

47,455

* Band A – entitled to Disabled Relief
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Analysis of the Council Tax
Council Tax for a Band D Dwelling
2018/19
Average
£
152.19
10.45
36.32
1,221.75
70.38
169.02

2019/20
Average
£
Tendring District Council:
General Expenses
Special Expenses
Town and Parish Councils
Essex County Council
Essex Fire and Rescue
Essex Police and Crime Commissioner

1,660.11

3

156.60
11.04
39.49
1,270.44
72.45
192.96
1,742.98

Business Rates
The Council collects Business Rates for its area based on local rateable values provided by the Valuation
Office Agency (VOA) multiplied by a uniform business rate set nationally by Central Government:
2018/19
£78.675m

48.0p
49.3p

2019/20
Rateable Value on 31 March
Non-Domestic Rate per £
Small Businesses
Standard

49.1p
50.4p

Under the business rates retention scheme authorities retain a share of the income as follows:


50% - Central Government



40% - Tendring District Council



9% - Essex County Council



1% - Essex Fire and Rescue

£80,830m
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4

Precepts
The Council (the collecting authority) and Essex County Council, Essex Fire and Rescue and Essex Police
and Crime Commissioner (the major precepting authorities) precept upon the Collection Fund. Each precept
is assessed from the Tax Base for tax setting purposes to produce each authority’s budget requirement. The
amounts paid under each of these precepts do not vary during the year. However, the tax yield is affected
by changes in the valuation list (which defines each dwelling’s banding), discounts (which reflect occupation
of dwellings) and collection performance.

The resulting balances are taken into account during each

following year in assessing the Council Tax that both collecting and major precepting authorities must levy
for the subsequent year.

5

Share of Collection Fund Balance
Each January, the Council must assess the likely yield from the current year’s Council Tax and Business
Rates, together with the excess or shortfall from the previous year’s assessment. All major precepting
authorities benefit from an assessed surplus (or contribute to a deficit) in the year following that in which an
assessment is made.

Council Tax
£000

2018/19
Business
Rates
£000

£000

2019/20
Business
Rates
£000

1,625
94

557
100
11

557
1,725
105

225
264

446

225
710

2,208

1,114

3,322

Council Tax
£000

2,027
120

396
71
8

396
2,098
128

274
335

317

274
652

2,756

792

3,548

Allocated to:
Central Government
Essex County Council
Essex Fire and Rescue
Essex Police and Crime
Commissioner
Tendring District Council

Total
£000

Therefore the year end surplus of £3.333 million on Council Tax and £3.360 million on Business Rates
together with balances paid over to precepting authorities in 2020/21, will form part of the assessment made
in January 2021.
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6

Bad Debt and Other Provisions
Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debt
2018/19
Council Business
Tax
Rates
£000
£000

2019/20
Council Business
Tax
Rates
£000
£000

Total
£000

803
(584)

409
(259)

1,212
(843)

219

150

369

2,155
219

196
150

2,351
369

2,374

346

2,720

Movements in Year:
Contributions to provisions in year
Less: Amounts written off in the year

3,334

£000

769
(142)

161
(49)

930
(191)

627

112

739

Balances on provisions:
Balance Brought Forward
Net change in provisions

2,374
627

346
112

2,720
739

Balance Carried Forward

3,001

458

3,459

Net change in provisions

Provisions for Appeals (Business Rates only)
2018/19
£000
2,848
486

Total

Balance Brought Forward
Contributions to provisions in year
Balance Carried Forward

2019/20
£000
3,334
296
3,630
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a)

General Principles
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Authority’s transactions for the 2019/20 financial year and its
position at the year end of 31 March 2020. The Authority is required to prepare an annual Statement of
Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, which those Regulations require to be prepared in
accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20 and the Service Reporting Code of Practice
2019/20, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by
the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets.

b)

Accruals of Income and Expenditure
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or
received. In particular:


Revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or the provision of goods, is
recognised when (or as) the goods or services are transferred to the service recipient in accordance
with the requirements set out in the contract.



Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap between the
date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories on the Balance
Sheet.



Expenditure in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) is recorded as
expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made.



Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as income
and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather
than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.



Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a
debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. The only exceptions to this
are with regard to certain revenue transactions where the accruals concept has not been applied (for
example, non-housing rental income, electricity and similar regular quarterly/monthly payments) as the
change from year to year is recurring in nature and the sums involved are not material compared with
total expenditure and income, and where appropriate when expenditure is being funded by external
grant, depending on the requirements specified in the conditions of grant. As this policy is applied
consistently each year, it has no material effect on the year’s accounts. Where debts may not be
settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that
might not be collected.
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c)

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on
notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments that mature in one month
or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with
insignificant risk of change in value.

d)

Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets
Service revenue accounts and support services are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of
holding non-current assets during the year:


Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service;



Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no accumulated
gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off;



Amortisation of intangible assets attributable to the service.

The Authority is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses or
amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue towards the reduction in
its overall borrowing requirement equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the
Authority in accordance with statutory guidance.

Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and

amortisations are therefore replaced by the contribution in the General Fund Balance (MRP), by way of an
adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the
difference between the two.
e)

Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates
Billing authorities act as agents, collecting council tax and non-domestic rates (NDR) on behalf of the major
preceptors (including government for NDR) and, as principals, collecting council tax and NDR for
themselves. Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain a separate fund (i.e. the Collection Fund)
for the collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of council tax and NDR. Under the legislative
framework for the Collection Fund, billing authorities, major preceptors and central government share
proportionately the risks and rewards that the amount of council tax and NDR collected could be less or
more than predicted.

Accounting for Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates
The council tax and NDR income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the
authority’s share of accrued income for the year. However, regulations determine the amount of council tax
and NDR that must be included in the authority’s General Fund. Therefore, the difference between the
income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the amount required by
regulation to be credited to the General Fund is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and
included as a reconciling item in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
The Balance Sheet includes the authority’s share of the end of year balances in respect of council tax and
NDR relating to arrears, impairment allowances for doubtful debts, overpayments and prepayments and
appeals.
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Where debtor balances for the above are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past
event that payments due under the statutory arrangements will not be made, the asset is written down and a
charge made to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement.

The impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying

amount and the revised future cash flows.
f)

Employee Benefits
Benefits Payable During Employment
Short term employee benefits are those due to be settled wholly within 12 months of the year end. They
include such benefits as salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits
for current employees and are recognised as an expense for services in the year in which employees render
service to the Authority. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, for
example, time off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the year end which employees can carry
forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at the salary rates applicable in the following
accounting period, being the period in which the employee takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves
Statement so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence
occurs.

Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Authority to terminate an officer’s
employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy and
are charged on an accruals basis to the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement at the earlier of when the authority can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the
authority recognises costs for a restructuring.
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the General
Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Authority to the pension fund or pensioner in the
year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.

In the Movement in

Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional
debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash
paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year end.

Post-Employment Benefits
Employees of the Authority are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by Essex
County Council.
This scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as
employees work for the Council.

The Local Government Pension Scheme
The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme:
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The liabilities of the Essex County Council pension fund attributable to the Authority are included in the
Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method – i.e. an assessment of the future
payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on
assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc., and projected earnings for current
employees.



Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate. The discount rate used
is such that the net present value of the notional cash flows, discounted at this single rate, equates to
the net present value of the cash flows, discounted using the annualised Merrill Lynch AA rated
corporate bond yield curve.



The assets of Essex County Council pension fund attributable to the Authority are included in the
Balance Sheet at their fair value:





Quoted securities – current bid price;



Unquoted securities – professional estimate.



Unitised securities – current bid price;



Property – market value.

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:
Service cost comprising:


Current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year
– allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for which
the employees worked.



Past service cost/gain – the increase/decrease in liabilities as a result of a scheme
amendment or curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years –
debited/credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Finance and Corporate Resources.



Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset), i.e. net interest expense for the
authority – the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset) that arises
from the passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line
of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement – this is calculated by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to
the net defined benefit liability (asset) at the beginning of the period – taking into account any
changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribution
and benefit payments.

Remeasurements comprising:


The return on plan assets – excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability (asset) – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure.
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Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events
have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the
actuaries have updated their assumptions – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Contributions paid to the Essex County Council pension fund – cash paid as employer’s contributions
to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged with
the amount payable by the Authority to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount
calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this
means that there are transfers to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits
for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners
and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year end.

The negative balance that arises on the

Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account
for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees.

Discretionary Benefits
The Authority also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of
early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff are
accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same policies as are
applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.
g)

Events after the Reporting Period
Events after the Reporting Period are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between
the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. Two
types of events can be identified:


Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period – the
Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events;



Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the Statement of
Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material
effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of Accounts.
h)

Financial Instruments
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are carried at their
amortised cost.
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For all of the borrowings that the Authority has, the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the
outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest charged to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year according to the loan agreement.

Financial Assets
Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that reflects the
business model for holding the financial assets and their cash flow characteristics. The Authority’s business
model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows, which only comprise principal and interest.
Financial assets are therefore classified as amortised cost.

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost
Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair
value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for
interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest
for the instrument. For all of the investments that the Authority has made, this means that the amount
presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for the year in
the loan agreement.
Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or debited to the Financing
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Expected Credit Loss Model
The Authority recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised cost, either on
a 12 month or a lifetime basis. The expected credit loss model also applies to lease receivables. Only
lifetime losses are recognised for trade receivables (debtors) held by the Authority.
Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might not take place
because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a crucial part in assessing losses.
Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument was initially recognised, losses are assessed on a
lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased significantly or remains low, losses are assessed on the basis of
12 month expected losses.
i)

Government Grants and Contributions
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party contributions and
donations are recognised as due to the Authority when there is reasonable assurance that:


The Authority will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and



The grants or contributions will be received.
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Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied.

Conditions are

stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset in the
form of grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic
benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor.
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in the
Balance Sheet as current liabilities. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the
relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant
Income and Expenditure (non-ringfenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement they are
reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has
yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it
has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied
Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital
expenditure.

Grants to cover general expenditure (for example, Revenue Support Grant) are credited to Taxation and
Non-Specific Grant Income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
j)

Investment Property
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. The
definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or production of
goods or is held for sale.
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, being the price that would
be received to sell such an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. As a non-financial asset, investment properties are measured at highest and best use. Properties are
not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses
on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on
disposal.
Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment Income
line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses
are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and
losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and
posted to the Capital Adjustment Account.
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k)

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of the Property, Plant or Equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.
Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered separately for
classification.
Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return for
payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of
specific assets.

The Authority as Lessor – Operating Leases
Where the Authority grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the asset is
retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the relevant service line within Net Cost of
Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on a straight-line
basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (for example, there is a
premium paid at the commencement of the lease).
l)

Overheads and Support Services
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to service segments in accordance with the
authority’s arrangements for accountability and financial performance.

m)

Property, Plant and Equipment
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one
financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment, provided their value is greater than £10,000.

Recognition
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised on
an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential
associated with the item will flow to the Authority and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits or
service potential (for example, repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred.

Measurement
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:
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The purchase price;



Any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management;



The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which
it is located.

The Authority does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction.
The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the acquisition
does not have commercial substance (for example, it will not lead to a variation in the cash flows of the
Authority). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the
carrying amount of the asset given up by the Authority.
Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement basis:


Equipment, infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction – depreciated historical
cost;



Dwellings – current value, determined using the basis of existing use value for social housing (EUVSH);



All other assets – current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its
existing use (existing use value – EUV).

Where there is no market based evidence of current value because of the specialist nature of an asset
depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of current value.
Where non-property assets have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated historical cost basis is
used as a proxy for current value.
Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that their
carrying amount is not materially different from their current value at the year end, but as a minimum every
five years.

Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise

unrealised gains. Gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where they
arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a service.
Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by:


Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains);



Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount
of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.
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The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its
formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment
Account.

Impairment
Assets are assessed at each year end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.
Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is
recognised for the shortfall.
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:


Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains);



Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount
of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the reversal is credited to the relevant service line(s) in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for
depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised.

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic allocation of their
depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite
useful life (for example, freehold land and certain Community Assets) and assets that are not yet available
for use (for example, assets under construction).
Depreciation is calculated on the following basis:


Dwellings and other buildings – straight-line allocation over the useful life of the property as estimated
by the valuer.



Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment – straight-line allocation over the useful life of the asset.



Infrastructure – straight-line allocation.

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is significant in
relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value
depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their
historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.
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Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is
revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less
costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the
Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair
value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on
Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.
If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back to
non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as held for
sale (adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluation that would have been recognised had they not
been classified as Held for Sale) and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell.
Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet
(whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on
disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value
of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation
Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.
Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. A proportion of
capital receipts relating to housing disposals are payable to the Government under pooling arrangements
based on the age, type of dwelling and relevant shares due to Government and Tendring District Council.
The balance of receipts is required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be
used for new capital investment or set aside to reduce the Authority’s underlying need to borrow (the capital
financing requirement). Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current assets is fully
provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital
Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Capital receipts of £10,000 or less are credited to the General Fund Revenue Account to be used for
revenue or capital purposes except for Private Sector Grant/Loan repayments which are credited directly
back to the Capital Receipts Reserve to support the on-going capital programme.
The interest earned from holding capital receipts is credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.
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n)

Provisions
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a legal or constructive
obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. For instance, the Authority may be involved in
a court case that could eventually result in the making of a settlement or the payment of compensation.
Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement when the Authority has an obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at the
balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and
uncertainties.
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet.
Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year – where it becomes less than probable
that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the
provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service.
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from another
party (for example, from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant service if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Authority settles the obligation.

o)

Reserves
The Authority sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies.
Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance. When expenditure to be
financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves
Statement so that there is no net charge against council tax for the expenditure.
Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial instruments,
retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Authority – these reserves
are explained in the relevant policies.

p)

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that does not
result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the relevant service in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the Authority has determined to
meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement
in Reserves Statement from the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out
the amounts charged so that there is no impact on the level of council tax.

q)

Value Added Tax (VAT)
VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty’s
Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.
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The Council is allowed to recover VAT incurred on expenses where income from the activity is exempt
provided it is ‘insignificant’. The current test for insignificance is that the VAT incurred and recovered on
exempt activities is less than 5% of the total VAT that is incurred on all of the Council’s activities. If the
amount exceeds the limit and no dispensation has been granted by HM Revenue and Customs, then none of
the tax may be recovered. HM Revenue and Customs have raised no objection to the Council’s method of
calculation applied to exempt activities.
r)

Fair Value Measurement of Non-Financial Assets
The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and investment property at
fair value at each reporting period date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liabilities takes place either:


In the principal market for the asset or liability; or



In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The authority measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.
When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the authority takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The authority uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data is available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.
Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the authority’s financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, as follows:
Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the authority can
access at the measurement date
Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly
Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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OTHER INFORMATION
The Statement of Accounts is one of a series of documents that the Council publishes in order to provide financial
information about its activities.
Other publications include the Financial Forecast, Revenue Estimates, Capital Programme and quarterly financial
performance reports, which provide information on the Council’s financial position and planned expenditure and
income each year.
These publications can be found on the Council’s Web Site at www.tendringdc.gov.uk.
Members of the public may attend meetings of the Council, its Cabinet and Committees. Copies of the Council’s
minutes are available on the Council’s website (details above). Dates and times of all Council/Cabinet/Committee
meetings can be obtained from all Council Offices.
If any further information is required, please contact Richard Barrett (rbarrett@tendringdc.gov.uk), Assistant
Director Finance and IT, Corporate Services, Town Hall, Station Road, Clacton on Sea, Essex, CO15 1SE –
Telephone Clacton (01255) 686521.
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS USED IN THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS
Accounting Period
The period of time covered by the accounts; which is usually a period of twelve months commencing on 1 April and
ending on the 31 March for Local Authority accounts.

Accumulated Absences Account
This represents an accrual required by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). It recognises the net
value of time either owed by an employee to the Council or owed by the Council to an employee. This generally
arises from a timing difference between when an employee takes annual leave and the Council’s financial year.

Accruals
Amounts included in the accounts to cover income or expenditure (revenue and capital) which relate directly to the
accounting period being reported but for which payment has not been made/received by the end of the accounting
period, e.g., equipment ordered and received before the end of the accounting period for which an invoice will not
be received and paid until after the end of the accounting period.

Asset
Something owned by the Council that is considered to have an economic value. A further breakdown can be given
such as non-current assets (e.g. property) or current assets (e.g. cash).

Bad or Doubtful Debts
It is good practice to create a provision for bad or doubtful debts representing the estimated amount of debt existing
at the 31 March which is deemed to be irrecoverable.

Balance Sheet
A statement of assets, liabilities and other balances of the Council at the end of the accounting period.

Billing Authority
The Authority responsible for administering the Collection Fund, including raising bills and collecting council tax and
business rates.

Budget
The Council’s aims and policies in financial terms. Also referred to as ‘Estimates’.

Business Rates
A charge on commercial or non-domestic properties within the Council’s area.

The amount collected by the

Council is paid over to Central Government, Essex Fire and Rescue and Essex County Council with a 40% share
kept by the Council.

Capital Expenditure
This relates to expenditure on the Council’s own assets in terms of extending asset life/enhancing an asset or the
acquisition of new assets. This also includes grants made by the Council for similar purposes.
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Capital Financing
The methods by which cash is raised to pay for capital expenditure. There are various options available including
prudential borrowing, capital receipts, grants, direct revenue financing and the use of earmarked reserves.

Capital Programme
The capital schemes the Council intends to carry out over a specified time period.

Capital Receipt
Proceeds arising from the sale of capital assets or from the repayment to the Council of capital grants and loans.
Capital receipts may be used to finance additional capital spending or to repay debt; they cannot be used to fund
revenue services.

Capital Receipt Pooling
A proportion of the receipts received from housing disposals (i.e. Dwellings, land and other Housing assets – Net
of statutory deductions and allowances) is payable to the Government (pooled) which then redistributes the pooled
money as appropriate.

Cash Flow Statement
A summary of the inflows and outflows of cash arising from revenue and capital activities during the year.

Collection Fund
A fund administered by Billing Authorities which receives payments of Council Tax and Business Rates. Amounts
are then paid from this fund (precepts) to precepting authorities (Essex Police and Crime Commissioner, Essex
Fire and Rescue and Essex County Council) with an amount retained by the Council. The total collected from
Business Rates is also paid from this fund to Central Government, Essex Fire and Rescue and Essex County
Council with an amount of 40% retained by the Council.

Community Assets
Assets that the Council intends to hold in perpetuity that have no determinable useful life, or that may have
restrictions on their disposal, e.g. open spaces not used in the direct provision of services.

Council Tax
A charge on residential properties within the Council’s area to finance a proportion of the Council’s and Precepting
Authorities’ annual expenditure.

Creditors
Amounts owed by the Council for work done or for goods and services received within the accounting period but for
which payment was not made by the end of the accounting period.

Current Assets
Assets that are either cash or can be readily converted into cash, e.g. inventories and debtors.
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Current Liabilities
Amounts which will become due for payment immediately or in the short term, for example, usually in the next
twelve months following the accounting period being reported.

Debtors
Amounts due to the Council for goods or services provided within the accounting period but not received by the end
of the accounting period.

Deferred Capital Receipts
Amounts due to the Council from the sale of assets which are not receivable immediately when the sale is
completed.

Defined Benefit Scheme
A pension scheme in which the rules specify the benefits to be paid to members and the scheme is financed
accordingly.

Depreciation
The notional loss in value of an asset due to age, wear and tear, deterioration and obsolescence.

Earmarked Reserve
A sum set aside to meet commitments in future years.

General Fund
The main account of the Council which records the net cost of providing services each year.

Government Grants
Payments by central government departments towards the cost of the Council’s services. They can be general
grants such as the Revenue Support Grant or may be for a specific purpose, for example, Coast Protection.

Heritage Assets
Assets with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or environmental qualities that are held and
maintained principally for their contribution to knowledge and culture.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
Similar in purpose to the General Fund but this account records all of the transactions relating to the Council’s
housing activities, e.g. management, repairs and improvements to the Council’s housing stock and rents due from
tenants.

Impairment
A reduction in the value of a non-current asset resulting from either: obsolescence, physical damage or an
accepted method of asset valuation (most commonly market valuation).
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Intangible Assets
These assets are similar to non-current assets in that they can be expected to be of use or benefit to the Council in
delivering its services for more than one accounting period. These however do not have physical substance; the
main example is IT Software.

Inventories
Items of materials and stores purchased by the Council to use on a continuing basis in delivering its services. The
value of the items not used by the Council by the end of the accounting period being reported, are included as
current assets in the balance sheet.

Leasing
A method of acquiring/utilising an asset in the provision of the Council’s services. Principally there are two types of
lease:


Operating leases where an annual payment is made to an external supplier for the use of an asset which is
then returned at the end of the lease.



Finance Lease where an annual payment is made as above although the payment comprises of a principal
element and an interest element and a substantial part of the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the
lessee.

Major Repairs Reserve (MRR)
A capital reserve held for investment in the replacement of structures and components of the Council’s Housing
stock. This reserve is funded from the HRA via a depreciation charge along with further voluntary contributions
where necessary to meet the cost of future capital expenditure. Interest earned on the MRR balance is credited
directly to the HRA.

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)
Local authorities must make prudent provision for the repayment of its debt. MRP is the minimum amount which
must be charged to the revenue account each year in order to provide for the repayment of loans and other
amounts borrowed by the Council. Authorities are free to make additional voluntary provisions from the General
Fund, HRA or from capital resources.

Non-Current Assets
Assets which can be expected to be of use or benefit to the Council in delivering its services for more than one
accounting period.

Precept
The amount levied by a Precepting Authority on a Billing Authority to meet its annual expenditure requirements.

Precepting Authority
Public Sector bodies including county and parish/town councils, police and fire authorities, which cannot levy a
council tax directly on the public but have the power to precept Billing Authorities.
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Provisions
Amounts set aside to meet future costs, resulting from a past event, of uncertain timing which are likely or certain
and for which a reliable estimate can be made.

Prudential Code
The Prudential Code sets out the system of capital financing and capital controls for Local Authorities. Prudential
limits apply to all borrowing, qualifying credit arrangements and other long-term liabilities – whether supported by
government or entirely self-financed. The Code seeks to ensure that local authorities’ capital investment plans are
affordable, prudent and sustainable; that treasury management decisions are taken in accordance with good
professional practice; and that local strategic planning, asset management planning and proper option appraisal
are supported.

Public Works Loan Board (PWLB)
A government body that lends money to public bodies for capital purposes with rates of interest being determined
by HM Treasury.

Reserves
Amounts set aside to meet future costs that have been identified at the end of the accounting period being
reported.

Revenue Support Grant (RSG)
Central government provides financial support towards the general expenditure of Local Authorities. The
entitlement of each Local Authority is determined by a prescribed methodology.

Revenue Account
An account which records the Council’s day to day expenditure and income on items such as salaries, repairs and
maintenance, and other running costs.

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute
Expenditure which may be capitalised but where the Council does not control the economic benefits that may arise,
for example, capital grants made to external organisations.
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